
City of Grand Island

Tuesday, September 27, 2011

Council Session Packet

City Council: Mayor:
Jay Vavricek

City Administrator:
Mary Lou Brown

City Clerk:
RaNae Edwards

T
u

7:00:00 PM
Council Chambers - City Hall

100 East First Street

Larry Carney
Linna Dee Donaldson
Scott Dugan
Randy Gard
John Gericke
Peg Gilbert
Chuck Haase
Mitchell Nickerson
Bob Niemann
Kirk Ramsey

Call to Order
City of Grand Island City Council



A - SUBMITTAL OF REQUESTS FOR FUTURE ITEMS
Individuals who have appropriate items for City Council consideration should complete the Request for Future Agenda 
Items form located at the Information Booth. If the issue can be handled administratively without Council action, 
notification will be provided. If the item is scheduled for a meeting or study session, notification of the date will be given.

B - RESERVE TIME TO SPEAK ON AGENDA ITEMS
This is an opportunity for individuals wishing to provide input on any of tonight's agenda items to reserve time to speak. 
Please come forward, state your name and address, and the Agenda topic on which you will be speaking.

MAYOR COMMUNICATION
This is an opportunity for the Mayor to comment on current events, activities, and issues of interest to the community.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Invocation - Pastor Jack Gillam, Trinity Lutheran Church, 212 West 12th Street

This is an open meeting of the Grand Island City Council. The City of Grand Island abides by the Open Meetings Act 
in conducting business. A copy of the Open Meetings Act is displayed in the back of this room as required by state 
law.

The City Council may vote to go into Closed Session on any agenda item as allowed by state law.

City of Grand Island City Council



Item C1
Recognition of Dale Hilderbrand, Police Sergeant with the Grand 
Island Police Department for 20 Years of Service with the City of 
Grand Island
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Sergeant Dale Hilderbrand with the Police 
Department for 25 years of service with the City of Grand Island. Sgt. Hilderbrand was hired 
on September 16, 1991 as a Police Officer and was promoted to Police Sergeant on 
September 27, 1999.  We congratulate Sgt. Hilderbrand for his dedication and service to the 
City of Grand Island.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C2
Recognition of Fred Schritt for Donation for New Police Service 
Dog
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Fred Schritt for his generous donation of $5,000 
to the Police Department used to purchase a new K-9 police service dog. Noa, a 3-year-old 
female Dutch shepherd was purchased to replace Adam who was struck and killed in June by 
a motor vehicle. Officer Ryan Rathbun is Noa's handler. The City of Grand Island thanks 
Mr. Schritt for his donation.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C3
Recognition of Bud Jeffries for Service on the Hall County Board 
of Supervisors
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Bud Jeffries for his outstanding service and 
dedciation to the people of Grand Island and Hall County. Mr. Jeffries service on the Hall 
County Board of Supervisors will be greatly missed.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C4
Recognition of the Edgar and Frances Reynolds Foundation for 
Donation of the Flooring at the Fieldhouse
The Mayor and City Council will acknowledge the donation from the Edgar and Frances 
Reynolds Foundation for their $35,000 donation used for the floor covering at the 
Community Fieldhouse. This financial assistance allowed the City to complete the facility 
with appropriate flooring to serve a wide range of recreational activities. The City of Grand 
Island thanks the Edgar Reynolds Foundation for their donation.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C5
Recognition of the Fred and Amanda Glade Foundation for 
Donation of the Indoor Playground Equipment at the Fieldhouse
The Mayor and City Council will acknowledge the donation from the Fred and Amanda 
Glade Foundation for their $15,000 donation for the indoor playground equipment at the 
Community Fieldhouse. The City of Grand Island thanks the Glade Foundation for their 
donation.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council





Item E1
Public Hearing Concerning Acquisition of Utility Easement - 502 
East Capital Avenue - Iglesia De Dios Eben-Ezer
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:   Robert H. Smith, Asst. Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – Part of Section 4-11-9 
 (502 East Capital Avenue) - Iglesia De Dios Eben-Ezer  
 
Item #’s:  E-1 & G-7 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 
Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City Council. 
The Utilities Department needs to acquire an easement relative to the property of Iglesia De 
Dios Eben-Ezer, located at the Southeast corner of 502 East Capital Avenue, in the City of 
Grand Island, Hall County, in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair 
power appurtenances, including lines and transformers. 
 

Discussion 
 
The Iglesia De Dios Eben-Ezer Church is constructing a new worship center at 502 East 
Capital Avenue. The building will require new electrical service. This easement will be used 
to provide a location for the primary cable, conduit, and pad-mounted transformer to provide 
that service. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. The 
Council may: 
 

1.  Make a motion to approve  
2.  Refer the issue to a Committee 
3.  Postpone the issue to future date  
4.        Take no action on the issue 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the acquisition 
of the easement for one dollar ($1.00). 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement. 





Item E2
Public Hearing Concerning Acquisition of Utility Easement - 2627 
W. Highway 30 - Floor to Ceiling Store - Narber
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Robert H. Smith, Asst. Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – 2627 W. Highway 30 - 

Narber 
 
Item #’s:  E-2 & G-8 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 
Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City Council. 
The Utilities Department needs to acquire an easement relative to the property of Jim and 
Donna Narber, located in the southeast corner of 2627 West Highway 30 (the Floor to 
Ceiling building) , in the City of Grand Island, Hall County, in order to have access to install, 
upgrade, maintain, and repair power appurtenances, including lines and transformers. 
 

Discussion 
 
The Floor to Ceiling Building was damaged by fire and subsequently torn down. The new 
building will have a larger underground electrical service. This easement will provide a 
location for the new high voltage cable, conduit, and pad-mounted transformer. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. The 
Council may: 
 

1.  Make a motion to approve  
2.  Refer the issue to a Committee 
3.  Postpone the issue to future date  
4.        Take no action on the issue 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the acquisition 
of the easement for one dollar ($1.00). 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement. 





Item E3
Public Hearing Concerning Acquisition of Utility Easement - 3405 
South Blaine Street - McCallum
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Robert H. Smith, Asst. Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – 3405 S. Blaine Street – 
 McCallum 
 
Item #’s:  E-3 & G-9 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 
 

Background  
 
Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City Council. 
The Utilities Department needs to acquire an easement relative to the property of Kurt and 
Shirley McCallum, located along the south side of property located at 3405 S. Blaine Street, 
in the City of Grand Island, Hall County, in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, 
and repair power appurtenances, including lines and transformers. 
 

Discussion 
 
This easement will be used to provide primary electric cable, conduit, and a pad-mounted 
single phase transformer.  It will provide electricity to the new residence to be constructed on 
this lot. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. The 
Council may: 
 

1.  Make a motion to approve  
2.  Refer the issue to a Committee 
3.  Postpone the issue to future date  
4.        Take no action on the issue 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the acquisition 
of the easement for one dollar ($1.00). 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement. 





Item E4
Public Hearing on Request to Rezone Properties Located North 
and West of US Hwy 281 and South of Airport Road from AG-2 – 
Secondary Agricultural to B2 – General Business
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Regional Planning Commission 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Rezone Request for Property being Platted as Olson 

Subdivision an Addition to the City of Grand Island 
Located South of Airport Road and North and West of 
U.S. Highway 281 from AG2 Secondary Agricultural to 
B2 General Business (C-11-2011GI) 

 
Item #’s:  E-4 & F-1 
 
Presenter(s): Chad Nabity AICP, Regional Planning Director 
 

 
Background 

 
Concerning rezone properties located south of Airport Road and north and west of U.S. 
Highway 281 from AG2 Secondary Agricultural to B2 General Business. 
 

Discussion 
 
At the regular meeting of the Regional Planning Commission, held September 7, 2011 
the above item was considered following a public hearing. 
 

O’Neill opened the Public Hearing.  
 
Nabity briefly explained this was a request to rezone properties located north and 
west of U.S. Highway 281 and south of Airport Road from AG2 Secondary 
Agriculture to B2 General Business.  This would allow for Mr. Olson to provide 
Ag Services from this location consisting of seed sales and insurance.  This would 
not be a high traffic business and no fertilizer would be at this location.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
O’Neill closed the Public Hearing. 
 

The Planning Director’s recommendation to the Planning Commission is also attached to 
this recommendation from the Planning Commission.  
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the rezoning request as presented 
2. Modify the rezoning request to meet the wishes of the Council 
3. Postpone the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 

A motion was made by Snodgrass to approve the Rezone from AG2 Secondary 
Agriculture to B2 General Business Zone and was seconded by Ruge. The motion carried 
with 7 members present and 7 voting in favor (O’Neill, Ruge, Hayes, Reynolds, Monter, 
Haskins and Snodgrass) and no member abstaining. 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Approve the rezone request for property proposed for platting as Olson Subdivision. 



Agenda Item # 4 
 
 
PLANNING DIRECTOR RECOMMENDATION TO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 
September 7, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Change (C-11-2011GI)  
 
 
PROPOSAL: To rezone properties located north and west of U.S. Highway 281 and south of Airport 
Road from AG2 Secondary Agriculture to B2 General Business 
 
OVERVIEW:  
Site Analysis 
Current zoning designation: AG2– Secondary Agriculture  
 
Permitted and conditional uses: AG2 – Secondary Agriculture. Residential uses are permitted as 

part of a farming operation.  New animal based agricultural 
operations are allowed with no more than 1000 animal units as 
part of a farming operation. The minimum size for a farming 
operation is 20 acres.  Green Houses, Nurseries, and other similar 
uses are also allowed in this zone. 

 
Comprehensive Plan Designation: Mixed Use Commercial.  This area is planned to transition 

between commercial areas adjacent to the adjoining highways 
and future residential development north of Airport Road. 

 
Existing land uses. Row Crops and Cell Tower. 
 
Proposed Zoning Designation B2 – General Business – A variety of warehousing, storage, light 

manufacturing and office uses and no residential uses.  Minimum 
lot size of 20,000 square feet with 50% coverage. 

 
Adjacent Properties Analysis 
Current zoning designations:  LLR- Large Lot Residential and AG2– Secondary Agriculture. 

 
Permitted and conditional uses: AG2 – Secondary Agriculture. Residential uses are permitted as 

part of a farming operation.  New animal based agricultural 
operations are allowed with no more than 1000 animal units as 
part of a farming operation. The minimum size for a farming 
operation is 20 acres.  Green Houses, Nurseries, and other similar 
uses are also allowed in this zone. LLR - Large Lot Residential, 
Residential uses at a density of 2 dwelling units per acre with 25% 
coverage, recreational uses and agricultural uses.  

 
Comprehensive Plan Designation: North: Designated for Agricultural Uses. 
 East: Designated for low to medium density residential and public 

use. 
 South and West: Designated for low Mixed Use Commercial. 
 
 
Existing land uses: North: Farm Ground 

South: U.S. Highway 281, Farm Ground 
East: U.S. Highway 281 
West: Farm Ground 

 
 



EVALUATION:  
 
Positive Implications: 
• Consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan: The subject property is designated for 

mixed use commercial uses.   
 
• Reasonable access to transportation systems: The intersection of Airport Road and U.S. Highway 

281 is not well designed for a business that would create congestion at the intersection but for a 
variety of lower impact businesses this site would provide a highly visible location with quick access 
to U.S. Highway 281 and Nebraska State Highway 2.   

 
Negative Implications: 
 
• No negative implications foreseen.   

 

 
 
Future Land Use Map of the Area as approved in the Grand Island Comprehensive Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Regional Planning Commission recommend that the Grand Island City Council change the 
zoning on this site from AG2 Secondary Agriculture to B2 General Business as requested and 
shown on the attached map. 
 
___________________ Chad Nabity AICP, Planning Director 
 



 
 



Item E5
Public Hearing on Annexation for Property Located So. of Airport 
Road/US Highway 281 and the West Side of Broadwell Avenue No. 
of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Tracks Including Eagle Scout 
Pk & Veterans Field (Area 3a) being Platted as Olson Sub.
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From: Hall County Regional Planning Department 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Annexation Areas Identified as 3a, 6, 7, 12, 13, and 14 
 
Item #’s:  E-5, E-6, E-7, E-8, E-9, and E-10 
   F-2, F-3, F-4, F-5, F-6, and F-7 
 
Presenter(s): Chad Nabity, AICP Hall County Regional Planning 

Director 
 
 

Background  
 
At the March 22, 2011 meeting of the Grand Island City Council a resolution was passed 
that directed the planning department and other city staff as follows: 
 

• to proceed with preparing annexation plans (as required and defined by statute),  
• to notify property owners and school districts as required by law, and  
• to forward the annexation plans to the Regional Planning Commission for review 

 
 
The annexation plans for 6 of the 8 eight identified areas are complete and were 
considered by the Regional Planning Commission after a public hearing at their meeting 
held July 6, 2011. The attached map identifies those areas under consideration at this 
meeting. Annexation plans are attached for areas identified as 3a, 6, 7, 12, 13, and 14. On 
August 9, 2011 The Grand Island City Council passed a resolution of intent to annex 
these areas, approving the annexation plans as presented and setting public hearings 
regarding annexation of these areas for September 27, 2011. 
 

Discussion 
 

Nebraska Revised Statute §16-117 provides for the process of annexation. In following 
the process approved by Council on March 22nd, 2011 annexation plans have been 
prepared by staff and referred to the Regional Planning Commission for recommendation.  
The Planning Commission has made their recommendation and Council has passed a 
resolution of intent to annex these areas. The next step is for Council to hold the public 



hearings and consider approval of the ordinances to annex the property. Annexation 
ordinances must be read on three separate occasions. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the Ordinances on First Reading 
2. Choose not to approve the Ordinances. 
3. Modify the ordinance to change the areas under consideration for annexation. 
4. Postpone the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
That Council pass the ordinances for annexation of Areas 3a, 6, 7, 12, 13, and 14 as 
presented. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution of intent to annex, the attached annexation plan, and set 
public hearings on annexation of Areas 3a, 6, 7, 12, 13, and 14. 
 



From the July 6th 2011 Planning Commission Minutes 
 

4. Public Hearing – Concerning annexation of properties identified as: 
Annexation Area 3a south of Airport Road/U.S. Highway 281 and on the west 
side of Broadwell Avenue north of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe tracks. Eagle 
Scout Park and the Veterans Field Complex are in this area. Annexation Area 6 
located north of Bismark Road to the east side of Stuhr Road.  Annexation Area 
7 located north of U.S. Highway 34 on the east side of South Locust Street. 
Annexation Area 12 located north of Husker Highway to the west side of U.S. 
Highway 281 and Prairieview Street.  Annexation Area 13 located south of Old 
Potash Highway on the west side of North Road.  Annexation Area 14 located 
south of 13th Street on the east and west sides of North Road and north of Faidley 
Avenue (C-05-2011GI). 
 
O’Neill opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Nabity briefly talked about the process of annexation; he explained City Council 
had charged Regional Planning to look at eligible areas for Annexation.  City 
Council had selected eight areas and six of those plans were brought forward to 
Regional Planning.  The remaining two may be brought forward for the August 
meeting.  
 
Annexation Area 3a - U.S. Highway 281 and Broadwell Ave 
 
This property is the located in the north central part of the community.  It is south 
of Airport Road/U.S. Highway 281 the west side of Broadwell Avenue north of 
the Burlington Northern Santa Fe tracks. The City of Grand Island provides 
electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are both available to this property.  
There is about 210 acres of property included in the area that is currently used for 
agricultural purposes.  There are no houses and no businesses included in this 
area.  Eagle Scout Park and the Veterans Field Complex are in this area and 
maintained by the City Parks Department. 
 
Annexation Area 6 - Bismark Road and Stuhr Road 
 
This property is the located in the southeast part of the community.  It is mostly 
north of Bismark Road the east side of Stuhr Road. The City of Grand Island 
provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are both available to this 
property.  There is about 50 acres of property included in the area that is currently 
used for agricultural purposes.  There are no houses and no businesses included in 
this area. 
 
Nabity stated he had received a call from Tom Pirnie who owns the majority of 
the land is this area and he was in support of the annexation.  
 



Annexation Area 7 - U.S. Highway 34 and South Locust Street (Vanosdal 
Fields) 
 
This property is the located in the southeast part of the community.  It is north of 
U.S. Highway 34 on the east side of Locust Street. The City of Grand Island 
provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are both available to this 
property.  There are about 65 acres of property included in the area. The property 
is currently used for agricultural and residential purposes.  There are 3 houses 
included in this area. 
 
Nabity stated one homeowner Heidi Aken and she was in favor of this annexation.   
 
Janel Laub, 380 E. Highway 34, said she and her husband bought land there in 
1996 to farm next to his parents. If the land were annexed into city limits, their 
children would no longer be eligible for school driving permits, could not have 
more numerous flocks of ducklings and they would be subject to higher taxes on 
farm equipment they purchase. 
 
Their land would also eventually cease to be part of the Northwest School 
District, which has a more rural focus. Two of their children want to be farmers, 
and a third wants to be a veterinarian, Laub said. 
 
If their land were to be annexed, "our whole way of life changes," she told the 
commission.  
 
Evie Laub, 450 E Hwy 34, said the annexation would also separate the farm 
homestead from the farm ground, which runs to the east to Stuhr Road. 
 
Commissioner John Amick of Doniphan concurred. He moved to annex just the 
western half of the proposed area, which includes the former ball fields and the 
Heidi Aken house that fronts onto Highway 34. Aken had previously spoken in 
favor of annexation.  
 
Amick said water and sewer is available to the western portion of Area 7, (Aken 
property) but not to the Laub farmsteads on the east. The entire 65 acres is also 
not surrounded completely by city limits and the annexation, as originally 
proposed by the city, would substantially change the rural lifestyle the Laubs 
have, he said. 
 
Annexation Area 12 - U.S. Highway 281 and Husker Highway 
 
This property is the located in the southwest part of the community.  It is north of 
Husker Highway the west side of U.S. Highway 281 and Prairieview Street. The 
City of Grand Island provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are 
both available to this property.  There is about 200 acres of property included in 
the area that is currently used for agricultural purposes.  There is one house and 



no businesses included in this area. 
 
Annexation Area 13 - Old Potash Highway and North Road 
 
This property is the located in the northwest part of the community.  It is south of 
Old Potash Highway on the west side of North Road. The City of Grand Island 
provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are both available to this 
property.  There is about 120 acres of property included in the area that is 
currently used for agricultural purposes.  There are no houses and no businesses 
included in this area. 
 
Eric Pollock owns this property and was questioning what exactly this meant.  
Nabity explained his property was surrounded by the city limits and Council is 
looking to get rid of the “islands” that have been formed.  Sewer and water are 
available.  Pollock questioned if there was a utility plan for the drainage because 
in the northwest quarter there is a drainage issue. 
 
 Annexation Area 14 - 13th and North Road 
 
This property is the located in the northwest part of the community.  It is south of 
13th Street on the east and west sides of North Road and north of Faidley Avenue. 
The City of Grand Island provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water 
are both available to this property.  There is about 100 acres of property included 
in the area that is currently used for agricultural purposes.  There are 3 houses and 
no businesses include in this area. 
 
Landowners Ray Stander, 1104 N. North Road, and Floyd Leiser, 3550 N. 
Engleman Road, both objected, saying the land is being used for agricultural 
purposes. 
 
"Farm ground is not necessary for city use," Leiser said. "They’re not going to 
develop it as long as I’m alive," he added. 
 
Northwest school Superintendent Bill Mowinkel also objected to the annexation 
of ag land from Areas 12, 13, 14 and the Laub ground in Area 7. He said the 
annexation results in a loss of tax base and property tax revenue for the Northwest 
School District. 
 
Planning Commission Chairman Pat O’Neill said the commission is charged with 
evaluating current and future land use, not school finance. 
 
Commissioner Les Ruge said because Grand Island has grown up around those 
areas, there is confusion on whether city or county forces have jurisdiction when 
it comes to road issues, drainage and emergency response. Annexation will clarify 
that. 
 



O’Neill closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Area 3a: U.S. Highway 281 and Broadwell Ave 
 
This has 210 acres located south of Airport Road/U.S. Highway 281 and 
on the west side of Broadwell Avenue north of the Burlington Northern 
Santa Fe tracks. City sewer and water is available. It includes the Veterans 
Athletic Field Complex and Eagle Scout Park and is mostly city-owned so 
there is no property valuation and no property tax revenue. City 
annexation would clarify that city police have jurisdiction at the Athletic 
Complex, which is on ground leased by the city from the state.  
 
A motion was made by Hayes to approve the Area 3a Annexation plan as 
submitted and seconded by Amick. 
 
The motion carried with 9 members present and 9 voting in favor (Amick, 
O’Neill, Ruge, Hayes, Reynolds, Haskins, Bredthauer, Connelly and 
Snodgrass) and no member present abstaining. 
 
Area 6: Bismark Road and Stuhr Road  
 
This has 50 acres located north of Bismark Road to the east side of Stuhr Road. 
City sewer and water is available. Estimated tax base is $100,053. Estimated 
annual property tax for all political subdivisions is $2,181.  
 
A motion was made by Reynolds to approve the Area 6 Annexation plan 
as submitted and seconded by Brethauer. 
 
The motion carried with 9 members present and 9 voting in favor (Amick, 
O’Neill, Ruge, Hayes, Reynolds, Haskins, Bredthauer, Connelly and Snodgrass) 
and no member present abstaining. 
 
Area 7: U.S. Highway 34 and South Locust Street (Vanosdal Fields) 
 
This property is the located in the southeast part of the community.  It is north of 
U.S. Highway 34 the east side of Locust Street. The City of Grand Island provides 
electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are both available to this property.  
There are about 65 acres of property included in the area. The property is 
currently used for agricultural and residential purposes.  There are 3 houses 
included in this area. 
 
A motion was made by Amick to approve the Area 7 Annexation plan 
with the changes made to the annexation area to remove the Laub 
properties and to just include the Vanosdal property and the Aken 
property. This was seconded by Haskins. 
 



Finding of Facts noted by Amick were this proposed annexation did not have 
sewer and water services available.  This homestead was used as an ag use home 
property.  Annexation of this property would adversely affect the familes.  
Haskins agreed with Amick’s findings. 
 
The motion carried with 9 members present and 9 voting in favor (Amick, 
O’Neill, Ruge, Hayes, Reynolds, Haskins, Bredthauer, Connelly and 
Snodgrass) and no member present abstaining. 
 
Area 12: U.S. Highway 281 and Husker Highway 
 
This is about 200 acres of farmland located north of Husker Highway and to the 
west side of U.S. Highway 281 and Prairieview Street. City sewer and water is 
available. Estimated tax base is $481,334 and estimated property tax revenue is 
$10,495 a year.  
 
A motion was made by Bredthauer to approve the Area 12 Annexation 
plan as presented and was seconded by Reynolds. 
 
Findings of fact noted by Bredthauer were water and sewer service is available 
and annexing of this property would have little or no impact to the owners. 
 
The motion carried with 9 members present and 8 voting in favor (Amick, 
O’Neill, Hayes, Reynolds, Haskins, Bredthauer, Connelly and Snodgrass) and 1 
member present voting against (Ruge) and no members abstaining. 
 
Area 13:  Old Potash Highway and North Road 
 
This property is the located in the northwest part of the community.  It is south of 
Old Potash Highway on the west side of North Road. The City of Grand Island 
provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water are both available to this 
property.  There is about 120 acres of property included in the area that is 
currently used for agricultural purposes.  There are no houses and no businesses 
included in this area. 
 
A motion was made by Bredthauer to approve the Area 13 Annexation 
plan as presented and was seconded by Amick. 
 
Findings of fact noted by Bredthauer were water and sewer service is available 
and annexing of this property would have little or no impact to the owners. 
 
The motion carried with 9 members present and 7 voting in favor (Amick, 
O’Neill, Ruge, Haskins, Bredthauer, Connelly and Snodgrass) and 2 members 
present voting against (Reynolds, Hayes) and no members abstaining. 
 
 



Area 14: 13th and North Road 
 
This property is the located in the northwest part of the community.  It is south of 
13th Street on the east and west sides of North Road and north of Faidley Avenue. 
The City of Grand Island provides electric services to the area.  Sewer and water 
are both available to this property.  There is about 100 acres of property included 
in the area that is currently used for agricultural purposes.  There are 3 houses and 
no businesses include in this area. 
 
This is about 100 acres of farmland south of 13th street and west of Sagewood 
Avenue. City sewer and water is available. Estimated tax base is $687,081 with 
estimated property tax revenue of $14,981 a year. Planning commission voted 7-2 
in favor. Commissioners Bill Hayes and Deb Reynolds objected. 
 
A motion was made by Ruge to approve the Area 14 Annexation plan as 
presented and was seconded by Bredthauer. 
 
Findings of fact noted by Ruge were water and sewer service is available and 
annexing of this property would have little or no impact to the owners also this 
clears up who needs to provide services to the area, between City and County.  
 
The motion carried with 9 members present and 7 voting in favor (Amick, 
O’Neill, Ruge, Haskins, Bredthauer, Connelly and Snodgrass) and 2 members 
present voting against (Reynolds, Hayes) and no member abstaining. 

 
 



Area 7 has been modified to include fewer properties than shown on this map, but the 
general area of town remains the same. 
 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 



Item E6
Public Hearing on Annexation of Property Located North of 
Bismark Road on the East Side of Stuhr Road (Annexation Area 6)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Item E7
Public Hearing on Annexation of Property Located North of US 
Highway 34 on the East Side of South Locust Street (Annexation 
Area 7)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Item E8
Public Hearing on Annexation of Property Located North of 
Husker Highway to the West Side of US Highway 281 and 
Prairieview Street (Annexation Area 12)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Item E9
Public Hearing on Annexation of Property Located South of Old 
Potash Highway on the West Side of North Road (Annexation Area 
13)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Item E10
Public Hearing on Annexation of Property Located South of 13th 
Street on the East and West Side of North Road and North of 
Faidley Avenue (Annexation Area 14)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Item E11
Public Hearing on Annexation of Olson Subdivision Located South 
of Airport Road and North and West of US Highway 281
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Chad Nabity, Regional Planning Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: An Ordinance to Annex Olson Subdivision an Addition 

to the City of Grand Island, Nebraska and the Adjoining 
Right-of -Way 

 
Item #’s:  E-11 & F-8 
 
Presenter(s): Chad Nabity, Regional Planning Director 
 
 

Background  
 

The Annexation Component of the Grand Island Comprehensive Development Plan as 
adopted by the Grand Island City Council on July 13, 2004 sets as the policy of Grand 
Island that any and all property subdivided adjacent to the Corporate Limit of the City of 
Grand Island be annexed into the City at the time of subdivision approval.  
 
Phil A. Mader and Linda Mader, as the owners of the property, submitted Olson 
Subdivision as an addition to the City of Grand Island. The Hall County Regional 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the subdivision at their meeting on 
September 7, 2011. 
 

Discussion 
 

Staff has prepared an ordinance in accordance with the requirements of Nebraska Revised 
Statute §16-117. Annexation ordinances must be read on three separate occasions.  This 
is the first reading of the ordinance. This ordinance includes exhibits showing the 
property to be considered for annexation and the legal descriptions of those properties. 
 
City staff is not suggesting extension of the zoning jurisdiction as a result of this 
annexation. Council could request that planning commission consider extension of the 
zoning jurisdiction. Changes to the zoning jurisdiction cannot be made without a 
recommendation from the Regional Planning Commission.  
 
No existing residences or businesses would be added to the City as a result of this 
annexation.  



 
Alternatives 

 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council pass the annexation ordinance. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the annexation ordinance on second reading. 





Item E12
Public Hearing on Annual Report by the Citizens’’ Review 
Committee on the Economic Development Program Plan
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Public Hearing Concerning the Annual Report by the 

Citizen’s Review Committee on the Economic 
Development Program Plan 

 
Item #’s:  E-12 & G-31 
 
Presenter(s): Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 Mark Stelk, Chairman, 
 Citizen’s Advisory Review Committee 
 

Background  
 

The voters of the City of Grand Island approved an economic development plan at the 
May 6, 2003 election. Subsequent to the election, the city has adopted an ordinance that 
establishes the economic development plan and a Citizens’ Advisory Review Committee 
to oversee the process of approving applications for economic development incentives. 
The Citizens Advisory Review Committee is required by State Statute and the Grand 
Island City Code to make an annual report to the City Council. 
 

Discussion 
 

The Citizens Advisory Review Committee has been conducting regular meetings during 
the last six months as required by the City Code and the Nebraska Statutes. The 
committee looks forward to receiving and reviewing meritorious applications for 
consideration in the future. The committee received the annual report from the Economic 
Development Corporation at its meeting of September 13, 2011, and voted to forward it 
on to the City Council for its review and acceptance. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Accept the semi-annual report of the Citizens’ Advisory Review Committee. 



2. Do not accept the semi-annual report of the Citizens’ Advisory Review 
Committee. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council accept the annual report of the 
Citizens’ Advisory Review Committee. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to accept the annual report of the Citizens ’ Advisory Review Committee. 



 



 

W
h

en
 m

o
re

 jo
b

s 
ar

e 
cr

ea
te

d
, w

ag
es

 g
o

 
u

p
, b

en
ef

it
s 

ar
e 

m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
et

it
iv

e,
 a

n
d

 
G

ra
n

d
 Is

la
n

d
 g

ro
w

s.
  



 E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t a

ss
is

ts
 th

e 
G

ra
n

d
 Is

la
n

d
 a

re
a 

b
y:

 

R
ec

ru
iti

ng
 n

ew
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 

H
el

pi
ng

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

ex
pa

nd
 b

y 
w

ay
 o

f j
ob

 c
re

at
io

n,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
, a

nd
 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t 



 

G
IA

E
D

C
 p

o
si

ti
ve

ly
 im

p
ac

ts
 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
ity

 b
y:

 

A
ttr

ac
tin

g 
pe

rm
an

en
t i

nv
es

tm
en

t 

B
ro

ad
en

in
g 

th
e 

ta
x 

ba
se

 

 

C
re

at
in

g 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r a

ll 
ci

tiz
en

s 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 



 C
ha

irm
an

  
R

og
er

 B
ul

lin
gt

on
 

C
hi

ef
 In

du
st

rie
s 

 

V
ic

e 
C

ha
irm

an
  

A
nn

 M
ar

tin
  

Id
ea

 B
an

k 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
/T

re
as

ur
er

 
To

m
 G

do
w

sk
i  

E
qu

ita
bl

e 
B

an
k 

E
le

ct
ed

 T
ru

st
ee

  
G

al
en

 S
te

hl
ik

  
La

ur
its

en
 L

aw
 F

irm
  

E
le

ct
ed

 T
ru

st
ee

 
To

m
 P

irn
ie

 
G

.I.
 E

xp
re

ss
  

E
le

ct
ed

 T
ru

st
ee

  
Ja

y 
K

as
pa

r  
IN

S
U

R
, I

nc
.  

E
le

ct
ed

 T
ru

st
ee

  
B

ill
 W

es
te

rin
g 

 
W

es
te

rin
g 

E
nt

er
pr

is
es

 

E
le

ct
ed

 T
ru

st
ee

  
K

C
 H

eh
nk

e 
 

 
 

20
11

 B
o

ar
d

 o
f T

ru
st

ee
s 



 

20
11

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 B

o
ar

d 
Li

sa
 C

ru
m

rin
e 

 
C

ha
m

be
r o

f 
C

om
m

er
ce

 
C

ha
irm

an
  

M
ar

y 
Lo

u 
B

ro
w

n 
C

ity
 A

dm
in

is
tra

to
r 

Ji
m

 H
ar

tm
an

  
N

or
th

W
es

te
rn

 
E

ne
rg

y 
 

D
r. 

Ly
nn

 B
la

ck
  

C
en

tra
l 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ol

le
ge

  

R
an

dy
 K

is
si

ng
er

  
N

E
 W

or
kf

or
ce

  
M

ay
or

 J
ay

 
V

av
ric

ek
  

P
eg

 G
ilb

er
t  

G
.I.

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

M
ik

e 
O

ls
on

 
H

al
l C

o.
 A

irp
or

t 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 

C
in

dy
 J

oh
ns

on
  

G
.I.

 A
re

a 
C

ha
m

be
r  

of
 C

om
m

er
ce

  

D
r. 

R
ob

 W
in

te
r 

G
.I.

 P
ub

lic
 

S
ch

oo
ls

  

P
am

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

H
al

l C
o.

 B
oa

rd
 

of
 S

up
er

vi
so

rs
  



 

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 in

cl
u

d
es

, 
b

u
t 

is
 n

o
t 

lim
it

ed
 t

o
: 

A
 re

vo
lv

in
g 

lo
an

 fu
nd

 fo
r n

on
-r

et
ai

l q
ua

lif
ie

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 

G
ra

nt
s 

or
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 fo

r j
ob

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
to

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

P
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

/o
r p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 fi

xe
d 

as
se

ts
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
la

nd
 g

ra
nt

s 
or

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

op
tio

ns
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f a
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 b
us

in
es

s,
 a

nd
 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 s
tim

ul
at

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

 



 T
yp

es
 o

f b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
th

at
 q

u
al

if
y 

fo
r 

L
B

-8
40

 fu
n

d
in

g
: 

M
us

t b
e 

a 
co

rp
or

at
io

n,
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, L

LC
, o

r s
ol

e 
pr

op
rie

to
rs

hi
p 

th
at

 d
er

iv
es

 it
s 

pr
in

ci
pa

l s
ou

rc
e 

of
 in

co
m

e 
fr

om
: 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r o
f a

rt
ic

le
s 

of
 c

om
m

er
ce

 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

P
ro

ce
ss

, s
to

re
, t

ra
ns

po
rt

, o
r s

el
l o

f g
oo

ds
, s

er
vi

ce
, o

r 
co

m
m

od
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
ol

d 
or

 tr
ad

ed
 in

 in
te

rs
ta

te
 

co
m

m
er

ce
 (n

ot
 fo

r l
oc

al
 re

ta
il)

 
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

Q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 b

us
in

es
s 

m
us

t b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

 u
nl

es
s 

a 
va

ria
nc

e 
is

 g
ra

nt
ed

.
A

ny
 o

th
er

 b
us

in
es

s 
de

em
ed

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Le

gi
sl

at
ur

e 
 

 



 

L
B

-8
40

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

1.
Lo

an
 fu

nd
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n:

 
Lo

an
 fu

nd
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
B

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

 
T

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 s
ig

ne
d 

F
ed

er
al

 T
ax

 re
tu

rn
s 

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e 
P

ro
fit

/L
os

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
R

ec
en

t B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 (s

ig
ne

d)
 

O
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

 re
qu

es
te

d 



 

L
B

-8
40

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
  

(c
o

n
tin

u
ed

) 

2.
3-

P
ar

t R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
G

IA
E

D
C

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
B

oa
rd

 w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
m

ee
ts

 
w

ith
 th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
. 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
) r

ev
ie

w
s 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
is

 to
 m

ov
e 

fo
rw

ar
d.

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
es

 o
r d

en
ie

s 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 



 

L
B

-8
40

 F
u

n
d

in
g

T
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 p

ro
gr

am
 re

ce
iv

es
 $

75
0,

00
0 

pe
r y

ea
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

-y
ea

r p
er

io
d 

of
 2

00
3 

 2
01

3.
   

G
IA

E
D

C
 re

ce
iv

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
  

 
$3

50
,0

00
/y

r 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r Q
ua

lif
ie

d 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

 
$4

00
,0

00
/y

r  
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

$7
50

,0
00

/y
r 

 
 

(T
he

 $
40

0,
00

0 
is

 re
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ity

 in
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 b

ea
rin

g 
ac

co
un

t a
nd

 p
ai

d 
ou

t t
o 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
.) 



 

G
IA

E
D

C
 U

ti
liz

at
io

n
 o

f L
B

-8
40

 F
u

n
d

s 
 

20
11

-2
01

2 

   

   
  

   
  I

nd
us

tr
ia

l P
ar

k 
A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
 

 
$ 

   
75

,0
00

 
   

  A
dv

er
tis

in
g 

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

0,
00

0 
   

  R
es

ea
rc

h 
&

 S
tu

di
es

  
 

   
   

25
,0

00
  

   
  R

ec
ru

itm
en

t/P
ro

m
ot

io
na

l E
ve

nt
s 

 
   

   
27

,0
00

  
   

  R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Ta
xe

s 
 

 
 

   
   

48
,0

00
  

In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

 
13

0,
00

0
   

  O
cc

up
an

cy
  

 
 

 
   

   
25

,0
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
$ 

 3
50

,0
00

  
    

   
   

(s
am

e 
am

ou
nt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
gi

ve
n 

si
nc

e 
19

99
)  

 
   

   



 

G
IA

E
D

C
 U

ti
liz

at
io

n
 o

f L
B

-8
40

 F
u

n
d

s 
 

20
04

-2
01

1 

20
04

 
20

05
 

20
06

 
20

07
 

20
08

 
20

09
 

20
10

 
20

11
 

O
cc

up
an

cy
  

38
,0

00
 

34
,0

00
 

34
,0

00
 

29
,5

00
 

25
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
 

A
dv

er
tis

in
g 

 
10

,0
00

 
15

,0
00

 
15

,0
00

 
17

,0
00

 
19

,0
00

 
17

,0
00

 
18

,0
00

 
20

,0
00

 

R
es

ea
rc

h
 &

 S
tu

d
ie

s 
 

29
,0

00
 

60
,0

00
 

78
,0

00
 

27
,0

00
 

38
,5

00
 

24
,0

00
 

49
,0

00
 

25
,0

00
 

In
du

st
ri

al
 P

ar
ks

 (3
 s

ite
s)

 
76

,0
00

 
73

,0
00

 
70

,0
00

 
83

,0
00

 
83

,0
00

 
50

,0
00

 
50

,0
00

 
75

,0
00

 

R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

T
ax

es
  

12
,0

00
 

13
,0

00
 

18
,0

00
 

18
,0

00
 

18
,0

00
 

45
,0

00
 

65
,0

00
 

48
,0

00
 

In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

  
14

,0
00

 
14

,0
00

 
16

,0
00

 
22

,0
00

 
22

,0
00

 
62

,0
00

 
62

,0
00

 
13

0,
00

0 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t/P

ro
m

ot
io

na
l E

ve
nt

s 
 

54
,0

00
 

77
,0

00
 

54
,0

00
 

81
,0

00
 

79
,0

00
 

62
,0

00
 

36
,0

00
 

27
,0

00
 

S
pe

ci
al

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

  
11

7,
00

0 
64

,0
00

 
65

,0
00

 
45

,0
00

 
45

,0
00

 
45

,0
00

 
45

,0
00

 
0 

W
el

di
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

  
0 

0 
0 

27
,5

00
 

20
,5

00
 

20
,0

00
 

0 
0 

T
o

ta
ls

  
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 
35

0,
00

0 



 L
B

-8
40

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
u

n
d

er
 c

u
rr

en
t p

la
n

 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3 
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1.
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

fu
nd

in
g:

 $
3,

20
0,

00
0 

 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
Ir

on
 

20
0,

00
0 

(2
00

4)
 

H
as

tin
gs

 F
oo

ds
 

70
,0

00
 

(2
00

8)
 

H
er

ita
ge

 D
is

po
sa

l 
10

0,
00

0 
(2

00
4)

 
N

ov
a-

T
ec

h,
 In

c.
  

16
0,

00
0 

(2
00

8)
 

Lo
ve

 S
ig

ns
 

42
,0

00
 

(2
00

5)
 

A
ce

 M
ac

hi
ne

 S
ho

p 
32

,5
00

 
(2

00
9)

 
C

X
T

, I
nc

. 
20

0,
00

0 
(2

00
5)

 
S

tru
ct

ur
ed

 S
ol

ut
io

ns
 

60
0,

00
0 

(2
00

9)
 

J.
 C

. D
oy

le
 

20
,0

00
 

(2
00

6)
 

H
or

na
dy

 M
fg

. 
(2

nd
 A

pp
.) 

20
0,

00
0 

(2
01

0)
 

45
,0

00
(2

00
7)

P
V

 I
nd

us
tri

al
 P

ar
k 

E
as

t
57

5,
00

0
(2

01
0)

C
as

e 
IH

 
32

5,
00

0 
(2

00
7)

 
R

og
ue

 M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
50

,0
00

 
(2

01
0)

 
H

or
na

dy
 M

fg
. 

15
4,

00
0 

(2
00

7)
 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
Iro

n 
(2

nd
 A

pp
.) 

20
0,

00
0 

(2
01

1)
 

P
rin

ci
pa

l F
in

an
ci

al
 

30
,0

00
 

(2
00

7)
 

C
as

e 
IH

 (
2n

d  
A

pp
.) 

21
9,

00
0 

(2
01

1)
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

8 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

$ 
3,

22
2,

50
0 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
F

ee
s 

(p
ai

d 
to

 C
ity

 o
f G

I) 
$ 

   
15

7,
50

0 



 

P
ro

ce
ss

 to
 a

ss
u

re
 q

u
al

if
yi

n
g

 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
m

ee
ts

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 

A
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
s 

ar
e 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

re
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 
to

 re
im

bu
rs

e 
th

e 
C

ity
. 

C
ity

 is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

fu
ll 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

 



 

Im
p

ac
t o

f L
B

-8
40

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

 
3,

10
3 

ne
w

 jo
bs

 in
 7

-1
/2

 y
ea

rs
 (

N
E

 D
ep

t. 
of

 L
ab

or
) 

1,
16

6 
di

re
ct

 jo
bs

 c
re

at
ed

 w
ith

 e
st

im
at

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
of

 
$3

6,
04

8,
31

3 
pe

r 
ye

ar
. 

 

D
ire

ct
 jo

bs
 c

re
at

ed
 r

ef
le

ct
 w

ha
t w

as
 s

ta
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

   

(E
ve

ry
 d

ol
la

r 
sp

en
t t

ur
ns

 o
ve

r 
7 

tim
es

 (
$8

90
 m

ill
io

n)
 in

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

ity
!)

 



 

Im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

L
B

-8
40

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

(C
o

n
ti

n
u

ed
) 

 
(A

ct
u

al
 d

o
lla

r 
va

lu
e 

d
o

es
 n

o
t i

n
cl

u
d

e 
la

st
 fi

ve
 p

ro
je

ct
s)

 

$2
,7

38
,3

85
 in

 a
cc

um
ul

at
iv

e 
ne

w
 r

ea
l e

st
at

e 
ta

xe
s 

fr
om

 2
00

3-
20

08
 

$2
1,

95
4,

08
6 

in
 r

ea
l e

st
at

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

as
 o

f 2
00

8 
   

   
   



 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 p

ro
sp

er
it

y 
o

f G
ra

n
d

 Is
la

n
d

 
G

I P
op

ul
at

io
n 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 4
8,

52
0 

(3
,2

41
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

ve
r 2

00
3)

 
 A

ss
es

se
d 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
P

er
 C

ap
ita

 in
 c

on
st

an
t d

ol
la

rs
: 

$1
,7

46
,9

78
 in

 2
00

3/
20

04
   

vs
.  

$2
,3

51
,1

44
 in

 2
01

0/
20

11
 

 N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

er
m

its
 s

in
ce

 2
00

4:
   

$6
42

,6
08

,6
46

  
 T

ax
ab

le
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e:
 

$1
,8

83
,2

72
,2

57
 in

 2
00

4 
  v

s.
  $

2,
39

5,
49

7,
48

6 
in

 2
01

0 
 

 
($

51
2,

 2
25

,2
29

 in
cr

ea
se

)  

E
qu

at
es

 to
 $

10
,3

57
,1

94
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
T

ax
 

re
ve

nu
e.

  



 

P
la

tt
e 

V
al

le
y 

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 P
ar

k 

P
ur

ch
as

ed
 g

ro
un

d 
in

 2
00

0 
 

P
la

tte
d 

(S
ub

di
vi

de
d)

 
 1

8 
or

ig
in

al
 lo

ts
; 8

 lo
ts

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

da
y 

Zo
ne

d 
M

E
 

 M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
E

st
at

es
  

Im
pr

ov
ed

 S
ite

 w
ith

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 2
00

3 
(W

at
er

, S
ew

er
, P

av
in

g,
 G

as
   

   
   

   
an

d 
Te

le
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
) 

 

U
S

 H
ig

hw
ay

 2
81

 



 

G
IA

E
D

C
 S

p
ec

 B
u

ild
in

g
 

Lo
ca

te
d 

on
 L

ot
 7

 in
 P

la
tte

 V
al

le
y 

In
du

st
ria

l P
ar

k 

B
ui

lt 
in

 2
00

5 
 

S
ol

d 
in

 2
00

8 
to

 a
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
s 

fo
r e

xp
an

si
on

 

50
,0

00
 s

q.
 ft

.  

E
D

C
 re

ce
iv

ed
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
lo

ck
 G

ra
nt

 -
$2

50
,0

00
 

D
re

w
 a

tte
nt

io
n 

to
 G

ra
nd

 Is
la

nd
  

 



 

 
P

la
tt

e 
V

al
le

y 
In

d
u

st
ri

al
 P

ar
k 

E
as

t 
 

 
D

ec
la

re
d

 B
lig

h
te

d
 &

 S
u

b
st

an
d

ar
d

 
 T

ax
 In

cr
em

en
t F

in
an

ci
n

g
   

N
ew

 In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 
 S

ew
er

, P
av

in
g

, a
n

d
 lo

o
p

ed
 w

at
er

 - $
1 

m
ill

io
n

 g
ra

n
t 

C
u

rr
en

t w
it

h
 L

an
d

 S
tu

d
ie

s 
- P

h
as

e 
I, 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

, W
et

la
n

d
 

D
el

in
ea

ti
o

n
, a

n
d

 S
o

il 
B

o
ri

n
g

s 
(u

p
d

at
ed

 e
ve

ry
 3

 y
ea

rs
)  

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 R
ai

l S
er

vi
ce

 L
ay

o
u

ts
 

B
la

in
e 

S
tre

et
 

W
ild

w
oo

d 
D

riv
e 

U
ni

on
 P

ac
ifi

c 
R

ai
lro

ad
 S

pu
r 



 

C
o

rn
h

u
sk

er
 In

d
u

st
ri

al
 P

ar
k 

O
ve

r 
90

0 
ac

re
s 

av
ai

la
b

le
  

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
 in

-d
ep

th
 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l s

tu
d

y 
in

 
20

10
  

D
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
p

la
n

  

D
u

al
 r

ai
l a

cc
es

s 
 

 



 

R
ea

l e
st

at
e 

ta
xe

s 
p

ai
d

 b
y 

th
e 

G
IA

E
D

C
  

o
n

 in
d

u
st

ri
al

 p
ar

ks
 

 
 

20
03

 
$1

6,
70

6 
 

 
 

20
04

 
$1

1,
03

9 

 
 

20
05

 
$1

3,
31

9 

 
 

20
06

 
$2

6,
88

4 

 
 

20
07

 
$2

4,
52

3 

 
 

20
08

 
$4

4,
25

8 

 
 

20
09

 
$6

3,
72

5 

 
 

20
10

 
$7

5,
84

8 

 
 

20
11

 
$5

2,
72

3 

 
 

To
ta

l 
$3

29
,0

25
 



 G
IA

E
D

C
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
in

 m
an

y 
w

ay
s 

A
ir 

N
at

io
na

l G
ua

rd
 

G
ra

nd
 Is

la
nd

 S
ch

oo
l B

on
d 

(2
00

4-
20

08
) 

Ja
il 

B
on

d 
H

al
f-C

en
t S

al
es

 T
ax

 C
am

pa
ig

n 
C

en
tr

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 W
el

di
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

 
N

eb
ra

sk
a 

S
ta

te
 F

ai
r 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

Lo
bb

yi
st

 
Le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
D

ay
 in

 L
in

co
ln

 
H

us
ke

r 
H

ar
ve

st
 D

ay
s 

20
10

 B
e 

C
ou

nt
ed

 C
am

pa
ig

n 
P

ro
m

ot
io

n-
A

irl
in

e 
T

ic
ke

ts
 



 

G
IA

E
D

C
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

lo
ca

l, 
st

at
e 

an
d

 n
at

io
n

al
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

s 
C

ity
 o

f G
ra

nd
 Is

la
nd

 
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tu
dy

 &
 I-

80
 S

ew
er

 E
xt

en
si

on
 

G
re

at
er

 N
eb

ra
sk

a 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 B
oa

rd
 

N
eb

ra
sk

a 
D

ip
lo

m
at

s 
S

ou
th

 C
en

tr
al

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 

G
ra

nd
 Is

la
nd

 P
ub

lic
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
C

en
te

r 
I-8

0 
C

oa
lit

io
n 

 L
ab

or
 S

tu
dy

 
N

E
 E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

er
s 

A
ss

oc
. 

 C
o-

C
ha

ir/
C

ha
ir 

fo
r 

7 
ye

ar
s 

G
ra

nd
 Is

la
nd

 A
re

a 
C

ha
m

be
r o

f C
om

m
er

ce
 

G
ra

nd
 Is

la
nd

/H
al

l C
ou

nt
y 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

an
d 

V
is

ito
rs

 B
ur

ea
u 

G
ra

nd
 Is

la
nd

 S
po

rt
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

 
H

al
l C

ou
nt

y 
A

irp
or

t A
ut

ho
rit

y 
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

ou
nc

il 
M

id
 A

m
er

ic
a 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

ou
nc

il 
N

eb
ra

sk
a 

C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

 



 

C
re

at
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
et

ai
n

in
g

 jo
b

s 
h

as
 b

o
ls

te
re

d
 

ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 



 

T
h

e 
G

ra
n

d
 Is

la
n

d
 a

re
a 

is
 w

el
l p

re
p

ar
ed

 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

-t
er

m
 g

ro
w

th
 t

h
an

ks
 t

o
 L

B
-8

40
: 

  I
nc

re
as

ed
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
 

  C
re

at
in

g 
ne

w
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r a

ll 
ci

tiz
en

s  

  E
xp

an
de

d 
ta

x 
ba

se
 

  H
el

pi
ng

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

 

  3
rd

 la
rg

es
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fo
r m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

jo
bs

  

  N
ea

rly
 $

3 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 g
ra

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

  

  A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

1,
30

0 
ac

re
s 

of
 in

du
st

ria
l p

ar
k 

la
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
 

  Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
  



 T
h

e 
u

se
 o

f L
B

-8
40

 fu
n

d
s 

an
d

 th
e 

d
ed

ic
at

io
n

 o
f t

h
e 

G
IA

E
D

C
 h

as
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
ed

 
G

ra
n

d
 Is

la
n

d
/H

al
l C

o
u

n
ty

 fo
r 

co
n

ti
n

u
ed

 
g

ro
w

th
 fo

r 
ye

ar
s 

to
 c

o
m

e.
  

 
T

h
an

k 
yo

u
! 



Item F1
#9327 - Consideration of Request to Rezone Properties Located 
North and West of US Hwy 281 and South of Airport Road from 
AG-2 – Secondary Agricultural to B2 – General Business
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-4.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 
October 18, 2006 ¤   City Attorney 

ORDINANCE NO. 9327 
 
 An ordinance rezoning a certain tract of land within the zoning jurisdiction of the 

City of Grand Island; changing the land use classification of a tract of land comprising: Lot 1 of 

Olson Subdivision an Addition to the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska, from AG 2 

Secondary Agricultural District to B2 General Business Zone, directing the such zoning change 

and classification be shown on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Grand Island; amending 

the zoning map pursuant to Chapter 36; and providing for publication and an effective date of 

this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, the Regional Planning Commission on September 7, 2011, held a 

public hearing and made a recommendation on the proposed zoning of such area; and  

 WHEREAS, notice as required by Section 19-923, R.R.S. 1943, has been given to 

the Boards of Education of the school districts in Hall County, Nebraska; and  

 WHEREAS, the requested change is found to be in compliance with the 

Comprehensive Development Plan of the City of Grand  Island as adopted July 13, 2004 and 

subsequently amended; and  

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council found 

and determined the change in zoning be approved and made. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.   The following tracts of land are hereby rezoned, reclassified and 

changed from AG 2 Secondary Agricultural Zone to B2 General Business Zone: 

All of Lot 1 of Olsson Subdivision an Addition to the City of Grand Island, Hall  
 
County, Nebraska 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9327  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

 SECTION 2.  That the Official Zoning Map of the City of Grand Island, 

Nebraska, as established by Section 36-51 of the Grand Island City Code be, and the same is, 

hereby ordered to be changed, amended, and completed in accordance with this ordinance. 

 SECTION 3.  That this ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after 

its passage and publication, within fifteen days in one issue of the Grand Island Independent as 

provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item F2
#9328 - Consideration of Annexation for Property Located South 
of Airport Road/US Highway 281 and the West Side of Broadwell 
Avenue North of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Tracks 
Including Eagle Scout Park & Veterans Field (Area 3a) (First 
Reading)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-5.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9328 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tract of land west of U.S. Highway 281 

and south of Airport Road along with all adjoining public Right-of-Way in Hall County, 

Nebraska referenced as annexation area “3a”as more particularly described hereinafter and as 

shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any 

ordinance or resolutions or parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in 

pamphlet form; and to provide the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on July 6, 2011, the Regional Planning Commission 

recommended the approval of annexing into the City of Grand Island, the following tract of land 

in Hall County, Nebraska: 

Beginning At A Point On The North Line Of Airport Road, U.S. Highway 281 Said Point 
Being 2,544.35’ West Of And 86.51’ North Of The Northeast Corner Section 5-11-9 
Thence Easterly On A Line 86.51’ North Of And Parallel To The North Of Section 5-11-
9 And Section 4-11-9 To A Point On The West Line Of Homestead Second Subdivision 
Thence Southerly On A Line To The South Right Of Way Line Of Airport Road Thence 
Southwesterly To The East Right Of Way Line Of Broadwell Avenue Thence Southerly 
On The East Right Of Way Line Of Broadwell To A Point On The South Line Of 
Northwest Quarter Of Northwest Quarter Section 4-11-9 Thence Westerly On Said South 
Line Northwest Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 4-11-9 To The West Line Of Section 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds  * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9328  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

4-11-9 Thence Southerly On The West Line Of Section 4-11-9 To A Point On The South 
Right Of Way Line Of The Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad Thence Northwesterly 
On The South Right Of Way Line Of The Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad To A 
Point On The West  Line Of Southeast Quarter Section 5-11-9 Thence Northerly On The 
West Line Of Southeast Quarter And Northeast Quarter Section 5-11-9 To The Point Of 
Beginning.  

 
 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the 

City of Grand Island found and determined that such annexation be approved; and  

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation will 

have no impact on the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction.  

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9328  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 (E)  The plan for extending City services is hereby approved and ratified as 

amended. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and 

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and laid out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9328  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9328  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F3
#9329 - Consideration of Annexation of Property Located North of 
Bismark Road on the East Side of Stuhr Road (Annexation Area 6) 
(First Reading)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-6.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9329 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tract of land east of Stuhr Road and north 

of Bismark Road along with all adjoining public Right-of-Way in Hall County, Nebraska 

referenced as annexation area “6”as more particularly described hereinafter and as shown on 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any ordinance or 

resolutions or parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in pamphlet form; 

and to provide the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on July 6, 2011, the Regional Planning Commission 

recommended the approval of annexing into the City of Grand Island, the following tract of land 

in Hall County, Nebraska: 

Beginning At A Point 33’ South Of And 183’ East Of Northwest Corner 23-11-9 Said 
Point Being On The South Line Of Bismark Road Thence Continuing Easterly On The 
South Line Of Bismark Road For A Distance Of 177.5’ Thence Northerly On A Line 
360.5’ East Of And Parallel To The West Lines Of Section 23-11-9 And 14-11-9 Thence 
Westerly On A Line 191.1’ North Of And Parallel To The South Line Of Section 14-11-9 
For A Distance Of 73.63’ Thence Northerly On A Line 286.87’ East Of And Parallel To 
The West Line Of Section 14-11-9 For A Distance Of 43.30’ Thence Westerly On A Line 
To A Point 260’ East Of West Line Section 14-11-9 And 234.4’ North Of South Line Of 
Section 14-11-9 Thence Northerly On A Line 260.0’ East Of And Parallel To The West 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds  * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9329  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

Line Of Section 14-11-9 For A Distance Of 170.0’ Thence West On A Line To A Point 
191.10’ East Of And 404.4’ North Of The South Line Of Section 14-11-9 Thence 
Northerly On A Line 191.1’ East Of And Parallel To The West Line Of Section 14-11-9 
For A Distance Of 539.47’ Thence Westerly on A Line 943.87’ North Of And Parallel To 
The South Line Of Section 14-11-9 To The East Line Of Stuhr Road Thence Northerly 
On The East Line Of Stuhr Road To The Southwest Corner Of Lot 101 Industrial 
Addition Thence Easterly On The South Line Of Lot 101, 100 & 90 Industrial Addition 
For A Distance of 884.63’ Thence Southeasterly On The Southwest Line Of Lot 99 
Industrial Addition For A Distance Of 146.53’ Thence Northeasterly On The East Line 
Of Lot 99 Industrial Addition For A Distance Of 50’ To The Southerly Line Of The 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad Right Of Way Thence Southeasterly On Said 
Southerly Line Of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad To The Northwest Corner Lot 
102 Industrial Addition Thence Southerly On The West Line Of Lots 102, 110, 111 & 
118 Industrial Addition To The Southwest Corner Of Lot 118 Industrial Addition Thence 
Easterly On The South Line Of Lots 115, 116, 117 & 118 Industrial Addition To The 
Southeast Corner Of Lot 115 Industrial Addition Thence Northerly On The East Line Of 
Lots 114 & 115 For A Distance of 380’ ± Thence South Easterly On A Southerly Line Of 
Lot 114 Industrial Addition To The Southeast Corner Of Lot 114 Industrial Addition 
Thence Easterly On The South Line Of Lot 114 Industrial Addition To The Southerly 
Line Of The Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad Right Of Way Thence Southeasterly 
On Said South Line Of The Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad To A Point Of The 
South Line Of Bismark Road Thence Southwesterly On A Line For A Distance Of 
166.5’± Thence Northwesterly On A Line For A Distance Of 330’ To A Said Point Being 
169.4’ South Of The North Line Of Section 23-11-9 Thence Westerly On A Line For A 
Distance of 418.9’ To A Point Being 161’ South Of The North Line Of Section 23-11-9 
Thence Continuing Westerly On A Line For A Distance Of 1000’ To A Point Being 151’ 
South Of The North Line Of Section 23-11-9 Thence Continuing Westerly On A Line 
For A Distance Of 587.6’ To A Point 149.63’ South Of The North Line Of Section 23-
11-9 Thence Continuing Westerly On A Line For A Distance Of 912.4’ To A Point Being 
148’ South Of The North Line Of Section 23-11-9 Thence Westerly On A Line Being 
148’ South Of And Parallel To The North Line Of Section 23-11-9 For A Distance Of 
224.6’ Thence Northerly On A Line For A Distance Of 115’ To The Point Of Beginning. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the 

City of Grand Island found and determined that such annexation be approved; and  

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9329  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation will 

have no impact on the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction.  

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 (E)  The plan for extending City services is hereby approved and ratified as 

amended. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9329  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and  

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and laid out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9329  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F4
#9330 - Consideration of Annexation of Property Located North of 
US Highway 34 on the East Side of South Locust Street 
(Annexation Area 7) (First Reading)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-7.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9330 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tract of land east of Locust Street and 

north of U.S. Highway 34 along with all adjoining public Right-of-Way in Hall County, 

Nebraska referenced as annexation area “7”as more particularly described hereinafter and as 

shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any 

ordinance or resolutions or parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in 

pamphlet form; and to provide the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on July 6, 2011, the Regional Planning Commission 

recommended the approval of annexing into the City of Grand Island, the following tract of land 

in Hall County, Nebraska: 

Beginning At The Southeast Corner Of Desert Rose Subdivision Thence North On The 
East Line Of Desert Rose Subdivision For A Distance Of 323.6’ Thence Easterly On The 
South Line Of Desert Rose Sub For A Distance Of 55’ Thence Northerly On The East 
Line Of Desert Rose Subdivision For A Distance Of 201’ To The Northeast Corner Of 
Desert Rose Subdivision Thence Easterly On An Extension Of The North Line Of Desert 
Rose Subdivision For A Distance Of 445’ ± Thence Northerly On A Line For A Distance 
Of 669.4’± To The South Line Of Firethorne Estates Subdivision Thence Easterly On 
The South Line Of Firethorne Estates Subdivision For A Distance Of 1,223.6’± Thence 
Southerly On A Line For A Distance Of 327.5’± Thence Southwesterly On A Line For A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds  * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9330  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

Distance Of 654.1’± Thence Westerly On A Line For A Distance Of 106’ Thence 
Southerly On A Line For A Distance Of 193.6’± Thence Easterly On A Line For A 
Distance Of 106’ Thence South On A Line To A Point On The North Line Of the U.S. 
Highway 34, Husker Highway Thence Westerly On The South Line Of Said U.S. 
Highway 34, Husker Highway To The West Line Of Northeast Quarter Of Northwest 
Quarter Section 34-11-9 Thence Northerly On The West Line Of Northeast Quarter, 
Northwest Quarter Section 34-11-9 To The North Line Of Section 34-11-9 Thence 
Continuing Northerly On The West Line Of The Southeast Quarter Of Southwest Quarter 
Section 27-11-9 To The North Line Of U.S. Highway 34, Husker Highway Thence 
Westerly And Northerly On The North Line Of U.S. Highway 34, Husker Highway To 
The Point Of Beginning 

 
 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the 

City of Grand Island found and determined that such annexation be approved; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9330  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation will 

have no impact on the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction.  

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 (E)  The plan for extending City services is hereby approved and ratified as 

amended. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and 

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and laid out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9330  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9330  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F5
#9331 - Consideration of Annexation of Property Located North of 
Husker Highway to the West Side of US Highway 281 and 
Prairieview Street (Annexation Area 12) (First Reading)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-8.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9331 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tract of land west of U.S. Highway 281 

and north of U.S. Highway 34 along with all adjoining public Right-of-Way in Hall County, 

Nebraska referenced as annexation area “12”as more particularly described hereinafter and as 

shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any 

ordinance or resolutions or parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in 

pamphlet form; and to provide the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on July 6, 2011, the Regional Planning Commission 

recommended the approval of annexing into the City of Grand Island, the following tract of land 

in Hall County, Nebraska: 

Beginning At The Southwest Corner Of Pedcor Subdivision Thence Continuing 
Southerly On An Extension Of The West Line Of Pedcor Subdivision To The West Line 
Of Pedcor Subdivision To The Southerly Line Of U.S. Highway 34, Husker Highway 
Thence Westerly On The South Line Of Said Highway To A Point On The West Line Of 
The Northeast Quarter Of The Northwest Quarter Section 36-11-10 Thence Northerly On 
The West Line Of Northeast Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 36-11-10 To The 
Northwest Corner Of Northeast Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 36-11-10 Said Point 
Also Being The Southwest Corner Of Southeast Quarter Of Southwest Quarter Section 
25-11-10 Thence Continuing Northerly On The West Line Of The Southeast Quarter, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds  * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9331  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

Southwest Quarter, Northeast Quarter, Southwest Quarter And The Southeast Quarter 
Northwest Quarter Section 25-11-10. To The Northwest Corner Of Southeast Quarter, 
Northwest Quarter Section 25-11-10 Thence Easterly On The North Line Of Southeast 
Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 25-11-10 To The Northeast Corner Of Southeast 
Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 25-11-10 The Southerly On The East Line Of 
Southeast Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 25-11-10 To The Southeast Corner Of 
Southeast Quarter, Northwest Quarter Section 25-11-10 Said Point Also Being The 
Center Of Section 25-11-10 Thence Easterly On The North Line Of Southeast Quarter 
Section 25-11-10 To The Northwest Corner Of Pedcor Second Subdivision Thence 
Southerly On The West Line Of Pedcor Second Subdivision and Pedcor Subdivision To 
The Point Of Beginning 

 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the 

City of Grand Island found and determined that such annexation be approved; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation will 

have no impact on the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction.  



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9331  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 (E)  The plan for extending City services is hereby approved and ratified as 

amended. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and 

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and laid out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9331  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9331  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F6
#9332 - Consideration of Annexation of Property Located South of 
Old Potash Highway on the West Side of North Road (Annexation 
Area 13) (First Reading)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-9.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9332 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tract of land west of North Road and 

south of Old Potash Highway along with all adjoining public Right-of-Way in Hall County, 

Nebraska referenced as annexation area “13”as more particularly described hereinafter and as 

shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any 

ordinance or resolutions or parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in 

pamphlet form; and to provide the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on July 6, 2011, the Regional Planning Commission 

recommended the approval of annexing into the City of Grand Island, the following tract of land 

in Hall County, Nebraska: 

Beginning At The Northeast Corner Section 23-11-10 Thence Southerly On The East 
Line Of Said Section 23-11-10 To A Point 300’ North Of The Southeast Corner Of 
Northeast Quarter Of Northeast Quarter section 23-11-10 Thence West On A Line For A 
Distance Of 333’ Thence Southerly On A Line For A Distance Of 300’ To A Point On 
The North Line Of Gosda Subdivision Thence Westerly On The North Line Of Gosda 
Subdivision To The Northwest Corner Of Gosda Subdivision Thence Southerly On The 
West Line Of Gosda Subdivision, Springdale Subdivision And Springdale Second 
Subdivision To The North Line Of Garland Subdivision Thence Westerly On The North 
Line Of Garland Subdivision To The Northwest Corner Of Garland Subdivision Also 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9332  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

Being The Southwest Corner Northeast Quarter Section 23-11-10 Thence Continuing 
Westerly On The South Line Of The Northwest Quarter Section 23-11-10 For A Distance 
Of 35’ Thence Northerly On A Line To The Southeast Corner Of Copper Creek Estates 
Subdivision Thence continuing Northerly On The East Line Of Copper Creek Estates 
Subdivision To The Northeast Corner Of Copper Creek Estates Subdivision Being On 
The North Line Of Section 23-11-10 To The Point Of Beginning 

 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the 

City of Grand Island found and determined that such annexation be approved; and  

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation will 

have no impact on the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction.  

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9332  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 (E)  The plan for extending City services is hereby approved and ratified as 

amended. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and 

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and laid out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9332  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9332  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F7
#9333 - Consideration of Annexation of Property Located South of 
13th Street on the East and West Side of North Road and North of 
Faidley Avenue (Annexation Area 14) (First Reading)
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-10.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9333 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tracts of land east and west of North 

Road and south of 13th Street along with all adjoining public Right-of-Way in Hall County, 

Nebraska referenced as annexation area “14”as more particularly described hereinafter and as 

shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any 

ordinance or resolutions or parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in 

pamphlet form; and to provide the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after public hearing on July 6, 2011, the Regional Planning Commission 

recommended the approval of annexing into the City of Grand Island, the following tract of land 

in Hall County, Nebraska: 

Beginning At The Northwest Corner East Half Of Northwest Quarter Section 13-11-10, 
Said Point Also Being The Northwest Corner Of Larue Third Subdivision Thence 
Southerly On The West Line Of Larue Third Subdivision To The Southwest Corner Of 
Larue Third Subdivision To The Southwest Corner Of Larue Third Subdivision Said 
Point Also Being The Southwest Corner Of The East Half Of Northwest Quarter Of 
Section 13-11-10 Thence Westerly On The South Line Of The Northwest Quarter Section 
13-11-10 To The West Line Section 13-11-10 Thence North On The West Line Of 
Section 13-11-10 Also Being The East Line Of Section 14-11-10 To The Northeast 
Corner Of Westwood Park Subdivision Said Point Also Being The Northeast Corner Of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds  * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9333  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

Southeast Quarter Of Northeast Quarter Section 14-11-10 Thence Westerly On The 
North Line Of Westwood Park Subdivision To The Southeast Corner Lot 1 Block 2 
Neumann Second Subdivision Thence Northerly On The East Line Of Neumann Second 
Subdivision And Extension There Of To The North Line Of Section 14-11-10 Thence 
Easterly On The North Line Of Section 14-11-10 To The Northeast Corner Of Section 
14-11-10 Also Being The Northwest Corner Section 13-11-10 Thence Continuing 
Easterly On The North Line Of Section 13-11-10 To The Point Of Beginning 
 

 
 WHEREAS, after public hearing on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the 

City of Grand Island found and determined that such annexation be approved; and  

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation will 

have no impact on the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction.  



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9333  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 (E)  The plan for extending City services is hereby approved and ratified as 

amended. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and 

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and la id out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9333  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9333  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F8
#9334 - Consideration of Annexation of Olson Subdivision Located 
South of Airport Road and North and West of US Highway 281 
(First Reading).
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-11.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 

September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9334 
 
 An ordinance to extend the boundaries and include within the corporate limits of, 

and to annex into the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a tract of land comprised of Olson 

Subdivision and the adjoining Right-Of-Way for Airport Road and U.S. Highway 281 in Hall 

County, Nebraska as more particularly described hereinafter and as shown on Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto; to provide service benefits thereto; to repeal any ordinance or resolutions or 

parts of thereof in conflict herewith; to provide for publication in pamphlet form; and to provide 

the effective date of this ordinance. 

 WHEREAS, after the Phil A Mader and Linda Mader as owners of the property 

submitted a plat of Olson Subdivision an Addition to the City of Grand Island for approval; and 

 WHEREAS, the Annexation Component of the Comprehensive Development 

Plan for the City of Grand Island requires that owners of property proposed for subdivision 

adjacent to the Corporate Limits submit such subdivisions as additions to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, according to NRSS §16-177 the City of Grand Island can upon 

petition of the property owner(s) of property contiguous and adjacent to the City Limits annex 

said property by ordinance; and  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* This Space Reserved For Register of Deeds  * 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9334  (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City Council of the City of Grand Island 

approved such annexation on first reading. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  It is hereby found and determined that: 

 (A)  The above-described tracts of land are urban or suburban in character, and 

that the subject properties are contiguous or adjacent to the corporate limits of said City.  

 (B)  The subject lands will receive the material benefits and advantages currently 

provided to land within the City's corporate limits including, but not limited to police, fire, 

emergency services, street maintenance, and utilities services upon annexation to the City of 

Grand Island, Nebraska, and that City electric, water and sanitary sewer service is available, or 

will be made available, as provided by law.  

 (C)  The various zoning classifications of the land shown on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby confirmed and that this annexation does 

not extend the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction. 

 (D) There is unity of interest in the use of the said tract of land, lots, tracts, 

highways and streets (lands) with the use of land in the City, and the community convenience 

and welfare and in the interests of the said City will be enhanced through incorporating the 

subject land within the corporate limits of the City of Grand Island. 

 SECTION 2.  The boundaries of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, be and are 

hereby extended to include within the corporate limits of the said City the contiguous and 

adjacent tract of land located within the boundaries described above. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9334  (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

 SECTION 3.  The subject tract of land is hereby annexed to the City of Grand 

Island, Hall County, Nebraska, and said land and the persons thereon shall thereafter be subject 

to all rules, regulations, ordinances, taxes and all other burdens and benefits of other persons and 

territory included within the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 SECTION 4.  The owners of the land so brought within the corporate limits of the 

City of Grand Island, Nebraska, are hereby compelled to continue with the streets, alleys, 

easements, and public rights-of-way that are presently platted and laid out in and through said 

real estate in conformity with and continuous with the streets, alleys, easements and public 

rights-of-way of the City.  

 SECTION 5.  That a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be recorded in the 

office of the Register of Deeds of Hall County, Nebraska and indexed against the tracts of land. 

 SECTION 6.  Upon taking effect of this Ordinance, the services of said City shall 

be furnished to the lands and persons thereon as provided by law, in accordance with the Plan for 

Extension of City Services adopted herein. 

 SECTION 7.  That all ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 SECTION 8.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication, in pamphlet form, as provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9334  (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 9334  (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 



Item F9
#9335 - Consideration of City Council’s Approval of all Individual 
City Negotiators
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Councilman Larry Carney

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Councilmember Larry Carney 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: City Council Approval of City Negotiators 
 
Item #’s:  F-9 
 
Presenter(s): Councilmember Larry Carney 
 
 

Background 
 

To allow the City Council to participate in the selection of City negotiators. 
 

Discussion 
 

Is is thought to be in the City’s best interest to require the City Council to approve all 
City negotiators prior to labor negotiations on behalf of the City.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
Recommend that the Council approve Ordinance No. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve Ordinance No. 



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

ORDINANCE NO. 9335 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Neb Rev. Stat. §16-201, the City has authority, by 

Ordinance to make all rules and regulations, not inconsistent with state laws; and 

 WHEREAS, an ordinance to require the City Council’s approval of all individual 

City negotiators prior to entering into labor contract negotiations, on behalf of the City, with any 

individual or union; to repeal any ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith; and to 

provide for publication and the effective date of this ordinance. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  The Mayor and Council hereby find and determine: that it is in the 

City’s best interest to require the City Council to approve all City negotiators prior to labor 

negotiations on behalf of the City.  

 SECTION 2.  Any ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be, and 

hereby are, repealed. 

 SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after its 

passage and publication in one issue of the Grand Island Independent, within fifteen days as 

provided by law.  

 Enacted:  September 27, 2011. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item G1
Approving Minutes of September 13, 2011 City Council Regular 
Meeting
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA 
 

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
September 13, 2011 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Grand Island, Nebraska was conducted in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 100 East First 
Street, on September 13, 2011. Notice of the meeting was given in The Grand Island 
Independent on September 7, 2011. 
 
Mayor Jay Vavricek called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The following City Council 
members were present: Chuck Haase, Larry Carney, Bob Niemann, Kirk Ramsey, Peg Gilbert, 
Mitch Nickerson, Linna Dee Donaldson, Scott Dugan and John Gericke. Councilmember Randy 
Gard was absent. The following City Officials were present: City Administrator Mary Lou 
Brown, City Clerk RaNae Edwards, City Attorney Robert Sivick, and Public Works Director 
John Collins. 
 
INVOCATION was given by Pastor John Hayes, Grace Baptist Church, 1115 South Vine Street 
followed by the PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
MAYOR COMMUNICATION: Mayor Vavricek introduced Community Youth Council 
members Evan Dexter and Jackson Buck. Mayor commented on signing the final bonds for the 
Heartland Events Center with a gross debt service savings of $900,000. Mentioned were the 
following boards that had vacancies: Regional Planning Commission, BID #8, and Citizens’ 
Review Committee. 
 
City Administrator Mary Lou Brown commented on upcoming Study Sessions in October. 
Extension of sewer on Highway 281 would be brought forward in October. 
 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION: Motion by Gilbert, second by Ramsey, carried unanimously to 
adjourn to the Board of Equalization.  
 
#2011-BE-2 – Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District #4, 
South Locust Street from Stolley Park Road to Fonner Park Road. City Administrator Mary Lou 
Brown reported that the City Council in its’ capacity as the Board of Equalization was required 
to determine the benefits for BID #4. Special assessments were for the amount of $27,966.14. 
 
#2011-BE-3 – Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District #6, 
Second Street. City Administrator Mary Lou Brown reported that the City Council in its’ 
capacity as the Board of Equalization was required to determine the benefits for BID #6. Special 
assessments were for the amount of $14,288.66. 
 
#2011-BE-4 – Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District #7, 
South Locust Street from Stolley Park Road to Highway 34. City Administrator Mary Lou 
Brown reported that the City Council in its’ capacity as the Board of Equalization was required 
to determine the benefits for BID #7. Special assessments were for the amount of $58,882.38. 
 
#2011-BE-5 – Consideration of Determining Benefits for Business Improvement District #8, 
Downtown. City Administrator Mary Lou Brown reported that the City Council in its’ capacity 



Page 2, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

as the Board of Equalization was required to determine the benefits for BID #8. Special 
assessments were for the amount of $89,691.84. Presented were two Resolutions with a 70% and 
100% assessment for owner occupied residents. 
 
Motion by Gilbert, second by Ramsey to approve Resolutions #2011-BE-2, #2011-BE-3, #2011-
BE-4 and #2011-BE-5 (A). Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION: Motion by Gilbert, second by Dugan carried unanimously 
to return to Regular Session.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Public Hearing on General Property, Parking District #2 (Ramp) and Community Development 
Authority Tax Request. City Administrator Mary Lou Brown reported that state statutes requires 
the City to conduct a pub lic hearing if the property tax request changes from one year to the next. 
Property tax request for the 2011-2012 general property tax was $7,970,431, Parking District No. 
2 at $8,000, and the Community Redevelopment Authority property tax at $639,405. Staff 
recommended approval. No public testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Establishing the Rates for the General Occupation Tax for Downtown Parking 
District No. 1. City Administrator Mary Lou Brown reported that this was the annual Council 
action to establish the occupation tax for Downtown Improvement and Parking District No. 1. 
FY 2011-2012 occupation tax factor was $.1732 per square foot and would provide taxes of 
$39,992.53. Staff recommended approval. No public testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement located at the Southwest Corner of the 
Intersection of Belfry Blvd. and August Parkway (Indianhead Golf Club). Utilities Director Tim 
Luchsinger reported that acquisition of a utility easement located at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Belfry Blvd. and August Parkway was needed in order to have access to install, 
upgrade, maintain, and repair power appurtenances, including lines and transformers for the 
purpose of locating a three phase pad mounted transformer and high voltage switch gear for the 
residential subdivision and the sewer lift station. Staff recommended approval. No public 
testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement located at the Northeast Corner of Stolley 
Park School Property (School District of Grand Island). Utilities Director Tim Luchsinger 
reported that acquisition of a utility easement located at the northeast corner of Stolley Park 
School property was needed in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair 
water lines and public fire hydrant for the purpose to provide a new public fire hydrant. Staff 
recommended approval. No public testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement located at 1220 S. Gunbarrel Road 
(Christopher & Natalie Meister). Utilities Director Tim Luchsinger reported that acquisition of a 
utility easement located at 1220 S. Gunbarrel Road was needed in order to have access to install, 
upgrade, maintain, and repair power appurtenances, including lines and transformers for the 
purpose of correcting the easement on Lot Two (2), Paradise Lake Estates Fourth Subdivision. 
Staff recommended approval. No public testimony was heard. 
 



Page 3, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement located at the Northeast Corner of Starr 
School Property (School District of Grand Island). Utilities Director Tim Luchsinger reported 
that acquisition of a utility easement located at the northeast corner of Starr School property was 
needed in order to have access to install, upgrade, maintain, and repair a water line and fire 
hydrant for the purpose to provide a new public fire hydrant. Staff recommended approval. No 
public testimony was heard. 
 
Public Hearing on Acquisition of Utility Easement located at 5112 S. Antelope Drive (Rich & 
Sons Camper Sales). Utilities Director Tim Luchsinger reported that acquisition of a utility 
easement located at 5112 S. Antelope Drive was needed in order to have access to install, 
upgrade, maintain, and repair power appurtenances, including lines and transformers for the 
purpose of locating a pad mounted transformer, electrical conduits and cable to serve the 
expanded facility of Rich and Sons Camper Sales. Staff recommended approval. No public 
testimony was heard. 
 
RESOLUTION: 
 
#2011-258 – Consideration of Approving the IBEW (Service/Clerical) Labor Agreement. 
Human Resources Director Brenda Sutherland reported that this contract was for one year with a 
1.75% wage increase and a ten cent shift differential for the position of Public Safety Dispatcher 
for hours worked between 3:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Other changes were the addition of the 
Community Development Specialist, renaming the GIS Specialist to GIS Coordinator, medical 
leave to care for immediate family members increased from forty hours to eighty hours, 
grandchildren were moved from non- immediate family to immediate family in the Bereavement 
Leave policy, and temporary Disability was more defined to match the language commonly used 
in other IBEW contracts. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the non-binding arbitration and how it compared to other cities. 
Ms. Sutherland stated typically discipline was not compared with other cities and this was 
comparable to other contracts the City had. Explained were the non-binding arbitration and the 
additional time this step would take. 
 
Motion by Ramsey, second by Donaldson to approve Resolution #2011-258. Upon roll call vote, 
all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
IBEW representatives Dan Quick and Larry Grim were present to sign the IBEW Labor 
Agreement along with Mayor Vavricek. 
 
ORDINANCES: 
 
Councilmember Gilbert moved “that the statutory rules requiring ordinances to be read by title 
on three different days are suspended and that ordinances numbered: 
 
 #9318 – Consideration of Approving FY 2011-2012 Annual Single City Budget, The 

Annual Appropriations Bill Including Addendum #1 
 #9319 – Consideration of Amendments to Chapter 13 of the Grand Island City Code 

Relative to Occupation Tax for Downtown Improvement and Parking District No. 1 



Page 4, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

 #9320 – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #4, South 
Locust Street from Stolley Park Road to Fonner Park Road 

 #9321 – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #6, Second 
Street 

 #9322 – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #7, South 
Locust from Stolley Park Road to Highway 34 

 #9323 (A) – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #8, 
Downtown 

 #9324 – Consideration of Creation of Sanitary Sewer District No. 529; Westwood Park 
Subdivision 

 #9325 – Consideration of Granting a Temporary Construction Easement to Burlington 
Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) on City Owned Property Located West of Webb Road and 
North of BNSF Railroad Tracks 

 #9326 – Consideration of Salary Ordinance 
 
be considered for passage on the same day upon reading by number only and that the City Clerk 
be permitted to call out the number of these ordinances on second reading and then upon final 
passage and call for a roll call vote on each reading and then upon final passage.” 
Councilmember Ramsey second the motion. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
 #9326 – Consideration of Salary Ordinance 
 
Human Resources Brenda Sutherland reported that Ordinance #9326 would allow for the IBEW 
Service/Clerical Labor Agreement previously adopted and make two corrections to the previous 
Salary Ordinance. 
 
Motion by Donaldson, second by Dugan to approve Ordinance #9326. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9326 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, Councilmember’s Carney, Niemann, 
Ramsey, Gilbert, Nickerson, Donaldson, and Dugan voted aye. Councilmember’s Haase and 
Gericke voted no. Motion adopted. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9326 on final passage. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, Councilmember’s Carney, Niemann, 
Ramsey, Gilbert, Nickerson, Donaldson, and Dugan voted aye. Councilmember’s Haase and 
Gericke voted no. Motion adopted. 
 
Mayor Vavricek: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinance #9326 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by law.  
 
 #9318 – Consideration of Approving FY 2011-2012 Annual Single City Budget, The 

Annual Appropriations Bill Including Addendum #1 
 
City Administrator Mary Lou Brown highlighted the changes to the 2011 forecast and 2012 
ending cash balances. Public Works Director John Collins presented a PowerPoint answering 
questions from Council regarding the Wastewater budget. 
 



Page 5, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

Discussion was held regarding the valuation, mill levy, and programs through Program 
Prioritization.  
 
Motion by Dugan, second by Nickerson to approve Ordinance #9318. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9318 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, Councilmember’s Niemann, 
Nickerson, Donaldson, Dugan and Gericke voted aye. Councilmember’s Haase, Carney, 
Ramsey, and Gilbert voted no. Mayor Vavricek cast the sixth and deciding vote to approve. 
Motion adopted. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9318 on final passage. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, Councilmember’s Niemann, 
Nickerson, Donaldson, Dugan and Gericke voted aye. Councilmember’s Haase, Carney, 
Ramsey, and Gilbert voted no. Mayor Vavricek cast the sixth and deciding vote to approve. 
Motion adopted. 
 
Mayor Vavricek: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinance #9318 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by law.  
 
 #9319 – Consideration of Amendments to Chapter 13 of the Grand Island City Code 

Relative to Occupation Tax for Downtown Improvement and Parking District No. 1 
 
City Administrator Mary Lou Brown stated this item related to the aforementioned Public 
Hearing. 
 
Motion by Gilbert, second by Gericke to approve Ordinance #9319. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9319 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9319 on final passage. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Mayor Vavricek: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinance #9319 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by law.  
 
 #9320 – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #4, South 

Locust Street from Stolley Park Road to Fonner Park Road 
 #9321 – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #6, Second 

Street 
 #9322 – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #7, South 

Locust from Stolley Park Road to Highway 34 
 #9323 (A) – Consideration of Assessments for Business Improvement District #8, 

Downtown 
 
Motion by Ramsey, second by Niemann to approve Ordinances #9230, #9321, #9322, #9323. 
 



Page 6, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

City Clerk:  Ordinances #9320, #9321, #9322, and #9323 on first reading. All those in favor of 
the passage of these ordinances on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all 
voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinances #9320, #9321, #9322, and #9323 on final passage. All those in favor of 
the passage of these ordinances on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all 
voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Mayor Vavricek: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinances #9320, #9321, #9322, and #9323 are declared to be lawfully adopted upon 
publication as required by law.  
 
City Attorney Robert Sivick stated Ordinance #9323 needed to be clarified as to which percent 
was approved, either the 70% - (A) or the 100% - (B). 
 
Motion by Gilbert, second by Niemann to clarify Ordinance #9323 (A) be approved. Upon roll 
call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
 #9324 – Consideration of Creation of Sanitary Sewer District No. 529; Westwood Park 

Subdivision 
 
Public Works Director John Collins reported that Ordinance #9324 would create Sanitary Sewer 
District No. 529 in Westwood Park Subdivision. A petition was received for the sanitary sewer 
signed by 22 residents 
 
Motion by Dugan, second by Donaldson to approve Ordinance #9324. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9324 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9324 on final passage. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Mayor Vavricek: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinance #9324 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by law.  
 
 #9325 – Consideration of Granting a Temporary Construction Easement to Burlington 

Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) on City Owned Property Located West of Webb Road and 
North of BNSF Railroad Tracks 

 
Regional Planning Director Chad Nabity reported that Ordinance #9325 would provide for a 
temporary construction easement with BNSF for a double track expansion.  
 
Motion by Gilbert, second by Donaldson to approve Ordinance #9325. 
 
City Clerk:  Ordinance #9325 on first reading. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on first reading, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 



Page 7, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

City Clerk:  Ordinance #9325 on final passage. All those in favor of the passage of this ordinance 
on final passage, answer roll call vote. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Mayor Vavricek: By reason of the roll call votes on first reading and then upon final passage, 
Ordinance #9325 is declared to be lawfully adopted upon publication as required by law.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:. Consent agenda item G16 was removed for further discussion. Motion by 
Ramsey, second by Dugan to approve the Consent Agenda excluding itemG-16. Upon roll call 
vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
Approving Minutes of August 23, 2011 City Council Regular Meeting. 
 
Approving Minutes of August 25, 2011 City Council Special Meeting.  
 
#2011-228 – Approving Interlocal Cooperative Agreement for School Resource Officer (SRO) 
with the Grand Island Public Schools. 
 
#2011-229 – Approving Police Service Contract with Hall County Housing Authority (HCHA). 
 
#2011-230 – Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement located at the Southwest Corner of 
Intersection of Belfry Blvd. & August Parkway (Indianhead Golf Club). 
 
#2011-231 – Approving Acquisition of Utility easement located at the Northeast Corner of 
Stolley Park School Property (School District of Grand Island). 
 
#2011-232 – Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement located at 1220 S. Gunbarrel Road 
(Christopher & Natalie Meister). 
 
#2011-233 – Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement located at the Northeast Corner of Starr 
School Property (School District of Grand Island. 
 
#2011-234 – Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement located at 5112 S. Antelope Drive (Rich 
& Sons Camper Sales). 
 
#2011-235 – Approving Change Order #1 for Water Main Project 2011-W-1 Water Main 
Replacement – 7th Street, Elm to Clark, and Clark from 7th to 9th Street with Diamond 
Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska for an increase of $23,418.38 and a Revised 
Contract Amount of $230,325.70. 
 
#2011-236 – Approving the Boiler & Machinery Insurance for the Utilities Department for 2011-
2012 with Factory Mutual Insurance Company of St. Louis, Missouri in an Amount of 
$382,936.00 and Terrorism Insurance Coverage in an Amount of $22,372.00. 
 
#2011-237 – Approving Bid Award for Building Reconstruction – Lift Station No. 4; Project No. 
2011-S-4 with Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of 
$38,372.80. 
 



Page 8, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

#2011-238 – Approving Union Pacific Railroad/Elm Street Crossing Closure Agreement with 
Union Pacific Railroad, Nebraska Department of Roads, and Gavilon.  
 
#2011-239 – Approving Supplemental No. 1 to the Agreement with Nebraska Department of 
Roads for the State Street and Capital Avenue Connector Trail. 
 
#2011-240 – Approving Change Order No. 1 for Asphalt Maintenance Project 2011-AC-1 with 
J.I.L. Asphalt Paving Co. of Grand Island, Nebraska for an increase of $22,788.00 and a Revised 
Contract Amount of $328,252.36. 
 
#2011-242 – Approving Bid Award for Grand Island Quiet Zone Project No. 2012-QZ-1 with 
Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $247,718.25. 
 
#2011-243 – Approving Change Order No. 2 on Project WWTP-2010-3 for Aeration Basin 
Improvements at the Wastewater Treatment Plant with Oakview of Red Oak, Iowa for an 
increase of $397,897.00 and a Revised Contract Amount of $3,974,149.00. 
 
#2011-244 – Approving Bid Award for Moores Creek Drain Extension – Old Potash Crossing; 
Drainage Project No. 2008-D-2 with Midlands Contracting, Inc. of Kearney, Nebraska in an 
Amount of $166,805.00. 
 
#2011-245 – Approving Bid Award for 2011-MH REHAB-1 Sanitary Sewer Manhole 
Rehabilitation Project with Midlands Contracting, Inc. of Kearney, Nebraska in an Amount of 
$151,809.00. 
 
#2011-246 – Approving Application for 2011 Transportation Enhancement Program Grant for 
the Capital Avenue – Webb road to Broadwell Avenue Trail in an Amount of $173,544.78. 
 
#2011-247 – Approving Application for 2011 Transportation Enhancement Program Grant for 
the Broadwell Avenue – Capital Avenue to Eagle Scout Park Trail in an Amount of $178,091.00. 
 
#2011-248 – Approving Application for 2011 Transportation Enhancement Program Grant for 
the Mormon Island Trail in an Amount of $345,206.00. 
 
#2011-249 – Approving Bid Award for the St. Joseph Trail Reconstruction – 2011 with 
Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $168,769.25. 
 
#2011-250 – Approving Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement at the Southwest 
Corner of Capital Avenue and Sky Park Road (Procon Development Company, L.L.C.). 
 
#2011-251 – Approving Bid Award for the Southwest Drainage 2011-D-1 Project Pipe with 
Rinker Materials of Valley, Nebraska in an Amount of $199,728.10. 
 
#2011-252 – Approving Water Main Extension Agreement with the Union Pacific Railroad 
Company.  
 
#2011-253 – Approving 2011-2012 Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Grant in an Amount of 
$46,110.00. 



Page 9, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

 
#2011-254 – Approving Contract with The Grand Island Independent for Newspaper 
Advertisement. 
 
#2011-255 – Approving Annual Renewal for Health and Dental Contract with Regional Care, 
Inc. (RCI). 
 
#2011-241 – Approving Bid Award for Submersible Sewage Pumps at Wastewater Treatment 
Plant with Electric Pump of Des Moines, Iowa in an Amount of $99,472.00. Discussion was held 
regarding the disparity in the bid numbers. Public Works Director John Collins explained the bid 
process. This was a re-bid and bidders met specifications. 
 
Motion by Nickerson, second by Carney to approve Resolution #2011-241. Upon roll call vote, 
all voted aye. 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
 
#2011-227 – Consideration of Approving 2011-2012 Fee Schedule. This item was referred from 
the August 25, 2011 City Council meeting. Discussion was held regard the cost recover of these 
fees as they related to programs. 
 
Motion by Ramsey, second by Donaldson to approve Resolution #2011-227. Upon roll call vote, 
all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
#2011-256 – Consideration of Approving General Property, Parking District #2 (Ramp) and 
Community Redevelopment Authority Tax Request. This item related to the aforementioned 
Public Hearing. Discussion was held regarding the increase in taxes on property owners. 
 
Motion by Donaldson, second by Dugan to approve Resolution #2011-256. Upon roll call vote, 
Councilmember’s Carney, Niemann, Nickerson, Donaldson, Dugan, and Gericke voted aye. 
Councilmember’s Haase, Ramsey, and Gilbert voted no. Motion adopted. 
 
#2011-257 – Consideration of Approving 1% Increase to the Lid Limit. City Administrator Mary 
Lou Brown reported that in 1998 the Nebraska State Legislature passed LB 989 which put a cap 
on the amount of restricted revenues a political subdivision could budget for. The restricted 
revenues that the City of Grand Island included in the budget were Property Taxes, Local Option 
Sales Tax, Motor Vehicle Tax, Highway Allocation and State Aid. Of those restricted revenues, 
property tax was the only revenue that the City could control. The increase in restricted funds 
authority using the 1% additional amount and the population growth (when available) was not an 
increase in budgeted revenues. It only provided the ability to increase restricted revenues, 
particularly property tax, in a future year if necessary.  
 
Discussion was held regarding the legislative intent to keep a lid on property tax. Human 
Resources Director Brenda Sutherland commented on CIR issues concerning legislative bills 
regarding available funds to pay comparables. Comments were made by council concerning the 
amount that could be raised by the 1% increase to the lid.  
 



Page 10, City Council Regular Meeting, September 13, 2011 
 
 
 

Motion by Gilbert, second by Gericke to approve Resolution #2011-257. Upon roll call vote, 
Councilmember’s Niemann and Gericke voted aye. Councilmember’s Haase, Carney, Ramsey, 
Gilbert, Nickerson, Donaldson, and Dugan vote no. Motion failed. 
 
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS: 
 
Motion by Dugan, second by Nickerson to approve the Claims for the period of August 24, 2011 
through September 13, 2011, for a total amount of $4,890,010.92. Unanimously approved. 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION: Comments were made concerning the purpose of 
Executive Sessions and the need for them. Motion by Gilbert, second by Ramsey to adjourn to 
Executive Session at 8:37 p.m. for the purpose of union negotiation updates with IBEW. Upon 
roll call vote, Councilmember’s Haase, Carney, Niemann, Ramsey, Gilbert, Nickerson, 
Donaldson, and Dugan voted aye. Councilmember Gericke voted no. Motion adopted. 
 
Councilmember Carney was absent at 8:37 p.m. 
 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION: Motion by Gilbert, second by Gericke to return to Regular 
Session at 9:50 p.m. Upon roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
RaNae Edwards 
City Clerk 



Item G2
Approving Appointment of Eric D. Edwards to the Business 
Improvement District #8 Board
The Mayor has submitted the appointment of Eric D. Edwards to the Business Improvement 
District #8 Board to replace Mike Wooden. This appointment would become effective 
immediately upon approval by the City Council and would expire on September 30, 2013.

 Approval is recommended.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council



Item G3
Approving Re-Appointment of Tom Gdowski to the Community 
Redevelopment Authority Board
The Mayor has submitted the re-appointment of Tom Gdowski to the Community 
Redevelopment Authority Board. This appointment would become effective October 1, 2011 
upon approval by the City Council and would expire on September 30, 2016.

 Approval is recommended.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council



Item G4
Approving Re-Appointment of Bob Loewenstein to the Animal 
Advisory Board
The Mayor has submitted the re-appointment of Bob Loewenstein to the Animal Advisory 
Board. This appointment would become effective October 9, 2011 upon approval by the City 
Council and would expire on October 8, 2014.

 Approval is recommended.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council



Item G5
Approving Garbage Permits for Clark Brothers Sanitation, 
Heartland Disposal, Mid-Nebraska Disposal, Inc. and Refuse 
Permits for Full Circle, Inc. and O’Neill Transportation and 
Equipment
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Garbage and Refuse Haulers Permits 
 
Item #’s:  G-5 
 
Presenter(s): RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 
 

Background  
 
Grand Island City Code Section 17-15 allows for the Collection, Transportation, and 
Disposal of Garbage and/or Refuse. These permits are effective October 1 through 
September 30 of each calendar year. 
 

Discussion 
 

 
The following businesses have submitted applications for renewal for 2011/2012: 
 Clark Brothers Sanitation, 3080 West 2nd Street  Garbage 
 Heartland Disposal, 2423 W. Old Lincoln Hwy.   Garbage 
 Mid-Nebraska Disposal, Inc., 3080 West 2nd Street  Garbage 
 Full Circle, Inc., 4331 Juergen Road    Refuse 
 O’Neill Transportation and Equipment, 558 S. Stuhr Rd. Refuse 
 
All City Code requirements have been met by these businesses. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 



 
1. Approve the renewal for garbage/refuse permits. 
2. Disapprove or deny the renewals. 
3. Modify the renewals to meet the wishes of the Council. 
4. Table the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the renewals for 
garbage/refuse permits for 2011/2012. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the renewal for garbage/refuse permits for 2011/2012. 

































Item G6
#2011-259 - Approving Final Plat and Subdivision Agreement for 
Bosselville Third Subdivision
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Regional Planning Commission 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Bosselville Third Subdivision – Final Plat 
 
Item #’s:  G-6 
 
Presenter(s): Chad Nabity AICP, Regional Planning Director 
 
 

Background  
 

This property is located north of Interstate 80 and west of US Hwy 281, in the two mile 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of Grand Island, in Hall County, Nebraska. Consisting of (3 
Lots) and 34.12 acres. 

 
Discussion 

 
The revised final plat for Bosselville Third Subdivision was considered by the Regional 
Planning Commission at the September 7, 2011 meeting. A motion was made by Ruge 
and seconded by Hayes to approve the plat as presented. A roll call vote was taken and 
the motion passed with 8 members present (Amick, Ruge, Hayes, Reynolds, Haskins, 
Monter, O’Neill and Snodgrass) voting in favor no member present abstaining. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the final plat as presented. 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Motion to approve as recommended. 



 



Bosselman Incorporated 
Developer/Owner 
3123 W Stolley Park Rd. 
Grand Island NE  68801 
 
To create 2 lots north of Interstate 80 and west of US Hwy 281, in the two mile 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of Grand Island, in Hall County, Nebraska. 
Size: 34.12 acres 
Zoning :  B2 General Business Zone 
Road Access: County Road/State Road 
Water Public: City water is not available 
Sewer Public: City sewer is not available 
 

 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-259 
 
 WHEREAS, Bosselman Incorporated, being the owner of the land described hereon,  
have caused same to be surveyed, subdivided, platted and designated as BOSSELVILLE THIRD 
SUBDIVISION, to be laid out into 3 lots, a tract of land consisting of Lots 1, 2 and 3, Block 1 of 
Bosselville Subdivision located in the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section 13 and the Northeast 
Quarter (NE1/4) of Section 24, and vacated Bosselman Avenue Right of Way located in the Northeast 
Quarter Of Section 24, All Located In Township Ten (10) North, Range Ten (10) West of the 6th 
P.M., in Hall County Nebraska, and has caused a plat thereof to be acknowledged by it; and 
 
  WHEREAS, a copy of the plat of such subdivision has been presented to the Boards of 
Education of the various school districts in Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska, as required by 
Section 19-923, R.R.S. 1943; and 

 
 WHEREAS, a form of subdivision agreement has been agreed to between the owner of 
the property and the City of Grand Island. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the form of subdivision agreement herein 
before described is hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute such agreement 
on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the final plat of OLSON SUBDIVISION, as made 
out, acknowledged, and certified, is hereby approved by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, 
Nebraska, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the approval and acceptance of such plat by the 
City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G7
#2011-260 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 502 East 
Capital Avenue - Iglesia De Dios Eben-Ezer
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-1.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-260 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  Iglesia 
De Dios Eben-Ezer to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, remove, and 
operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and transformers; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 27, 2011, for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of an easement located in Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly 
described as follows: 
 

Commencing at the southwest corner of Smith Acres Subdivision, located in the City of 
Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska; thence northerly along the westerly line of said Smith 
Acres Subdivision, a distance of thirty three (33.0) feet to a point on the northerly right-of-
way line of Capital Avenue, being the ACTUAL Point of Beginning; thence continuing 
northerly along the westerly line of said Smith Acres Subdivision, a distance of ninety (90.0) 
feet; thence westerly, parallel with the northerly right-of-way line of said Capital Avenue, a 
distance of twenty five (25.0) feet; thence southerly and parallel with the westerly line of 
said Smith Acres Subdivision, a distance of ninety (90.0) feet to a point on the northerly 
right-of-way line of said Capital Avenue; thence easterly along the northerly right-of-way 
line of said Capital Avenue, a distance of twenty five (25.0) feet to the said Point of 
Beginning.  

The above-described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 0.052 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated 8/24/2011, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Iglesia De Dios Eben-Ezer, on the above-described 
tract of  land. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G8
#2011-261 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 2627 W. 
Highway 30 - Floor to Ceiling Store - Narber
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-2.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



 

 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-261 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  Jim and 
Donna Narber, to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, remove, and 
operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and transformers; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 27, 2011, for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of an easement located in Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly 
described as follows: 
 

Commencing at the southeast corner of Lot Two (2), Commercial Industrial Park Second 
Subdivision; thence southwesterly along the southerly line of said Lot Two (2), a distance of 
one hundred thirty six (136.0) feet to the ACTUAL Point of Beginning; thence deflecting 
right 90°00’00” and running northwesterly, a distance of forty six (46.0) feet.  

The above-described easement and right-of-way containing 920 square feet, more or less, 
as shown on the plat dated 8/31 /2011, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference,  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Jim and Donna Narber, on the above-described tract of 
 land. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G9
#2011-262 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 3405 
South Blaine Street - McCallum
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-3.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



 

 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-262 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  Kurt 
and Shirley McCallum, to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, remove, 
and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and transformers; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 27, 2011, for the purpose of 
discussing the proposed acquisition of an easement located in Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly 
described as follows: 

 

Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot Three (3), Lake Heritage Second Subdivision; 
thence northeasterly on an assumed bearing of N33°42’52”E, a distance of fifty eight and 
seventy four hundredths (58.74) feet; thence N88°10’02”E, a distance of fifty eight and 
forty nine hundredths (58.49) feet; thence S71°12’48”E, a distance of sixty five and 
thirteen hundredths (65.13) feet; thence S52°21’21”E, a distance of one hundred eighty six 
and sixty four hundredths (186.64) feet to a point on the southerly line of said Lot Three 
(3).  The side lines of the above described tract shall be prolonged or shortened as required 
to terminate on the boundary of Grantor’s property line.  

The above-described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 0.168 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated 9/9 /2011, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference,  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Kurt and Shirley McCallum, on the above-described 
tract of  land. 
 

- - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G10
#2011-263 - Approving Bid Award for Pipe Painting and 
Insulation at Platte Generation Station
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From: Timothy G. Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 Jason Eley, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Meeting Date: September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Pipe Painting and Insulation 
 
Item #’s: G-10 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 

The project at the Platte Generating Station involves maintenance on several cold water 
lines ranging in size from 1 inch to 12 inches in diameter. These pipes are used to provide 
cooling water for equipment throughout the plant. Due to the temperature differential 
between the cold water in the pipes and the outside warm air during the summer months, 
humidity in the air condenses on the surface of the pipes causing a thin film of water, or 
‘sweat’, to accumulate. Over the years this moisture has caused the outside of the pipes to 
begin to rust. Rust is the deterioration of the iron in the pipe due to a reaction with 
dissolved oxygen in the water, which can lead to complete failure of the pipe. Also, the 
‘sweat’ on the outside of the pipes drips onto the floor during these periods and creates a 
potential slip hazard for employees. To prevent a complete replacement of these cold 
water lines in the future at a substantial cost and to assist in avoiding an employee injury, 
plant engineering staff reviewed corrective methods. After consulting with paint and 
insulating contractors, it was determined the best method for fixing all aforementioned 
problems is to clean, paint, insulate, and install metal jacketing on these pipes in 
accordance with the methods listed in the detailed specifications of this project. 
 

Discussion 
 

The specifications for the Pipe Painting and Insulation were advertised and issued for bid 
in accordance with the City purchasing code. Bids were publicly opened on September 
13, 2011. Specifications were sent to five potential bidders and responses were received 
as listed below. The engineer’s estimate for this project was $100,000.00. 



 Bidder      Bid Price 
 O’Neill Transportation and Equipment LLC, Grand Island, NE $    52,965.00 
 F&H Insulation Sales & Service, Kechi, KS $    60,276.23 

 
The bids were reviewed by plant engineering staff. The bid from O’Neill Transportation 
and Equipment, LLC, included sales tax on materials and labor. Sales tax is required only 
on materials for this application and their bid price was revised accordingly for a total 
adjusted bid price of $50,655.00. Both bids are otherwise compliant with the 
specifications and less than the engineer’s estimate. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve. 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee. 
3. Postpone the issue to future date. 
4. Take no action on the issue. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council award the Contract for Pipe Painting 
and Insulation to O’Neill Transportation and Equipment, LLC, of Grand Island, 
Nebraska, as the low responsive bidder, with the bid price of $50,655.00. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the bid award of $50,655.00 from O’Neill Transportation and 
Equipment for the Pipe Painting and Insulation as submitted. 



 

Purchasing Division of Legal Department 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  September 13, 2011 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
FOR:     Pipe Painting and Insulation 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Utilities 
 
ESTIMATE:    $100,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   520 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  August 25, 2011 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 5 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  F & H Insulation Sales & Services, Inc. O’Neill Transportation & Equipment 
   Kechi, KS     Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  Nationwide Mutual Insurance Co.  Western Surety Co. 
Exceptions:  Noted      None 
 
Bid Price: 
Materials:  $27,571.41     $16,500.00 
Labor:   $30,774.82     $33,000.00 
Sales Tax:  $  1,930.00     $  3,465.00 
Total Bid:  $60,276.23     $52,965.00 
 
 
 
cc: Tim Luchsinger, Utilities Director    Bob Smith, Assist. Utilities Director 
 Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent     Pat Gericke, Utilities Admin. Assist. 
 Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator    Karen Nagel, Utilities Secretary 
 
              P1504 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-263 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Electric Department invited sealed bids for Pipe Painting and 
Insulation at the Platte Generating Station; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 13, 2011, bids were received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, O’Neill Transportation and Equipment, LLC of Grand Island, Nebraska, 
submitted a bid in accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids and plans and specifications and 
all other statutory requirements contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $50,655.00; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the bid of O’Neill Transportation and Equipment, LLC, is less than the 
estimate for Pipe Painting and Insulation at the Platte Generating Station. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of O’Neill Transportation and Equipment, 
LLC, in the amount of  $50,655.00, for Pipe Painting and Insulation at Platte Generating Station is hereby 
approved as the lowest responsible bid. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G11
#2011-264 - Approving Support Nebraska Challenge to EPA Cross 
State Air Pollution Rule
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:  Nebraska Challenge to Cross State Air Pollution Rule 
 
Item #’s:  G-11 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

In 2005, the Environmental Protection Agency issued the Clean Air Interstate Rule 
(CAIR), which imposed reductions in sulfur dioxide (SO2) and nitrogen oxides (NOX) in 
twenty-five states in the eastern half of the country. This rule was later found by a court 
ruling to have flaws and sent back to the EPA for review, but left in place the CAIR 
requirements on a temporary basis. 
 
In 2010, EPA proposed the Cross State Transport Rule (CSAPR) to replace CAIR, which 
added Nebraska and Texas to the original twenty-five states. The proposed rule reduced 
NOX emissions for Nebraska electric generating units by about 9.4% on an annual basis, 
which was felt to be an attainable number without significant impact on generation by the 
State’s electric utilities and the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality. Many 
utilities determined that this amount of reduction could be achieved by changes in 
operations and would not require plant capital modifications. 
 
On July 6, 2011, EPA issued the final CSAPR that required a reduction 46% lower than 
previously proposed for Nebraska NOX emissions with compliance effective January 1, 
2012. Utilities Department staff has estimated that it will take approximately $4 million 
in capital modifications for the Platte Generating Station to reduce NOX emissions to the 
final CSAPR emission levels allocated for Grand Island with a minimum twelve months 
for procurement and installation of the equipment. 
 
The traditional approach for projects of this scope would involve an in-depth engineering 
analysis of solutions by Department engineering staff or consultants with separate 
specifications issued for bids to equipment suppliers and installation contractors. The 
expedited procurement that will be needed to complete the project in one year will 
require a “turn-key” approach, which will assign a greater responsibility of design to an 
equipment contractor, who is also responsible for installation. This type of approach can 



have undesired implications on the final cost and finished product of the project. In 
addition, the Department has budgeted an additional $1.3 million for additional 
generation at the Burdick Station using natural gas to offset less generating capacity at 
Platte until the new emission control equipment can be installed. 
 

Discussion 
 

The Nebraska Attorney General opposes the implementation schedule of the CSAPR and 
is considering litigation to stay its implementation. The Attorney General’s position is 
based on the new rule having a direct and negative impact on the electric ratepayers of 
Nebraska and it may cause them irreparable harm. As a result of Nebraska being a public 
power state, the electric ratepayers are also the owners of the utilities, and they will either 
be forced to raise rates or reduce cash reserves because of the adverse consequences of 
the new rule. 
 
This position has the support of the electric generating utilities in Nebraska. The Utilities 
Department recommends that the City also indicate support for the Attorney General’s 
efforts to delay implementation of the CSAPR through passage of a resolution.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution supporting a 
stay of implementation of the Cross State Air Pollution Rule. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution supporting a stay of the Cross State Air Pollution Rule. 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-264 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 6th, 2011, the Environmental Protection Agency issued the final Cross 
State Air Pollution Rule setting air emission levels for Nebraska electric generating utilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this final rule placed unforeseen limits of sulfur dioxides and nitrogen oxides in 
an unreasonable timeframe upon Nebraska electric utilities including the City of Grand Island; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this rule will cause a direct and immediate negative impact with possible 
irreparable harm upon the citizens and businesses who are the ratepayers of the City of Grand Island and 
the State of Nebraska; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that it supports a challenge of  the Cross State Air 
Pollution Rule and that a stay should be granted to allow further  review to consider the impact of this rule 
on the State of Nebraska. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G12
#2011-265 - Approving Certificate of Final Completion and Setting 
Date for Board of Equalization for Water Main District 456T - 
Engleman Road - 13th Street
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:   Approving Certificate of Final Completion and Setting of 

Board of Equalization Date for Water Main District 456T 
– Engleman Road from 13th Street to Old Potash Hwy, 
and East of Engleman Road for 600 Feet 

 
Item #’s:  G-12 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 456T is along Engleman Road from 13th Street to Old Potash 
Highway and in Old Potash Highway, east of Engleman Road for 600 feet. The 
construction installed a 20” diameter main along the westerly side of the system to 
resolve hydraulic deficiencies to the northwest side of the City.  
 

Discussion 
 

The project was completed by the Diamond Engineering Company, of Grand Island, in 
accordance with the terms, conditions, and stipulations of the contract, plans and 
specifications. The final contract amount was $489,989.48. The Engineer’s Certificate of 
Final Completion is attached. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council accept the Certificate of Final 
Completion, and set the date for a Board of Equalization to be held on November, 8, 
2011, to determine benefits for the properties within the boundary of Water Main District 
456T.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to accept the Certificate of Final Completion, and set the date for a Board of 
Equalization to be held on November 8, 2011. 



City of Grand Island
Utilities Department

Reservoir

Parcel

Pipe (diameter)

6 - 8"

10 - 14"

16 - 20"

24 +

Capital Ave W

13th St W

Old Potash Hwy

Airport Rd

Watermain District 456T, 20"

Roger's
Reservoir

Stolley Park Rd W

Husker Highway

Watermain District 456T









 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-265 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer/Public Works Director for the City of Grand Island has issued a 
Certificate of Final Completion for Water Main District No. 456T, located along Engleman Road from 13th 
Street to Old Potash Highway, and in Old Potash Highway, east of Engleman Road for 600 feet, certifying 
that the Diamond Engineering Company, of Grand Island, Nebraska, under contract awarded November 
23, 2010, has completed such project according to the terms, conditions, and stipulations for such 
improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Public Works Director recommends the acceptance of the district; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor concurs with the Public Works Director’s recommendation, and 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that: 
 
1. The City Engineer/Public Works Director’s Certificate of Final Completion for Water  

 Main District No. 456T is hereby confirmed. 
 
2. The City Council will sit as a Board of Equalization on November 8, 2011 to determine  
 benefits and set tap fees for Water Main District No. 456T. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G13
#2011-266 - Approving Certificate of Final Completion for Water 
Main Project  2011-W-1  -  7th Street between Elm and Clark 
Streets, and Clark Street from 7th to 9th Street
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:  Certificate of Final Completion – Water Main Project 

2011-W-1   (7th Street between Elm Street and Clark 
Street, and Clark Street from 7th to 9th Street) 

 
Item #’s:  G-13 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main Project 2011-W-1 installed an 8” diameter ductile- iron water main and 
service lines along 7th Street between Elm Street and Clark Street, and in Clark Street 
from 7th Street to 9th Street. The construction replaced a 4” water line that had been in 
service for over 100 years. Partial funding was provided through a Community 
Development Block Grant from the Nebraska Department of Economic Development. 
 

Discussion 
 

The project was completed by the Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island in 
accordance with the terms, conditions, and stipulations of the contract, plans and 
specifications. The final contract amount was $230,325.70. The Engineer’s Certificate of 
Final Completion is attached. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

Recommendation 



 
City Administration recommends that the Council accept the Certificate of Final 
Completion for Water Main Project 2011-W-1. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to accept the Certificate of Final Completion for Water Main Project 2011-W-1. 



City of Grand Island
Utilities Department

Pipe (diameter)

6 - 8"

10 - 14"

16 - 20"

24 +

Water Main Project 2011-W-1

Replace Services

Replace 6" pipe

Replace 4" pipe
with 8" pipe

Replace 4" pipe
with 8" pipe









 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-266 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer/Public Works Director for the City of Grand Island has 
issued a Certificate of Final Completion for Water Main Project 2011-W- 1 (7th Street between Elm Street 
and Clark Street, and Clark Street from 7th to 9th Street) certifying that the Diamond Engineering Company 
of Grand Island, Nebraska, under contract, has completed the water main installation portion of such 
project according to the terms, conditions, and stipulations for such improvements; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Public Works Director recommends the acceptance of the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor concurs with the recommendations of the Utilities Director and the 
Public Works Director. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Certificate of Final Completion for Water Main 
Project 2011-W-1 is hereby accepted. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G14
#2011-267 - Approving Four Railroad Crossing Agreements with 
BNSF Railroad (East Stolley Park, Mile Post 92.3, Mile Post 92.56, 
and Shady Bend Crossings)
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Utility Relocations for Burlington Northern Santa Fe 

Railroad 
 
Item #’s:  G-14 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

 
Background 

 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad (BNSF) is in the process of obtaining land for the 
construction of a second track through Grand Island. As part of the process, the railroad 
is requiring all utility companies that are currently either in their property or that cross 
their property, to move or remove the Utilities. BNSF has proposed to pay for a part of 
that relocation for portions of the utilities outside of their easement. 
 

Discussion 
 

The first four relocations that require agreements to be signed are at the East Stolley Park 
Crossing, Mile Post 92.3 secondary, Mile Post 92.56 secondary, and the Shady Bend 
Crossing. The agreement for the Stolley Park Crossing is for BNSF to pay the non-
betterment costs of moving the electric overhead lines, not to exceed $100,000. The 
crossing agreement at Shady Bend provides for BNSF to pay one third of the cost of the 
relocation, not to exceed $5,000.00. The agreements for the two secondary crossings at 
Mile Post 92.3 and Mile Post 92.56 provides for BNSF to pay 20% of actual costs, not to 
exceed $2,200.00 each. These percentages of the not-to-exceed payments are based on a 
proportion of the length of the crossing in the permit and the total length of the crossing 
relocation. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.   
 
The Council may: 



 
1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the agreements with BNSF to 
relocate the utility lines at Stolley Park Road, Mile Post 92.3, Mile Post 92.56, and Shady 
Bend Road crossings. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve agreements with BNSF to relocate utility lines at Stolley Park Road, 
Mile Post 92.3, Mile Post 92.56, and Shady Bend Road crossings. 



































































































































































 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 22, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-267 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad (BNSF) is in the process of obtaining 
land for construction of a second track through Grand Island; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a part of the process, BNSF is requiring all utilities that are currently either 
in their property, or cross their property to move or be removed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there are four relocations that are required; one at the East Stolley Park 
crossing, one at Mile Post 92.3, one at Mile Post 92.56 and one at the Shady Bend Crossing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the agreement for the Stolley Park Crossing is for BNSF to pay the non-
betterment costs of moving the electric overhead lines, approximately 20% of Mile Post 92.3, 
approximately 20% of Mile Post 92.56, and at the crossing at Shady Bend , to pay approximately one third 
of the cost of the relocation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Relocation Agreements between the City of 
Grand Island and Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad at Stolley Park Road, Milepost 92.3, Milepost 
92.56, and Shady Bend Road, are hereby approved. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G15
#2011-268 - Approving Agreement for Funding with the Crisis 
Center, Inc
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:  Approving Funding Contracts for Outside Agencies 
 
Item #’s:  G-15 thru G-22 
 
Presenter(s): Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
 

Background  
 
As part of the City’s budget process, Outside Agencies were asked to and submitted their 
budget requests. During the June 23, 2009 City Council meeting, Council agreed to a 
proposal suggested in 2008 that funding for charitable organizations be reduced to zero over 
a five year period from the 2009 funding level.  
 
The Clean Community System does not fall under the reduced funding proposal. The City is 
authorized to establish and provide for the support of any service, facility, or system required 
by the Integrated Solid Waste Management Act. The City has been providing funds to the 
Clean Community System since 1987.  
 

Discussion 
 

Resolutions #2011-268 through #2011-275 are agreements with these agencies to provide 
their services. No agreement is needed with the Central District Health Department, as there 
is a current inter-local agreement in place which details their services. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. The 
Council may: 
 

1.  Move to approve the contracts with the Outside Agencies 
2.  Postpone the issue to a future date  
3.  Modify the Resolution to meet the wishes of the Council 

 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the Outside Agency agreements. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the Funding Agreements for the Outside Agencies. 









 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 22, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-268 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by state law to contract with The Crisis Center, Inc., a 
non-profit agency, to provide services to victims of family violence and sexual assault; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a contract with The Crisis Center to provide such 
services to victims of family violence and sexual assault; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City shall provide funding to The Crisis Center in the amount of $4,800 
during fiscal year 2011-2012 for performing agreed upon services as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and The Crisis Center, 
Inc. to provide services to victims of family violence and sexual assault. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with The Crisis Center on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G16
#2011-269 - Approving Agreement for Funding with the Grand 
Island Area Council for International Visitors
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-269 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by state law to contract with the Grand Island Area 
Council For International Visitors, a non-profit agency, to provide cultural activities and home hospitality 
opportunities for foreign leaders, specialists and international scholars in promoting the various aspects of 
the Grand Island community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a contract with the Grand Island Area Council 
for International Visitors to provide such services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City provide funding to the Grand Island Area 
Council for International Visitors in the amount of $400 during fiscal year 2011-2012 for performing agreed 
upon services as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and the Grand Island 
Area Council for International Visitors to provide funding in the amount of $400 in support of cultural 
activities and home hospitality opportunities for foreign leaders, specialists and international scholars in 
promoting the various aspects of the Grand Island community. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with the Grand Island Area Council for International Visitors on behalf of the City of 
Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G17
#2011-270 - Approving Agreement for Funding with the 
Convention & Visitors Bureau
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-270 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by state law to contract with the Grand Island Hall 
County Convention and Visitors Bureau, a non-profit agency, to market and promote tourism and 
convention activities in the area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a contract with the Grand Island Hall County 
Convention and Visitors Bureau to provide such services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City provide funding to the Grand Island Hall 
County Convention and Visitors Bureau in the amount of $4,000 during the fiscal year 2011-2012 for 
performing agreed upon services as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and the Grand Island Hall 
County Convention and Visitors Bureau to provide funding in the amount of $4,000 in support of tourism 
and convention activities in the Grand Island area. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with the Grand Island Hall County Convention and Visitors Bureau on behalf of the 
City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G18
#2011-271 - Approving Agreement for Funding with Izaak Walton 
Kids Fishing Derby
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-171 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in June, 2011, the fourteenth annual “Izaak Walton Kids Fishing Derby” was 
held at the Nebraska Veterans Home Lake in Grand Island; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the goal of this event is to increase public awareness of fishing, to encourage 
youth to experience the sport first hand and to advocate an alternative activity to drugs and alcohol; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City agrees to pay the Fishing Derby $800 for performing agreed upon 
services during the 2011-2012 fiscal year as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and the Fishing Derby to 
perform services to increase public awareness of fishing, to encourage youth to experience the sport first 
hand and to advocate an alternative activity to drugs and alcohol. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with the Fishing Derby on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G19
#2011-272 - Approving Agreement for Funding with Hope Harbor
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-272 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by state law to contract with Hope Harbor, formerly 
known as Community Humanitarian Resource Center, a non-profit agency, to assist in the operation of a 
transitional homeless shelter, emergency services and referrals to the needy and other service providers in 
the Grand Island area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a contract with Hope Harbor to provide such 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City shall provide funding to Hope Harbor in the amount of $1,800 during 
fiscal year 2011-2012 for performing agreed upon services as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and Hope Harbor to 
assist in the operation of the transitional homeless shelter in Grand Island and to offer emergency services 
and referrals to the needy and other service providers in the Grand Island area. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with Hope Harbor on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G20
#2011-273 - Approving Agreement for Funding with the Grand 
Island Multicultural Coalition
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-273 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by state law to contract with The Multicultural Coalition, 
a non-profit agency, to provide for the needs of the increasingly culturally diverse city of Grand Island; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a contract with The Multicultural Coalition to 
provide a comprehensive service delivery center that serves new immigrants, reduces duplication of 
services, better utilizes the time of clients and service providers, eliminates barriers to services and stretches 
limited financial resources of service providers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City shall provide funding to The Multicultural Coalition in the amount of 
$4,000 during fiscal year 2011-2012 for performing agreed upon services as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and The Multicultural 
Coalition to provide services to the increasingly culturally diverse City of Grand Island. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with The Multicultural Coalition on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G21
#2011-274 - Approving Agreement for Funding with Senior 
Citizens Industries, Inc.
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council







 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-274 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized by state law to contract with Senior Citizens Industries, 
Inc., a Nebraska non-profit corporation, to provide the equipment, buildings, utilities and goods including 
food to provide services to elderly and handicapped individuals; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a contract with Senior Citizens Industries, Inc. to 
provide such services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City shall provide funding to Senior Citizens Industries in the amount of 
$6,000 during fiscal year 2011-2012 for performing agreed upon services as outlined in the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and Senior Citizen 
Industries, Inc. to provide the equipment, buildings, utilities and goods including food to provide services to 
elderly and physically challenged individuals. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with Senior Citizens Industries, Inc. on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G22
#2011-275 - Approving Agreement for Funding with Clean 
Community System
This item relates to Consent item G-15.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council









 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-275 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is authorized to establish and provide for the support of any service, 
facility or system required by the Integrated Solid Waste Management Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with Grand Island Area – Clean Community 
System to perform certain services associated with environmental education which are required by the 
Integrated Solid Waste Management Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City agrees to pay Grand Island Area – Clean Community System 
$20,000 for performing agreed upon services during the 2011-2012 fiscal year as outlined in the agreement; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, such funding was approved by the Mayor and City Council pursuant to 
adopted budget statements and annual appropriation ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, an agreement by and between the City and Grand Island Area – 
Clean Community System to perform services associated with environmental education. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract with Grand Island Area – Clean Community System on behalf of the City of Grand 
Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G23
#2011-276 - Approving Concrete Ditch Liner and Headwall East of 
Harrison Street
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Terry Brown, Manager of Engineering Services 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Concrete Ditch Liner and Headwall East of 

Harrison Street 
 
Item #’s:  G-23 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 

Background 
 

On August 31, 2011, the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department solicited 
bids for the concrete ditch lining and headwall installation east of Harrison Street, by 
sending the solicitation to eight (8) potential bidders. 
 
The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska is the only company that 
responded to the solicitation, submitting a responsible bid of $23,261.00. Any 
expenditure over $20,000 requires City Council approval. 

 
Discussion 

 
This project will help on long term maintenance, preserve flow capacity, appearance, and 
safety of the overflow structure between Cottonwood and Such’s Lake. It is very 
important to be able to maintain this overflow area to insure the flow capacity between 
the lakes. The improvement of the appearance will help in this very visible and high 
traffic area. 
 
The work consists of removing ends of existing corrugate metal pipe (C.M.P.), 
constructing a concrete ditch liner and headwall. The work is located east of Harrison 
Street, south of 1207 South Harrison Street. The work is scheduled to be completed 
before November 1, 2011. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 



1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the Concrete Ditch Liner and 
Headwall installation east of Harrison Street in the amount of $23,261.00 to The 
Diamond Engineering Company.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤   City Attorney 

R E S O L U T I O N    2011-276 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island solicited information bids for the 
installation of a concrete ditch liner and headwall east of Harrison Street, south of 1207 
South Harrison Street according to plans and specifications on file with the Public Works 
Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 13, 2011, bids were received, opened and reviewed; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS,  The Diamond Engineering Company of  Grand Island, Nebraska 
submitted a bid in accordance with the terms of the solicitation of bids and plans and 
specifications and all other statutory requirements contained therein, such bid being in the 
amount of $23,261.00; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of The Diamond 
Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska in the amount of $23,261.00 for 
installation of a concrete ditch liner and headwall east of Harrison Street, south of 1207 
South Harrison Street is hereby approved as a responsible bid. 
 

- - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, and September 27, 2011.
   
 
 
 
       Jay Vavricek, Mayor  
 
Attest:  
 
 
 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk  



Item G24
#2011-277 - Approving Continuation of Sanitary Sewer District 
No. 528, Wildwood Subdivision
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Terry Brown, Manager of Engineering Services 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Continuation of Sanitary Sewer District No. 

528, Wildwood Subdivision  
 
Item #’s:  G-24 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 
 

Background 
 
Sanitary Sewer District 529 was created by the City Council on July 12, 2011. Legal notice 
of the creation of the District was published in the Grand Island Independent on July 18, 
2011. 

 
Discussion 
 

The district completed the 30-day protest period at 5:00 p.m., Friday, August 19, 2011. 
There were protests filed against this District by 4 abutting property owners. These owners 
represented 1479.74 front feet, or 31.10% of the total District frontage of 4,758.15 feet. 
 

Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning this issue at hand. The 
Council may: 
 

1. Approve the continuation of Sanitary Sewer District 528. 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee. 
3. Postpone the issue to a future date. 
4. Take no action on the issue. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the continuation of Sanitary 
Sewer District 528.  

 
Sample Motion 

 
Move to approve the continuation of Sanitary Sewer District 528. 





 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-277 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Sanitary Sewer District No. 528, Wildwood Subdivision, was created by 
Ordinance No. 9299 on July 12, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such sewer district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that if the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within thirty days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on August 19, 2011, and protests representing 
31.10% of the total District frontage were received. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Sanitary Sewer District No. 528, therefore such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G25
#2011-278 - Approving Agreement for Engineering Consulting 
Services Related to Grand Island Resurfacing – Various Locations
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Scott Griepenstroh, PW Project Manager 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Agreement for Engineering Consulting 

Services Related to Grand Island Resurfacing – Various 
Locations 

 
Item #’s:  G-25 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 

Background 
 

 
The City of Grand Island Public Works Department sought STP funds for the Various 
Locations in Grand Island Resurfacing project. This proposed project consists of 
removing 2” of existing bituminous surfacing by cold milling and placement of  2” new 
Asphaltic Concrete in the following locations. 

• Blaine Street – Garland Street to Stolley Park Road 
• Blaine Street – Stolley Park Road to the Beltline Trail 
• First Street – Walnut Street to Sycamore Street 
• North Road - 13th Street to State Street 
• Independence Avenue – Capital Avenue to Nebraska Highway 2 
• Broadwell Avenue - Anna Street to Second Street 
• Broadwell Avenue – Second Street to State Street 

 
This project is coordinated with and supplements the Grand Island Streets Division 
Pavement Preservation Plan. This project will relieve the City of funding these 
improvements solely with Capital Improvement Program funds. 
 
A Project Programming Request for the “Various Locations in Grand Island” project was 
prepared by Public Works and approved by the Nebraska Department of Roads (NDOR) 
April 5, 2011. The estimated total cost of the entire project, including preliminary 
engineering, environmental clearance and construction oversight is $2,747,266. The 
estimated portion the City of Grand Island will be responsible for is $549,453. 
Construction is anticipated to be completed in 2013. 
 
 



City Council approved an agreement between the City and the Nebraska Department of 
Roads (NDOR) on May 24, 2011 for this project. The Project Program Agreement 
between the City of Grand Island and Nebraska Department of Roads specifies the 
various duties and funding responsibilities of this Federal-aid project. The Program 
Agreement requires that NDOR Standards and Specifications are to be used for design, 
construction inspection and quality control. 
 
All agreements must be approved by the City Council. 

 
Discussion 

 
Two (2) proposals for preliminary engineering and environmental clearance services 
were received. Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska was selected as the top 
engineering firm based on the pre-approved selection criteria. 
 
The Nebraska Department of Roads has approved the selection and prepared the attached 
agreement. The work is to be performed at actual costs with a maximum amount of 
$169,712.83, plus a fixed-fee-for-profit amount of $21,274.82, for a total agreement 
amount of $190,987.65 . The fixed-fee is computed upon the direct labor or wage costs, 
indirect labor costs, indirect-non- labor costs, and direct payroll additives. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the agreement with Olsson 
Associates of Omaha, Nebraska. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  



 

Purchasing Division of Legal Department 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR PROJECT URB-5409(2) CN 42709 

RESURFACING VARIOUS LOCATIONS 
 
 
 
RFP DUE DATE:   July 19, 2011 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  June 28, 2011, July 5, 2011 & July 12, 2011 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 10 
 
 
 
 SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
 
 
Olsson Associates       Miller & Associates 
Lincoln, NE        Kearney, NE 
 
 
 
 
cc: John Collins, Public Works Director    Catrina DeLosh, PW Admin. Assist. 

Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator   Scott Griepenstroh, Project Manager 
Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 
 
 

              P1485 



LPA – CONSULTANT
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AGREEMENT

CITY OF GRAND ISLAND
OLSSON ASSOCIATES, INC.
PROJECT NO. URB-5409(2)
CONTROL NO. 42706
GRAND ISLAND RESURFACING – VARIOUS LOCATIONS
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 
   AND NEPA DOCUMENTATION SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the City of Grand Island, 

Nebraska, hereinafter referred to as the Local Public Agency or LPA, and Olsson Associates, 

Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Consultant.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the LPA desires to engage the Consultant to render professional services for 

the above named project at the location shown on EXHIBIT "A", which is attached and hereby 

made a part of this agreement, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant is qualified to do business in Nebraska and has met all 

requirements of the Nebraska Board of Engineers and Architects to provide consultant 

engineering services in the State of Nebraska, and

WHEREAS, Consultant is willing to perform the services in accordance with the terms 

hereinafter provided, is presently in compliance with Nebraska law, and hereby agrees to 

comply with all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances applicable to this agreement, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant and LPA intend that the services provided by Consultant  

comply with all applicable federal-aid transportation related program requirements, so that 

LPA’s project will be fully eligible for federal reimbursement, and 

WHEREAS, the LPA and Consultant intend that the services under this agreement be 

completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Nebraska LPA Guidelines Manual 

for Federal Aid Projects; hereinafter referred to as LPA Manual; the LPA Manual is a document 

approved by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) that sets out the requirements for 

local federal-aid projects to be eligible for federal reimbursement; the LPA Manual can be found 

in its entirety at the following web address:

http://www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa/lpa-guidelines.pdf, and 

WHEREAS, the Consultants primary contact person for LPA will be the LPA’s 

representative, who has been designated as being in responsible charge of the project, and who 

is referred to herein as RC or Responsible Charge.



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 2 -

WHEREAS, the parties understand that the State of Nebraska, Department of Roads is 

involved in this federal-aid project on behalf of the FHWA only for issues related to the eligibility 

of the project for reimbursement of project costs with federal-aid funds.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these facts, the parties hereto agree as follows:  

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

Wherever in this agreement the following terms are used, they will have the meaning here 

given:  

"CONSULTANT" means Olsson Associates, Inc. and any employees thereof, whose 

business and mailing address is 1111 Lincoln Mall, Suite 111, Lincoln, NE  68508, and

“LPA” means a Local Public Agency. Local Public Agencies include, but are not 

necessarily limited to; Nebraska Cities, Villages, Counties, Political Subdivisions, Native 

American Tribes, and other entities or organizations found to be eligible sub recipients of federal 

funds for transportation projects, and

“LPA MANUAL” shall mean the Nebraska Department of Roads’ LPA Guidelines Manual

for Federal-Aid Projects. The LPA Manual can be found in its entirety at the following web 

address: http://www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa/lpa-guidelines.pdf, and

“RESPONSIBLE CHARGE” or “RC” shall mean LPA’s representative for the project 

whose duties and responsibilities are identified in federal law and in the LPA Manual, and

"STATE" means the Nebraska Department of Roads in Lincoln, Nebraska, its Director, or 

authorized representative. The State represents the United States Department of Transportation 

on federally funded transportation projects sponsored by a sub recipient of federal funds and 

any reference to the "State" in this agreement shall mean the State on behalf of the United 

States Department of Transportation.  

"FHWA" means the Federal Highway Administration, United States Department of 

Transportation, Washington, D.C. 20590, acting through its authorized representatives.  

"DOT" means the United States Department of Transportation, Washington, D.C. 20590, 

acting through its authorized representatives.  

To "ABANDON" the work means that the LPA has determined that conditions or 

intentions as originally existed have changed and that the work as contemplated herein is to be 

renounced and deserted for as long in the future as can be foreseen.  

To "SUSPEND" the work means that the LPA has determined that progress is not 

sufficient, or that the conditions or intentions as originally existed have changed, or the work 

completed or submitted is unsatisfactory, and that the work as contemplated herein should be 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 3 -

stopped on a temporary basis.  This cessation will prevail until the LPA determines to abandon 

or terminate the work or to reinstate it under the conditions as defined in this agreement.  

To "TERMINATE" or the "TERMINATION" of this agreement is the cessation or quitting of 

this agreement based upon action or failure of action on the part of the Consultant as defined 

herein and as determined by the LPA.

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Consultant shall providepreliminary engineering and NEPA documentation services

for Project No. URB-5409(2), Control No. 42706, inHall County, Nebraska. The scope shall be 

developed in accordance with the LPA manual and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

SECTION 3. PERSONNEL

The Consultant has furnished a personnel chart or list in EXHIBIT “D".  Personnel who 

are added to Exhibit “D” as replacements must be persons of comparable training and

experience. Personnel added to Exhibit “D” as new personnel and not replacements must be 

qualified to perform the intended work.  The Consultant shall notify the LPA of any personnel 

changes.  The LPA reserves the right to accept or reject the personnel change. Failure on the 

part of the Consultant to provide acceptable replacement personnel or qualified new personnel 

as determined by the LPA will be cause for termination of this agreement, with settlement to be 

made as provided in the CHANGE OF PLAN, ABANDONMENT, SUSPENSION, OR

TERMINATION section of this agreement.

SECTION 4. NEW EMPLOYEE WORK ELIGIBILITY STATUS

The Consultant agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the 

work eligibility status of new employees physically performing services within the State of 

Nebraska.  The Consultant hereby agrees to contractually require any subconsultants to use a 

federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility status of new employees 

physically performing services within the State of Nebraska.  A federal immigration verification

system means the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by the 

Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as 

the E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the United States 

Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility 

status of a newly hired employee.  

The undersigned duly authorized representative of the Consultant, by signing this 

agreement, hereby attests to the truth of the following certifications, and agrees as follows:



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 4 -

Neb.Rev.Stat. § 4-114. I certify compliance with the provisions of Section 4-114 and, 

hereby certify that this Consultant shall register with and use a federal immigration verification 

system to determine the work eligibility status of new employees physically performing services 

within the State of Nebraska.  I agree to require all subconsultants, by contractual agreement, to 

require the same registration and verification process.  

If the Consultant is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Consultant must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation form, 

available on the Department of Roads website at 

www.transportation.nebraska.gov/projdev/#save.

2. If the Consultant indicates on such Attestation form that he or she is a 

qualified alien, the Consultant agrees to provide the US Citizenship and 

Immigration Services documentation required to verify the Consultant lawful 

presence in the United States using the Systematic Alien Verification for 

Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Consultant understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United 

States is required and the Consultant may be disqualified or the contract 

terminated if such lawful presence cannot be verified as required by 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

SECTION 5. STANDARD PRACTICES AND REQUIREMENTS

It is mutually agreed that at the request of the LPA, the Consultant shall provide the LPA

a detailed report of the product and progress of the work and allow inspection of the existing 

work product. From time to time, additions, deletions, changes, elaborations, or modifications of 

the services performed under the terms of this agreement may be determined by the LPA to be 

desirable or preferable. These changes will be made by supplement agreement.

SECTION 6. NOTICE TO PROCEED AND COMPLETION

The LPA will issue the Consultant a written Notice-to-Proceed when LPA determines 

that federal funding approval has been obtained for the project, upon full execution of the 

agreement and upon State concurrence that the form of this agreement is acceptable for federal 

funding eligibility. Any work or services performed by Consultant on the project prior to the date 

specified in the written Notice-to-Proceed is not eligible for reimbursement.

The Consultant shall do all the work according to the schedule in attached EXHIBIT “B”

and shall complete all work required under this agreement in a satisfactory manner by March 

2012.



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 5 -

Any costs incurred by Consultant after the completion deadline are not eligible for federal 

funding reimbursement unless the Consultant has received an extension of time in writing from 

LPA and the LPA has federal funding approval for the extension of time.

The completion time will not be extended because of any avoidable delay attributed to the 

Consultant, but delays attributable to the LPA may constitute a basis for an extension of time.  

LPA authorized changes in the scope of work, which increase or decrease work-hours or 

services required of the Consultant, will provide the basis for a change of time and/or changes 

to the Consultant’s fee.  

SECTION 7. FEES AND PAYMENTS

A. For performance of the services as described in this agreement, the Consultant will 

be paid a fixed-fee-for-profit of $21,274.82, as defined in paragraph D of this 

section, and up to a maximum amount of $169,712.83 for actual costs as defined in 

paragraph E of this section, that are allowable subject to the terms of this 

agreement and to all requirements and limitations of the federal cost principles 

contained in the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR 31).  The total agreement 

amount is $190,987.65.

B. Occasionally, the conditions of this agreement may change.  This may be due to a 

change in scope which may require an adjustment of costs.  In order to justify the 

need to modify this contract, the LPA must first determine that the situation meets 

the following criteria:

That the additional work is beyond the scope of services initially negotiated 

with Consultant; and

That the proposed Services are within the scope of the Request for 

Proposal under which Consultant was selected and contract entered into; 

and

That it is in the best interest of the LPA that the services be performed 

under this agreement.  

Once the need for a modification has been established, a supplemental agreement 

will be prepared.  

If the additional work requires the Consultant to incur costs prior to execution of a 

supplemental agreement, the LPA shall use the Consultant Work Order Form 

(DR Form 250) to describe and provide necessary justification for the modification

of the scope of services, the deliverables, the schedule, and to document the



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 6 -

estimated total additional fee.  DR Form 250 is available on the State’s webpage at: 

www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa-guide-man.html#forms4. The

Consultant Work Order must be executed to provide authorization for the additional 

work and to specify when that work may begin. This agreement will be 

supplemented after one or more Consultant Work Orders have been authorized and

approved for federal funding.

C. The LPA is not responsible for costs incurred prior to the Notice-to-Proceed date or 

after the completion deadline date stated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED AND 

COMPLETION Section of this agreement or as provided in a written time extension 

notification.

D. The fixed-fee is computed upon the direct labor or wage costs, indirect labor costs, 

indirect non-labor costs, and direct payroll additives.  The fixed-fee is not allowable 

upon direct non-labor costs. The fee for profit is calculated by multiplying the sum 

of the wages and overhead costs billed by the negotiated fee for profit rate of 

“12.90%”.

E. Actual costs include direct labor costs, direct non-labor costs, and overhead costs.

(1) Direct Labor Costs are the earnings that individuals receive for the time they 

are working directly on the project.

(a) Hourly Rates:  For hourly employees, the hourly earnings rate shall be 

the employee’s straight time hourly rate for the pay period in which the 

work was performed.  For salaried employees, the hourly earnings rate 

shall be their normal hourly rate as established by the company’s 

compensation plan, 

(b) Time records:  The hours charged to the project must be supported by 

adequate time distribution records.  The records must clearly indicate 

the distribution of hours to all activities on a daily basis for the entire 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 7 -

pay period, and there must be a system in place to ensure that time 

charged to each activity is accurate.

(2) Direct Non-Labor Costs charges in this category include actual allowable

expenses for personnel away from their base of permanent assignment, 

communication costs, reproduction and printing costs, computer charges, 

special equipment and materials required for the project, special insurance 

premiums if required solely for this agreement, and such other similar items.  

A non-labor cost cannot be charged as a direct cost and also be included in 

the Consultant’s overhead rate.  If for reasons of practicality, the consultant is 

treating a direct non-labor cost category, in its entirely, as an overhead cost, 

then costs from that category are not eligible to be billed to this project as a 

direct expense.

Payment for eligible direct non-salary costs must be made on receipted 

invoices whenever possible, or on certified billings of the Consultant.  For 

purposes of standardization on this agreement, the following expenses will be 

reimbursed at actual costs, not to exceed the rates as shown below.

Company Automobile/Pick-up truck - The reimbursement for 

automobile/pick-up truck mileage shall be the prevailing 

standard rate as established by the Internal Revenue Services 

through its Revenue Procedures - currently 55.5 cents per 

mile.

Company Survey Vehicle - Currently 58 cents per mile (2.5 cents above 

Company Automobile/Pick-up truck)

Privately Owned Vehicle - Actual reimbursement to employee, not to 

exceed rates shown for company vehicles outlined above

Automobile Rental - Actual reasonable cost

Air fare - Actual reasonable cost, giving the State all discounts

Lodging - Actual cost – excluding taxes and fees : Not to exceed the 

federal lodging reimbursement guidelines, as periodically 

determined by the U.S. General Services Administration –

currently at the following rates: 

Not to exceed *$70.00 per person daily

*Omaha/Douglas County, not to exceed 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 8 -

$101.00 per person daily

Meals - Actual cost – including tax and gratuity: Not to exceed the 

federal per meal reimbursement guidelines, as periodically 

determined by the U.S. General Services Administration –

currently at the following rates: 

Statewide        Omaha/Douglas County

Breakfast $ 7.00 $ 10.00

Lunch 11.00 15.00

Dinner 23.00 31.00

Totals $41.00 $56.00 (Includes tax and gratuity)

For the Consultant and its employees to be eligible for the meal 

allowance, the following criteria must be met.

Breakfast: (a) Employee is required to depart at or before 6:30 a.m., or 

(b) Employee is on overnight travel.

Lunch: (a) Employee must be on overnight travel.  No reimbursement 

for same day travel.

(b) Employee is required to leave for overnight travel at or 

before 11:00 a.m., or  

(c) Employee returns from overnight travel at or after 2:00

p.m.  

Dinner: (a) Employee returns from overnight travel or work location

at or after 7:00 p.m., or

(b) Employee is on overnight travel.

Meals are not eligible for reimbursement if the employee eats 

within 20 miles of the headquarters town of the employee.

The Consultant shall note the actual lodging and meal costs in a daily diary, 

expense report, or on the individual's time report along with the time of 

departure to the project and time of return to the headquarters town.  The 

total daily meal costs must not exceed $41.00 per person, with the exception 

of Omaha/Douglas County, which must not exceed $56.00 per person

(includes tax and gratuity). When requested by LPA or State, the Consultant

will provide a copy of the meal receipts.



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations - 9 -

(3) Overhead Costs include indirect labor costs, indirect non-labor costs, and 

direct labor additives that are allowable in accordance with 48 CFR 31.  

Overhead costs are to be allocated to the project as a percentage of direct 

labor costs.  The Consultant will be allowed to charge the project using its

actual allowable overhead rate.  Overhead rate increases which occur during 

the project period will not be cause for an increase in the maximum amount 

established in paragraph A of this section.  When an audit is performed by 

the State at the completion of the work, the actual allowable overhead rate for 

the year the project labor was incurred will be applied to the direct labor costs 

for that year.  If a particular year’s actual overhead has not yet been 

computed or approved by the State, the most recent year’s accepted rate will

be applied.  The audit may result in additional funds due the Consultant or a 

cost due from the Consultant to the State.  

F. The Consultantshall submit invoices to the LPA at a minimum of monthly intervals

and in accordance with the “LPA Reimbursement Procedure” located on the State’s 

webpage at: www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa-guide-man.html#policies.

The invoices must present actual direct labor, actual overhead, actual direct 

non-labor costs, as well as the fixed-fee based upon the actual direct labor and 

overhead costs billed for that period.  The invoices must identify each employee by 

name and classification, the hours worked, and each individual's actual labor cost.  

Direct non-labor expenses must be itemized and provide a complete description of 

each item billed.

Each monthly invoice must be substantiated by a progress report which is to 

include/address, as a minimum:

1. A description of the work completed for that period

2. A description of the work anticipated for the next pay period

3. Information needed from LPA

4. Percent of work completed to date

5. A completed “Cost Breakdown Form” which is located on the State’s 

webpage at

www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa-guide-man.html#forms4.

If the Consultant does not submit a monthly invoice, it shall submit its progress 

report monthly.



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 10 -

G. The State, on behalf of LPA, will make every effort to pay the Consultant within 30 

days of receipt of the Consultant's invoices.  Payments are dependent upon 

whether the monthly progress reports provide adequate substantiation for the work 

and whether the LPA and State determines that the work submitted is satisfactory. 

Upon determination that the work was adequately substantiated and satisfactory, 

payment will be made in the amount of 100 percent of the billed actual costs and 

fixed fee upon acceptance by the LPA and State, a final audit of all invoiced 

amounts will be completed by the State or its authorized representative.  The 

Consultant agrees to reimburse the State for any overpayments discovered by the 

State or its authorized representative.

The acceptance by the Consultant of the final payment will constitute and operate 

as a release to the LPA and State for all claims and liability to the Consultant, its 

representatives, and assigns, for any and all things done, furnished, or relating to 

the services rendered by or in connection with this agreement or any part thereof.

H. The Consultant shall maintain, all books, documents, papers, accounting records, 

and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such material 

available for examination at its office at all reasonable times during the agreement 

period and for three years from the date of final cost settlement under this 

agreement.  Such materials must be available for inspection by the State, FHWA, or 

any authorized representative of the federal government, and when requested, the 

Consultant shall furnish copies at the expense of the requestor.

SECTION 8. PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Consultant understands that the LPA will rely on the professional performance and 

ability of the Consultant.  Any examination by the LPA, State or the FHWA, or any acceptance 

or use of the work product of the Consultant, will not be considered to be a full and 

comprehensive examination and will not be considered an approval of the work product of the 

Consultant which would relieve the Consultant from any liability or expense that would be 

connected with the Consultant's sole responsibility for the propriety and integrity of the 

professional work to be accomplished by the Consultant pursuant to this agreement.  That 

further, acceptance or approval of any of the work of the Consultant by the LPA or of payment, 

partial or final, will not constitute a waiver of any rights of the LPA to recover from the 

Consultant, damages that are caused by the Consultant due to error, omission, or negligence of 

the Consultant in its work.  That further, if due to error, omission, or negligence of the 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 11 -

Consultant, the plans, specifications, and estimates are found to be in error or there are 

omissions therein revealed during the construction of the project and revision or reworking of 

the plans is necessary, the Consultant shall make such revisions without expense to the LPA.

The Consultant shall respond to the LPA’s or State’s notice of any errors or omissions within 

24 hours and give immediate attention to these corrections to minimize any delays to the

construction contractor.  This may involve visits by the Consultant to the project site, if directed 

by the LPA.  If the Consultant discovers errors in its work, it shall notify the LPA and State of the 

errors within seven days.  Failure of the Consultant to notify the LPA will constitute a breach of 

this agreement.  The Consultant's legal liability for all damages incurred by the LPA caused by 

error, omission, or negligent acts of the Consultant will be borne by the Consultant without 

liability or expense to the LPA.

SECTION 9. CHANGE OF PLAN, ABANDONMENT, SUSPENSION, OR TERMINATION

Additions to the schedule of services, if approved in writing, will require negotiation of a 

supplemental agreement.  For any work beyond the schedule of services, the Consultant shall 

document the additional work, estimate the cost to complete the work, and receive written 

approval from the LPA before the Consultant begins the work.  Any such work performed by the 

Consultant prior to written approval of the LPA will be done at the expense of the Consultant. 

The LPA has the absolute right to abandon the project or to change the general scope of 

work at any time and such action on its part will in no event be deemed a breach of agreement.  

The LPA can suspend or terminate this agreement at any time.  Such suspension or termination 

may be affected by the LPA giving the Consultant seven days written notice. 

If the LPA abandons or subtracts from the work, or suspends or terminates the agreement 

as presently outlined, the Consultant will be compensated in accordance with the provisions of 

48 CFR 31, provided however, that in case of suspension, abandonment, or termination for 

breach of this agreement or for tender of improper work, the LPA can suspend payments, 

pending the Consultant's compliance with the provisions of this agreement.  In determining the 

percentage of work completed, the LPA will consider the work performed by the Consultant prior 

to abandonment or termination to the total amount of work contemplated by this agreement.  

The ownership of all project plans and supporting documents completed or partially completed 

at the time of such termination or abandonment will be retained by the LPA and the Consultant 

shall immediately deliver all project plans and supporting documents to the LPA.



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 12 -

SECTION 10. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

All surveys, plans, specifications, maps, computations, charts, electronic data, and other 

project data prepared or obtained under the terms of this agreement are the property of the LPA

and the Consultant shall deliver them to the LPA without restriction or limitation as to further 

use.  

LPA acknowledges that such data may not be appropriate for use on an extension of the 

work covered by this agreement or on other projects.  Any use of the data for any purpose other 

than that for which it was intended without the opportunity for Consultant to review the data and 

modify it if necessary for the intended purpose will be at the LPA’s sole risk and without legal 

exposure or liability to Consultant.  

SECTION 11. USE AND/OR RELEASE OF PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Certain information provided by the LPA or State to the Consultant is confidential 

information contained within privileged documents protected by 23 U.S.C. §409. "Confidential 

information" means any information that is protected from disclosure pursuant to state and 

federal law and includes, but is not limited to, accident summary information, certain accident 

reports, diagnostic evaluations, bridge inspection reports, and any other documentation or 

information that corresponds with said evaluations or reports, and any other information 

protected by 23 U.S.C. §409. "Privileged document" means any document pertaining to any file 

or project maintained by the LPA or State that is privileged and protected from disclosure, 

pursuant to appropriate state and federal law, including any document containing attorney-client 

communications between an LPA or State employee and Legal Counsel. This confidential and 

privileged information is vital and essential to the Consultant in order that the Consultant 

adequately design the project at hand on behalf of the LPA or State.

The Consultant agrees it will only use any information or documentation that is 

considered to be privileged or confidential for the purposes of executing the services by which it 

has agreed to render for the LPA or State for the project at hand only. The Consultant agrees 

not to reveal, disseminate, or provide copies of any document that is confidential and privileged 

to any individual or entity. The LPA agrees that any information or documentation that is 

considered to be privileged or confidential that is provided to Consultant will be marked with the 

following information:

“CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Federal Law, 23 U.S.C §409, prohibits the 

production of this document or its contents in discovery or its use in evidence in a State 

or Federal Court.  The LPA has not waived any privilege it may assert as provided by 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 13 -

that law through the dissemination of this document and has not authorized further 

distribution of this document or its contents to anyone other than the original recipient.”

The Consultant agrees to obtain the written approval of the Consultant Coordinator prior 

to the dissemination of any privileged or confidential information or documentation if it is unclear 

to the Consultant whether such information or documentation is in fact privileged or confidential.

The Consultant and the LPA agree that any unauthorized dissemination of any privileged 

or confidential information or documentation on the part of the Consultant will create liability on 

the part of the Consultant to the LPA for any damages that may occur as a result of the 

unauthorized dissemination. The Consultant agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and release 

the LPA for any liability that may ensue on the part of the LPA for any unauthorized 

dissemination of any privileged or confidential information or documentation on the part of the 

Consultant.

SECTION 12. FORBIDDING USE OF OUTSIDE AGENTS

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 

other than a bona fide employee working for the Consultant, to solicit or secure this agreement, 

and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 

employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement.  For breach or 

violation of this warranty, the LPA has the right to annul this agreement without liability or, in its 

discretion, to deduct from the agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover the ful l

amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

SECTION 13. NON-RAIDING CLAUSE

The Consultant shall not engage the services of any person or persons presently in the 

employ of the State for work covered by this agreement without the prior written consent of the 

employer of the persons. 

SECTION 14. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Consultant hereby agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 

ordinances applicable to the work. 

SECTION 15. DISPUTES

Any dispute concerning a question of fact in connection with the work covered under this 

agreement will be addressed in accordance with LPA Manual SectIon 4.4.3.5 DISPUTE 

RESOLUTION.



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 14 -

SECTION 16. RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY

The Consultant agrees to save harmless the LPA from all claims and liability due to the 

activities of the Consultant or those of the Consultant's agents or employees in the performance 

of work under this agreement.  In this connection, the Consultant shall for the life of this 

agreement, carry insurance as outlined in Exhibit “C” and attached hereto, and hereby made a 

part of this agreement.  

SECTION 17. PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION

The Consultant shall affix the seal of a registered professional engineer or architect 

licensed to practice in the State of Nebraska, on all plans, documents, and specifications 

prepared under this agreement as required by the Nebraska Engineers and Architects 

Regulations Act, Neb.Rev.Stat §81-3401 et. seq.

SECTION 18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This agreement is binding on successors and assigns of either party. 

SECTION 19. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY

The Consultant shall have an acceptable and current drug-free workplace policy on file 

with the State.  

SECTION 20. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ACT

The Consultant agrees to abide by the Nebraska Fair Employment Practices Act, as 

provided by Neb.Rev.Stat. 48-1101 through 48-1126, which is hereby made a part of and 

included in this agreement by reference. 

SECTION 21. DISABILITIES ACT

The Consultant agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 

101-366), as implemented by 28 CFR 35, which is hereby made a part of and included in this 

agreement by reference.  

SECTION 22. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

The Consultant shall ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises, as defined in 

49 CFR 26, have the maximum opportunity to compete for and participate in the performance of 

subagreements financed in whole or in part with federal funds under this agreement.  

Consequently, the disadvantaged business requirements of 49 CFR 26 are hereby made a part 

of and included in this agreement by reference.

The Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin in 

the award and performance of FHWA-assisted contracts.  Failure of the Consultant to carry out 

the requirements set forth above will constitute a breach of this agreement and, after the 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 15 -

notification of the FHWA, may result in termination of this agreement by the LPA or such 

remedy as the LPA deems appropriate.  

SECTION 23. NONDISCRIMINATION

A. Compliance with Regulations:  During the performance of this agreement, the 

Consultant, for itself and its assignees and successors in interest, agrees to comply 

with the regulations of the DOT relative to nondiscrimination in federally-assisted 

programs of the DOT (49 CFR 21 and 27, hereinafter referred to as the 

Regulations), which are hereby made a part of and included in this agreement by 

reference.

B. Nondiscrimination:  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it after 

award and prior to completion of this agreement, shall not discriminate on the basis 

of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of 

Subconsultants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The 

Consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination 

prohibited by 49 CFR 21.5, including employment practices when the agreement 

covers a program set forth in Appendixes A, B, and C of 49 CFR 21.  

C. Solicitations for Subagreements, Including Procurements of Materials

and Equipment:  In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation 

made by the Consultant for work to be performed under a subagreement, including 

procurements of materials or equipment, each potential Subconsultant or supplier 

shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant's obligations under this 

agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the basis of race, 

color, sex, or national origin.  

D. Information and Reports:  The Consultant shall provide all information and reports 

required by the Regulations, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, and 

shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, 

and its facilities as may be determined by the LPA, State or FHWA to be pertinent 

to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions.  Where 

any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another 

who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall certify to the 

LPA, State or FHWA, as appropriate, and set forth what efforts it has made to 

obtain the information.  



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 16 -

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with 

the nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, the LPA will impose such 

agreement sanctions as it or the State and FHWA may determine to be appropriate, 

including but not limited to withholding of payments to the Consultant under this 

agreement until the Consultant complies, and/or cancellation, termination, or 

suspension of this agreement, in whole or in part.  

F. Incorporation of Provisions:  The Consultant shall include the provisions of 

paragraphs A through E of this section in every subagreement, including 

procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 

Regulations, orders, or instructions issued pursuant thereto. The Consultant shall 

take such action with respect to any subagreement or procurement as the LPA, 

State or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 

sanctions for noncompliance, provided however, that in the event a Consultant 

becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a Subconsultant/ 

Subcontractor as a result of such direction, the Consultant may request that the 

LPA enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the LPA and, in addition, the 

Consultant may request that the State and United States enter into such litigation to 

protect the interests of the State and United States.  

SECTION 24. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT, OR TRANSFER

Any other subletting, assignment, or transfer of any professional services to be performed 

by the Consultant is hereby prohibited unless prior written consent of the LPA is obtained.  

As outlined in the DISABILITIES ACT Section of this agreement, the Consultant 

shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that disadvantaged business 

enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform subagreements.  Any 

written request to sublet any other work must include documentation of efforts to employ a 

disadvantaged business enterprise.

SECTION 25.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant shall review the Conflict of Interest provisions of 23 CFR 1.33 and 49 

CFR 18.36(b)(3) and agrees to comply with all the Conflict of Interest provisions in order for the 

project to remain fully eligible for State or Federal funding.  Consultant should review, 

understand and follow the instructions provided in the NDOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

GUIDANCE DOCUMENT for CONSULTANTS for LOCAL FEDERAL-AID 

TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS located on the State website at the following location:



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 17 -

http://www.dor.state.ne.us/gov-aff/lpa/chapter-forms/coi/coi-guidance-doc-consultant.pdf

Consultant must also complete and sign the CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM 

FOR CONSULTANTS for Local Federal-aid Transportation Projects, for each project.  This form 

is located on the State website at the following location:

http://www.dor.state.ne.us/gov-aff/lpa/chapter-forms/coi/coi-disclosure-doc-consultant.pdf

Consultants and sub-consultants providing services for LPA’s, or submitting proposals for 

services, shall have the duty to notify the LPA and the NDOR LPD PC and submit a revised 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form for Consultants for any changes in circumstances, or 

discovery of any additional facts, that could result in someone employed by, or who has an 

ownership, personal, or other interest with Consultant or sub-consultant having a real or 

potential conflict of interest on an LPA federal-aid transportation project.

SECTION 26. CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS

The undersigned duly authorized representatives of the Consultant, by signing this 

agreement, hereby swears, under the penalty of law, the truth of the following certifications, and 

agrees as follows:

A. Neb.Rev.Stat. § 81-1715(1).  I certify compliance with the provisions of Section 

81-1715 and, to the extent that this contract is a lump sum or actual cost-plus-a-

fixed fee professional service contract, I hereby certify that wage rates and other 

factual unit costs supporting the fees in this agreement are accurate, complete, 

and current as of the date of this agreement. I agree that the original contract 

price and any additions thereto shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums 

by which the LPA determines the contract price had been increased due to 

inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit costs.  

Neb.Rev.Stat. §§ 81-1701 through 81-1721.

B. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-1717 and 1718.  I hereby certify compliance with the 

provisions of Sections 81-1717 and 1718 and, except as noted below neither I 

nor any person associated with the firm in the capacity of owner, partner, 

director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any 

position involving the administration of federal funds:

1. Has employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, 

contingent fee, or other consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 18 -

fide employee working solely for me or the above Consultant) to solicit or 

secure this agreement, or

2. Has agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this agreement, 

to employ or retain the services of any firm or person in connection with 

carrying out this agreement, or

3. Has paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a 

bona fide employee working solely for me or the above Consultant) any fee, 

contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in connection with 

procuring or carrying out this agreement, except as here expressly stated (if 

any).

C. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility

Matters-Primary Covered Transactions. Section C1 below contains 10 

instructions that consultant agrees to follow in making the certifications contained 

in C2.

1. Instructions for Certification

a. By signing this agreement, the Consultant is providing the certification 

set out below.  

b. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will 

not necessarily result in denial of participation in this project.  The 

Consultant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the 

certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be 

considered in connection with the LPA's determination whether to 

enter into this agreement.  However, failure of the Consultant to

furnish a certification or an explanation will disqualify the Consultant 

from participation in this agreement.  

c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon 

which reliance was placed when the State determined to enter into 

this agreement.  If it is later determined that the Consultant knowingly 

rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 

available to the Federal government, the LPA may terminate this 

agreement for cause or default.  

d. The Consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the LPA if at 

any time the Consultant learns that its certification was erroneous 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 19 -

when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 

circumstances.

e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 

"lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary 

covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily 

excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the 

Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 

Executive Order 12549.   

f. The Consultant agrees that should the proposed covered transaction 

be entered into, it will not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the LPA before entering into this 

agreement.  

g. The Consultant further agrees to include the clause titled "Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 

Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the State 

without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 

solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.  

h. The Consultant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification 

of a prospective Subconsultant in a lower tier covered transaction that 

it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 

the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 

erroneous.  A Consultant may decide the method and frequency by 

which it determines the eligibility of its principals.  

i. Nothing contained in the foregoing will be construed to require 

establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith 

the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge and 

information of the Consultant is not required to exceed that which is 

normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of 

business dealings.  

j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these 

instructions, if the Consultant in a covered transaction knowingly 



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 20 -

enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 

participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the federal government, the LPA may terminate this agreement for 

cause or default.

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other

Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

a. By signing this agreement, the Consultant certifies to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered 

transactions by any federal department or agency;

ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement 

been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them 

for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, 

state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of 

embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 

records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 

charged by a governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with 

commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph A.(ii)

of this certification; and

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement had 

one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) 

terminated for cause or default.

b. Where the Consultant is unable to certify to any of the statements in 

this certification, such Consultant shall attach an explanation to this 

agreement.  I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to 

the State and the FHWA in connection with this agreement involving 

participation of federal-aid highway funds and is subject to applicable, 

state and federal laws, both criminal and civil.  



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 21 -

SECTION 27. LPA CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, I, Jay Vavricek, do hereby certify that, to the best of my 

knowledge, the Consultant or its representative has not been required, directly or indirectly as 

an express or implied condition in connection with obtaining or carrying out this agreement to:

(a) employ or retain, or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person, or

(b) pay or agree to pay to any firm, person, or organization, any fee, contribution, 

donation, or consideration of any kind.

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to the FHWA, upon their request, in 

connection with this agreement involving participation of Federal-Aid highway funds and is 

subject to applicable state and federal laws, both criminal and civil.

SECTION 28. ALL ENCOMPASSED

This instrument embodies the whole agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, 

terms, conditions, or obligations other than contained herein, and this agreement supersedes all 

previous communications, representations, or other agreements or contracts, either oral or 

written hereto.  



Project No. URB-5409(2)
Control No. 42706
Grand Island Resurfacing –Various Locations- 22 -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed 

by their proper officials thereunto duly authorized as of the dates below indicated.  

After being duly sworn on oath, I do hereby acknowledge the foregoing certification and 

state that I am authorized to sign this agreement.

EXECUTED by the Consultant this ___ day of _________________, 2011.

OLSSON ASSOCIATES, INC.
Randall J. Kaster, PE

________________________________
Principal

STATE OF NEBRASKA)
)ss.

LANCASTER COUNTY )

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ________ day of __________, 2011.

________________________________
Notary Public 

EXECUTED by the LPA this _____ day of ____________________, 2011.

CITY OF GRAND ISLAND
Jay Vavricek

________________________________
Mayor

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ________________, 2011.

___________________________________
Clerk

STATE OF NEBRASKA
DEPARTMENT OF ROADS
Form of Agreement Approved for 
Federal Funding Eligibility:  

___________________________________

___________________________________
Date



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-278 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 2011-125 Grand Island City Council approved entering into an 
agreement with the Nebraska Department of Roads for the Grand Island Resurfacing – Various Locations 
Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island solicited proposals for engineering consulting services 
for such project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska wish to 
enter into an Engineering Services Agreement to provide engineering consulting services for such project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Engineering Services Agreement between the 
City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska for engineering consulting services related 
to the Grand Island Resurfacing – Various Locations Project is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G26
#2011-279 - Approving Agreement for Engineering Consulting 
Services Related to 3rd Street and Wheeler Avenue Historical 
Lighting
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Scott Griepenstroh, PW Project Manager 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Agreement for Engineering Consulting 

Services Related to 3rd Street and Wheeler Avenue 
Historical Lighting 

 
Item #’s:  G-26 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 

Background 
 

 
This project will construct 21 Historical Street Lights one block west, one block east and 
one half block south of the Kaufmann Park at 3rd Street and Wheeler Avenue. The 
lighting will be constructed in similar appearance to street lights that existed in this 
location during the early 20th Century, a period that saw the construction of several 
buildings in the area that are now on the National Register of Historical Places. The 
nostalgic appeal will be another draw for shoppers, tourists and seekers of entertainment 
to an area well known for history, commerce and popular community events. 
 
The estimate of the entire project, including preliminary engineering, environmental 
clearance and construction oversight is $189,540. Construction is anticipated to be 
completed in 2012. The Downtown Business Improvement District will provide local 
matching funds (20%) through funding awarded by the Community Redevelopment 
Authority in March 2011. The remaining 80% of the project cost will be paid for with 
Federal-Aid Transportation Enhancement  (TE) Program Funds. 
 
City Council approved an agreement between the City and the Nebraska Department of 
Roads (NDOR) on May 24, 2011 for this project. The Project Program Agreement  
between the City Of Grand Island and NDOR specifies the various duties and funding 
responsibilities of this Federal-aid project. 
 
All agreements must be approved by the City Council. 

 



Discussion 
 
Two (2) proposals for preliminary engineering and environmental clearance services 
were received. Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska was selected as the top 
engineering firm based on the pre-approved selection criteria. 
 
The Nebraska Department of Roads has approved the selection and prepared the attached 
agreement. The work is to be performed at actual costs with a maximum amount of 
$43,372.55, plus a fixed-fee-for-profit amount of $5,703.65, for a total agreement amount 
of $49,076.20. The fixed-fee is computed upon the direct labor or wage costs, indirect 
labor costs, indirect-non- labor costs, and direct payroll additives. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the agreement with Olsson 
Associates of Omaha, Nebraska. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  



 

Purchasing Division of Legal Department 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR 
ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES FOR PROJECT ENH-40(60) CN 42651 

GRAND ISLAND THIRD AND WHEELER HISTORICAL LIGHTING IMPROVEMENT 
 
 
 
RFP DUE DATE:   July 20, 2011 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  June 29, 2011, July 6, 2011 & July 13, 2011 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 10 
 
 SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
 
JEO Consulting Group, Inc.     Olsson Associates 
Lincoln, NE        Lincoln, NE 
 
 
 
cc: John Collins, Public Works Director    Catrina DeLosh, PW Admin. Assist. 

Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator    Scott Griepenstroh, Project Manager 
Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 
 
 

              P1486 



LPA – CONSULTANT
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AGREEMENT

CITY OF GRAND ISLAND
OLSSON ASSOCIATES, INC.
PROJECT NO. ENH-40(60)
CONTROL NO. 42651
GRAND ISLAND 3RD & WHEELER HISTORICAL LIGHTING
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AND NEPA DOCUMENTATION SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the City of Grand Island, 

Nebraska, hereinafter referred to as the Local Public Agency or LPA, and Olsson Associates, 

Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Consultant.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the LPA desires to engage the Consultant to render professional services for 

the above named project at the location shown on EXHIBIT "A", which is attached and hereby 

made a part of this agreement, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant is qualified to do business in Nebraska and has met all 

requirements of the Nebraska Board of Engineers and Architects to provide consultant 

engineering services in the State of Nebraska, and

WHEREAS, Consultant is willing to perform the services in accordance with the terms 

hereinafter provided, is presently in compliance with Nebraska law, and hereby agrees to 

comply with all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances applicable to this agreement, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant and LPA intend that the services provided by Consultant  

comply with all applicable federal-aid transportation related program requirements, so that 

LPA’s project will be fully eligible for federal reimbursement, and 

WHEREAS, the LPA and Consultant intend that the services under this agreement be 

completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Nebraska LPA Guidelines Manual 

for Federal Aid Projects; hereinafter referred to as LPA Manual; the LPA Manual is a document 

approved by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) that sets out the requirements for 

local federal-aid projects to be eligible for federal reimbursement; the LPA Manual can be found 

in its entirety at the following web address:

http://www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa/lpa-guidelines.pdf, and 

WHEREAS, the Consultants primary contact person for LPA will be the LPA’s 

representative, who has been designated as being in responsible charge of the project, and who 

is referred to herein as RC or Responsible Charge.



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 2 -

WHEREAS, the parties understand that the State of Nebraska, Department of Roads is 

involved in this federal-aid project on behalf of the FHWA only for issues related to the eligibility 

of the project for reimbursement of project costs with federal-aid funds.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these facts, the parties hereto agree as follows:  

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

Wherever in this agreement the following terms are used, they will have the meaning here 

given:  

"CONSULTANT" means Olsson Associates, Inc. and any employees thereof, whose 

business and mailing address is 1111 Lincoln Mall, Suite 111, Lincoln, NE  68508, and

“LPA” means a Local Public Agency. Local Public Agencies include, but are not 

necessarily limited to; Nebraska Cities, Villages, Counties, Political Subdivisions, Native 

American Tribes, and other entities or organizations found to be eligible sub recipients of federal 

funds for transportation projects, and

“LPA MANUAL” shall mean the Nebraska Department of Roads’ LPA Guidelines Manual

for Federal-Aid Projects. The LPA Manual can be found in its entirety at the following web 

address: http://www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa/lpa-guidelines.pdf, and

“RESPONSIBLE CHARGE” or “RC” shall mean LPA’s representative for the project 

whose duties and responsibilities are identified in federal law and in the LPA Manual, and

"STATE" means the Nebraska Department of Roads in Lincoln, Nebraska, its Director, or 

authorized representative. The State represents the United States Department of Transportation 

on federally funded transportation projects sponsored by a sub recipient of federal funds and 

any reference to the "State" in this agreement shall mean the State on behalf of the United 

States Department of Transportation.  

"FHWA" means the Federal Highway Administration, United States Department of 

Transportation, Washington, D.C. 20590, acting through its authorized representatives.  

"DOT" means the United States Department of Transportation, Washington, D.C. 20590, 

acting through its authorized representatives.  

To "ABANDON" the work means that the LPA has determined that conditions or 

intentions as originally existed have changed and that the work as contemplated herein is to be 

renounced and deserted for as long in the future as can be foreseen.  

To "SUSPEND" the work means that the LPA has determined that progress is not 

sufficient, or that the conditions or intentions as originally existed have changed, or the work 

completed or submitted is unsatisfactory, and that the work as contemplated herein should be 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 3 -

stopped on a temporary basis.  This cessation will prevail until the LPA determines to abandon 

or terminate the work or to reinstate it under the conditions as defined in this agreement.  

To "TERMINATE" or the "TERMINATION" of this agreement is the cessation or quitting of 

this agreement based upon action or failure of action on the part of the Consultant as defined 

herein and as determined by the LPA.

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Consultant shall providepreliminary engineering and NEPA documentation services

for Project No. ENH-40(60), Control No. 42651, inHall County, Nebraska. The scope shall be 

developed in accordance with the LPA manual and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

SECTION 3. PERSONNEL

The Consultant has furnished a personnel chart or list in EXHIBIT “B".  Personnel who are 

added to Exhibit “B” as replacements must be persons of comparable training and experience.

Personnel added to Exhibit “B” as new personnel and not replacements must be qualified to 

perform the intended work.  The Consultant shall notify the LPA of any personnel changes.  The 

LPA reserves the right to accept or reject the personnel change. Failure on the part of the 

Consultant to provide acceptablereplacement personnel or qualified new personnel as 

determined by the LPA will be cause for termination of this agreement, with settlement to be 

made as provided in the CHANGE OF PLAN, ABANDONMENT, SUSPENSION, OR

TERMINATION section of this agreement.

SECTION 4. NEW EMPLOYEE WORK ELIGIBILITY STATUS

The Consultant agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the 

work eligibility status of new employees physically performing services within the State of 

Nebraska.  The Consultant hereby agrees to contractually require any subconsultants to use a 

federal immigration verification system to determine the work eligibility status of new employees 

physically performing services within the State of Nebraska.  A federal immigration verification 

system means the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by the 

Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as 

the E-Verify Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the United States 

Department of Homeland Security or other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility 

status of a newly hired employee.  

The undersigned duly authorized representative of the Consultant, by signing this 

agreement, hereby attests to the truth of the following certifications, and agrees as follows:



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 4 -

Neb.Rev.Stat. § 4-114. I certify compliance with the provisions of Section 4-114 and, 

hereby certify that this Consultant shall register with and use a federal immigration verification 

system to determine the work eligibility status of new employees physically performing services 

within the State of Nebraska.  I agree to require all subconsultants, by contractual agreement, to 

require the same registration and verification process.  

If the Consultant is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Consultant must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation form, 

available on the Department of Roads website at 

www.transportation.nebraska.gov/projdev/#save.

2. If the Consultant indicates on such Attestation form that he or she is a 

qualified alien, the Consultant agrees to provide the US Citizenship and 

Immigration Services documentation required to verify the Consultant lawful 

presence in the United States using the Systematic Alien Verification for 

Entitlements (SAVE) Program.

3. The Consultant understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United 

States is required and the Consultant may be disqualified or the contract 

terminated if such lawful presence cannot be verified as required by 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

SECTION 5. STANDARD PRACTICES AND REQUIREMENTS

It is mutually agreed that at the request of the LPA, the Consultant shall provide the LPA

a detailed report of the product and progress of the work and allow inspection of the existing 

work product. From time to time, additions, deletions, changes, elaborations, or modifications of 

the services performed under the terms of this agreement may be determined by the LPA to be 

desirable or preferable. These changes will be made by supplement agreement.

SECTION 6. NOTICE TO PROCEED AND COMPLETION

The LPA will issue the Consultant a written Notice-to-Proceed when LPA determines 

that federal funding approval has been obtained for the project, upon full execution of the 

agreement and upon State concurrence that the form of this agreement is acceptable for federal 

funding eligibility. Any work or services performed by Consultant on the project prior to the date 

specified in the written Notice-to-Proceed is not eligible for reimbursement.

The Consultant shall do all the work according to the schedule in attached EXHIBIT “B”

and shall complete all work required under this agreement in a satisfactory manner by March, 

2012.



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 5 -

Any costs incurred by Consultant after the completion deadline are not eligible for federal 

funding reimbursement unless the Consultant has received an extension of time in writing from 

LPA and the LPA has federal funding approval for the extension of time.

The completion time will not be extended because of any avoidable delay attributed to the 

Consultant, but delays attributable to the LPA may constitute a basis for an extension of time. 

LPA authorized changes in the scope of work, which increase or decrease work-hours or 

services required of the Consultant, will provide the basis for a change of time and/or changes 

to the Consultant’s fee.  

SECTION 7. FEES AND PAYMENTS

A. For performance of the services as described in this agreement, the Consultant will 

be paid a fixed-fee-for-profit of $5,703.65, as defined in paragraph D of this section, 

and up to a maximum amount of $43,372.55 for actual costs as defined in 

paragraph E of this section, that are allowable subject to the terms of this 

agreement and to all requirements and limitations of the federal cost principles 

contained in the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR 31).  The total agreement 

amount is $49,076.20.

B. Occasionally, the conditions of this agreement may change.  This may be due to a 

change in scope which may require an adjustment of costs.  In order to justify the 

need to modify this contract, the LPA must first determine that the situation meets 

the following criteria:

That the additional work is beyond the scope of services initially negotiated 

with Consultant; and

That the proposed Services are within the scope of the Request for 

Proposal under which Consultant was selected and contract entered into; 

and

That it is in the best interest of the LPA that the services be performed 

under this agreement.  

Once the need for a modification has been established, a supplemental agreement 

will be prepared.  

If the additional work requires the Consultant to incur costs prior to execution of a 

supplemental agreement, the LPA shall use the Consultant Work Order Form 

(DR Form 250) to describe and provide necessary justification for the modification

of the scope of services, the deliverables, the schedule, and to document the



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 6 - 

estimated total additional fee.  DR Form 250 is available on the State’s webpage at: 

www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa-guide-man.html#forms4.  The

Consultant Work Order must be executed to provide authorization for the additional 

work and to specify when that work may begin. This agreement will be 

supplemented after one or more Consultant Work Orders have been authorized and

approved for federal funding.

C. The LPA is not responsible for costs incurred prior to the Notice-to-Proceed date or 

after the completion deadline date stated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED AND 

COMPLETION Section of this agreement or as provided in a written time extension 

notification.

D. The fixed-fee is computed upon the direct labor or wage costs, indirect labor costs, 

indirect non-labor costs, and direct payroll additives.  The fixed-fee is not allowable 

upon direct non-labor costs.  The fee for profit is calculated by multiplying the sum 

of the wages and overhead costs billed by the negotiated fee for profit rate of 

“13.50%”.

E. Actual costs include direct labor costs, direct non-labor costs, and overhead costs.

(1) Direct Labor Costs are the earnings that individuals receive for the time they 

are working directly on the project.

(a) Hourly Rates:  For hourly employees, the hourly earnings rate shall be 

the employee’s straight time hourly rate for the pay period in which the 

work was performed.  For salaried employees, the hourly earnings rate 

shall be their normal hourly rate as established by the company’s 

compensation plan, 

(b) Time records:  The hours charged to the project must be supported by 

adequate time distribution records.  The records must clearly indicate 

the distribution of hours to all activities on a daily basis for the entire 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 7 -

pay period, and there must be a system in place to ensure that time 

charged to each activity is accurate.

(2) Direct Non-Labor Costs charges in this category include actual allowable

expenses for personnel away from their base of permanent assignment, 

communication costs, reproduction and printing costs, computer charges, 

special equipment and materials required for the project, special insurance 

premiums if required solely for this agreement, and such other similar items.  

A non-labor cost cannot be charged as a direct cost and also be included in 

the Consultant’s overhead rate.  If for reasons of practicality, the consultant is 

treating a direct non-labor cost category, in its entirely, as an overhead cost, 

then costs from that category are not eligible to be billed to this project as a 

direct expense.

Payment for eligible direct non-salary costs must be made on receipted 

invoices whenever possible, or on certified billings of the Consultant.  For 

purposes of standardization on this agreement, the following expenses will be 

reimbursed at actual costs, not to exceed the rates as shown below.

Company Automobile/Pick-up truck - The reimbursement for 

automobile/pick-up truck mileage shall be the prevailing 

standard rate as established by the Internal Revenue Services 

through its Revenue Procedures - currently 55.5 cents per 

mile.

Company Survey Vehicle - Currently 58 cents per mile (2.5 cents above 

Company Automobile/Pick-up truck)

Privately Owned Vehicle - Actual reimbursement to employee, not to 

exceed rates shown for company vehicles outlined above

Automobile Rental - Actual reasonable cost

Air fare - Actual reasonable cost, giving the State all discounts

Lodging - Actual cost – excluding taxes and fees : Not to exceed the 

federal lodging reimbursement guidelines, as periodically 

determined by the U.S. General Services Administration –

currently at the following rates: 

Not to exceed *$70.00 per person daily

*Omaha/Douglas County, not to exceed 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 8 -

$101.00 per person daily

Meals - Actual cost – including tax and gratuity: Not to exceed the 

federal per meal reimbursement guidelines, as periodically 

determined by the U.S. General Services Administration –

currently at the following rates: 

Statewide        Omaha/Douglas County

Breakfast $ 7.00 $ 10.00

Lunch 11.00 15.00

Dinner 23.00 31.00

Totals $41.00 $56.00 (Includes tax and gratuity)

For the Consultant and its employees to be eligible for the meal 

allowance, the following criteria must be met.

Breakfast: (a) Employee is required to depart at or before 6:30 a.m., or 

(b) Employee is on overnight travel.

Lunch: (a) Employee must be on overnight travel.  No reimbursement 

for same day travel.

(b) Employee is required to leave for overnight travel at or 

before 11:00 a.m., or  

(c) Employee returns from overnight travel at or after 2:00

p.m.  

Dinner: (a) Employee returns from overnight travel or work location

at or after 7:00 p.m., or

(b) Employee is on overnight travel.

Meals are not eligible for reimbursement if the employee eats 

within 20 miles of the headquarters town of the employee.

The Consultant shall note the actual lodging and meal costs in a daily diary, 

expense report, or on the individual's time report along with the time of 

departure to the project and time of return to the headquarters town.  The 

total daily meal costs must not exceed $41.00 per person, with the exception 

of Omaha/Douglas County, which must not exceed $56.00 per person

(includes tax and gratuity). When requested by LPA or State, the Consultant

will provide a copy of the meal receipts.



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 9 -

(3) Overhead Costs include indirect labor costs, indirect non-labor costs, and 

direct labor additives that are allowable in accordance with 48 CFR 31.  

Overhead costs are to be allocated to the project as a percentage of direct 

labor costs.  The Consultant will be allowed to charge the project using its

actual allowable overhead rate.  Overhead rate increases which occur during 

the project period will not be cause for an increase in the maximum amount 

established in paragraph A of this section.  When an audit is performed by 

the State at the completion of the work, the actual allowable overhead rate for 

the year the project labor was incurred will be applied to the direct labor costs 

for that year.  If a particular year’s actual overhead has not yet been 

computed or approved by the State, the most recent year’s accepted rate will

be applied.  The audit may result in additional funds due the Consultant or a 

cost due from the Consultant to the State.  

F. The Consultantshall submit invoices to the LPA at a minimum of monthly intervals

and in accordance with the “LPA Reimbursement Procedure” located on the State’s 

webpage at: www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa-guide-man.html#policies.

The invoices must present actual direct labor, actual overhead, actual direct 

non-labor costs, as well as the fixed-fee based upon the actual direct labor and 

overhead costs billed for that period.  The invoices must identify each employee by 

name and classification, the hours worked, and each individual's actual labor cost.  

Direct non-labor expenses must be itemized and provide a complete description of 

each item billed.

Each monthly invoice must be substantiated by a progress report which is to 

include/address, as a minimum:

1. A description of the work completed for that period

2. A description of the work anticipated for the next pay period

3. Information needed from LPA

4. Percent of work completed to date

5. A completed “Cost Breakdown Form” which is located on the State’s 

webpage at

www.transportation.nebraska.gov/gov-aff/lpa-guide-man.html#forms4.

If the Consultant does not submit a monthly invoice, it shall submit its progress 

report monthly.



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 10 -

G. The State, on behalf of LPA, will make every effort to pay the Consultant within 30 

days of receipt of the Consultant's invoices.  Payments are dependent upon 

whether the monthly progress reports provide adequate substantiation for the work 

and whether the LPA and State determines that the work submitted is satisfactory. 

Upon determination that the work was adequately substantiated and satisfactory, 

payment will be made in the amount of 100 percent of the billed actual costs and 

fixed fee upon acceptance by the LPA and State, a final audit of all invoiced 

amounts will be completed by the State or its authorized representative.  The 

Consultant agrees to reimburse the State for any overpayments discovered by the 

State or its authorized representative.

The acceptance by the Consultant of the final payment will constitute and operate 

as a release to the LPA and State for all claims and liability to the Consultant, its 

representatives, and assigns, for any and all things done, furnished, or relating to 

the services rendered by or in connection with this agreement or any part thereof.

H. The Consultant shall maintain, all books, documents, papers, accounting records, 

and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such material 

available for examination at its office at all reasonable times during the agreement 

period and for three years from the date of final cost settlement under this 

agreement.  Such materials must be available for inspection by the State, FHWA, or 

any authorized representative of the federal government, and when requested, the 

Consultant shall furnish copies at the expense of the requestor.

SECTION 8. PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Consultant understands that the LPA will rely on the professional performance and 

ability of the Consultant.  Any examination by the LPA, State or the FHWA, or any acceptance 

or use of the work product of the Consultant, will not be considered to be a full and 

comprehensive examination and will not be considered an approval of the work product of the 

Consultant which would relieve the Consultant from any liability or expense that would be 

connected with the Consultant's sole responsibility for the propriety and integrity of the 

professional work to be accomplished by the Consultant pursuant to this agreement.  That 

further, acceptance or approval of any of the work of the Consultant by the LPA or of payment,

partial or final, will not constitute a waiver of any rights of the LPA to recover from the 

Consultant, damages that are caused by the Consultant due to error, omission, or negligence of 

the Consultant in its work.  That further, if due to error, omission, or negligence of the 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 11 -

Consultant, the plans, specifications, and estimates are found to be in error or there are 

omissions therein revealed during the construction of the project and revision or reworking of 

the plans is necessary, the Consultant shall make such revisions without expense to the LPA.

The Consultant shall respond to the LPA’s or State’s notice of any errors or omissions within 

24 hours and give immediate attention to these corrections to minimize any delays to the 

construction contractor.  This may involve visits by the Consultant to the project site, if directed 

by the LPA.  If the Consultant discovers errors in its work, it shall notify the LPA and State of the 

errors within seven days.  Failure of the Consultant to notify the LPA will constitute a breach of 

this agreement.  The Consultant's legal liability for all damages incurred by the LPA caused by 

error, omission, or negligent acts of the Consultant will be borne by the Consultant without 

liability or expense to the LPA.

SECTION 9. CHANGE OF PLAN, ABANDONMENT, SUSPENSION, OR TERMINATION

Additions to the schedule of services, if approved in writing, will require negotiation of a 

supplemental agreement.  For any work beyond the schedule of services, the Consultant shall 

document the additional work, estimate the cost to complete the work, and receive written 

approval from the LPA before the Consultant begins the work.  Any such work performed by the 

Consultant prior to written approval of the LPA will be done at the expense of the Consultant. 

The LPA has the absolute right to abandon the project or to change the general scope of 

work at any time and such action on its part will in no event be deemed a breach of agreement.  

The LPA can suspend or terminate this agreement at any time.  Such suspension or termination 

may be affected by the LPA giving the Consultant seven days written notice. 

If the LPA abandons or subtracts from the work, or suspends or terminates the agreement 

as presently outlined, the Consultant will be compensated in accordance with the provisions of 

48 CFR 31, provided however, that in case of suspension, abandonment, or termination for 

breach of this agreement or for tender of improper work, the LPA can suspend payments, 

pending the Consultant's compliance with the provisions of this agreement.  In determining the 

percentage of work completed, the LPA will consider the work performed by the Consultant prior

to abandonment or termination to the total amount of work contemplated by this agreement.  

The ownership of all project plans and supporting documents completed or partially completed 

at the time of such termination or abandonment will be retained by the LPA and the Consultant 

shall immediately deliver all project plans and supporting documents to the LPA.



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 12 -

SECTION 10. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

All surveys, plans, specifications, maps, computations, charts, electronic data, and other 

project data prepared or obtained under the terms of this agreement are the property of the LPA

and the Consultant shall deliver them to the LPA without restriction or limitation as to further 

use.  

LPA acknowledges that such data may not be appropriate for use on an extension of the 

work covered by this agreement or on other projects.  Any use of the data for any purpose other 

than that for which it was intended without the opportunity for Consultant to review the data and 

modify it if necessary for the intended purpose will be at the LPA’s sole risk and without legal 

exposure or liability to Consultant.  

SECTION 11. USE AND/OR RELEASE OF PRIVILEGED OR CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Certain information provided by the LPA or State to the Consultant is confidential 

information contained within privileged documents protected by 23 U.S.C. §409. "Confidential 

information" means any information that is protected from disclosure pursuant to state and 

federal law and includes, but is not limited to, accident summary information, certain accident 

reports, diagnostic evaluations, bridge inspection reports, and any other documentation or 

information that corresponds with said evaluations or reports, and any other information 

protected by 23 U.S.C. §409. "Privileged document" means any document pertaining to any file 

or project maintained by the LPA or State that is privileged and protected from disclosure, 

pursuant to appropriate state and federal law, including any document containing attorney-client 

communications between an LPA or State employee and Legal Counsel. This confidential and 

privileged information is vital and essential to the Consultant in order that the Consultant 

adequately design the project at hand on behalf of the LPA or State.

The Consultant agrees it will only use any information or documentation that is 

considered to be privileged or confidential for the purposes of executing the services by which it 

has agreed to render for the LPA or State for the project at hand only. The Consultant agrees 

not to reveal, disseminate, or provide copies of any document that is confidential and privileged 

to any individual or entity. The LPA agrees that any information or documentation that is 

considered to be privileged or confidential that is provided to Consultant will be marked with the 

following information:

“CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: Federal Law, 23 U.S.C §409, prohibits the 

production of this document or its contents in discovery or its use in evidence in a State 

or Federal Court.  The LPA has not waived any privilege it may assert as provided by 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 13 -

that law through the dissemination of this document and has not authorized further 

distribution of this document or its contents to anyone other than the original recipient.”

The Consultant agrees to obtain the written approval of the Consultant Coordinator prior 

to the dissemination of any privileged or confidential information or documentation if it is unclear 

to the Consultant whether such information or documentation is in fact privileged or confidential.

The Consultant and the LPA agree that any unauthorized dissemination of any privileged 

or confidential information or documentation on the part of the Consultant will create liability on 

the part of the Consultant to the LPA for any damages that may occur as a result of the 

unauthorized dissemination. The Consultant agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and release 

the LPA for any liability that may ensue on the part of the LPA for any unauthorized 

dissemination of any privileged or confidential information or documentation on the part of the 

Consultant.

SECTION 12. FORBIDDING USE OF OUTSIDE AGENTS

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 

other than a bona fide employee working for the Consultant, to solicit or secure this agreement, 

and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 

employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration 

contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement.  For breach or 

violation of this warranty, the LPA has the right to annul this agreement without liability or, in its 

discretion, to deduct from the agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full 

amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

SECTION 13. NON-RAIDING CLAUSE

The Consultant shall not engage the services of any person or persons presently in the 

employ of the State for work covered by this agreement without the prior written consent of the 

employer of the persons. 

SECTION 14. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

The Consultant hereby agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 

ordinances applicable to the work. 

SECTION 15. DISPUTES

Any dispute concerning a question of fact in connection with the work covered under this 

agreement will be addressed in accordance with LPA Manual SectIon 4.4.3.5 DISPUTE 

RESOLUTION.



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 14 -

SECTION 16. RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY

The Consultant agrees to save harmless the LPA from all claims and liability due to the 

activities of the Consultant or those of the Consultant's agents or employees in the performance 

of work under this agreement.  In this connection, the Consultant shall for the life of this 

agreement, carry insurance as outlined in Exhibit “C” and attached hereto, and hereby made a 

part of this agre ement.  

SECTION 17. PROFESSIONAL REGISTRATION

The Consultant shall affix the seal of a registered professional engineer or architect 

licensed to practice in the State of Nebraska, on all plans, documents, and specifications 

prepared under this agreement as required by the Nebraska Engineers and Architects 

Regulations Act, Neb.Rev.Stat §81-3401 et. seq.

SECTION 18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This agreement is binding on successors and assigns of either party. 

SECTION 19. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY

The Consultant shall have an acceptable and current drug-free workplace policy on file 

with the State.  

SECTION 20. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ACT

The Consultant agrees to abide by the Nebraska Fair Employment Practices Act, as 

provided by Neb.Rev.Stat. 48-1101 through 48-1126, which is hereby made a part of and 

included in this agreement by reference. 

SECTION 21. DISABILITIES ACT

The Consultant agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 

101-366), as implemented by 28 CFR 35, which is hereby made a part of and included in this 

agreement by reference.  

SECTION 22. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

The Consultant shall ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises, as defined in 

49 CFR 26, have the maximum opportunity to compete for and participate in the performance of 

subagreements financed in whole or in part with federal funds under this agreement.

Consequently, the disadvantaged business requirements of 49 CFR 26 are hereby made a part 

of and included in this agreement by reference.

The Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin in 

the award and performance of FHWA-assisted contracts.  Failure of the Consultant to carry out 

the requirements set forth above will constitute a breach of this agreement and, after the 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 15 -

notification of the FHWA, may result in termination of this agreement by the LPA or such 

remedy as the LPA deems appropriate.  

SECTION 23. NONDISCRIMINATION

A. Compliance with Regulations:  During the performance of this agreement, the 

Consultant, for itself and its assignees and successors in interest, agrees to comply 

with the regulations of the DOT relative to nondiscrimination in federally-assisted 

programs of the DOT (49 CFR 21 and 27, hereinafter referred to as the 

Regulations), which are hereby made a part of and included in this agreement by 

reference.

B. Nondiscrimination:  The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it after 

award and prior to completion of this agreement, shall not discriminate on the basis 

of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of 

Subconsultants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The 

Consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination 

prohibited by 49 CFR 21.5, including employment practices when the agreement 

covers a program set forth in Appendixes A, B, and C of 49 CFR 21.  

C. Solicitations for Subagreements, Including Procurements of Materials

and Equipment:  In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation 

made by the Consultant for work to be performed under a subagreement, including 

procurements of materials or equipment, each potential Subconsultant or supplier 

shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant's obligations under this 

agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the basis of race, 

color, sex, or national origin.  

D. Information and Reports:  The Consultant shall provide all information and reports 

required by the Regulations, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, and 

shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, 

and its facilities as may be determined by the LPA, State or FHWA to be pertinent 

to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions.  Where 

any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another 

who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall certify to the 

LPA, State or FHWA, as appropriate, and set forth what efforts it has made to 

obtain the information.  



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 16 -

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with 

the nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, the LPA will impose such 

agreement sanctions as it or the State and FHWA may determine to be appropriate, 

including but not limited to withholding of payments to the Consultant under this 

agreement until the Consultant complies, and/or cancellation, termination, or 

suspension of this agreement, in whole or in part.  

F. Incorporation of Provisions:  The Consultant shall include the provisions of 

paragraphs A through E of this section in every subagreement, including 

procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 

Regulations, orders, or instructions issued pursuant thereto. The Consultant shall 

take such action with respect to any subagreement or procurement as the LPA, 

State or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 

sanctions for noncompliance, provided however, that in the event a Consultant 

becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation with a Subconsultant/ 

Subcontractor as a result of such direction, the Consultant may request that the 

LPA enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the LPA and, in addition, the 

Consultant may request that the State and United States enter into such litigation to 

protect the interests of the State and United States.  

SECTION 24. SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT, OR TRANSFER

Any other subletting, assignment, or transfer of any professional services to be performed 

by the Consultant is hereby prohibited unless prior written consent of the LPA is obtained.  

As outlined in the DISABILITIES ACT Section of this agreement, the Consultant shall take 

all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises have the 

maximum opportunity to compete for and perform subagreements.  Any written request to sublet 

any other work must include documentation of efforts to employ a disadvantaged business 

enterprise.

SECTION 25.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant shall review the Conflict of Interest provisions of 23 CFR 1.33 and 49 

CFR 18.36(b)(3) and agrees to comply with all the Conflict of Interest provisions in order for the 

project to remain fully eligible for State or Federal funding.  Consultant should review, 

understand and follow the instructions provided in the NDOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

GUIDANCE DOCUMENT for CONSULTANTS for LOCAL FEDERAL-AID 

TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS located on the State website at the following location:



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 17 -

http://www.dor.state.ne.us/gov-aff/lpa/chapter-forms/coi/coi-guidance-doc-consultant.pdf

Consultant must also complete and sign the CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM 

FOR CONSULTANTS for Local Federal-aid Transportation Projects, for each project.  This form 

is located on the State website at the following location:

http://www.dor.state.ne.us/gov-aff/lpa/chapter-forms/coi/coi-disclosure-doc-consultant.pdf

Consultants and sub-consultants providing services for LPA’s, or submitting proposals for 

services, shall have the duty to notify the LPA and the NDOR LPD PC and submit a revised 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form for Consultants for any changes in circumstances, or 

discovery of any additional facts, that could result in someone employed by, or who has an 

ownership, personal, or other interest with Consultant or sub-consultant having a real or 

potential conflict of interest on an LPA federal-aid transportation project.

SECTION 26. CONSULTANT CERTIFICATIONS

The undersigned duly authorized representatives of the Consultant, by signing this 

agreement, hereby swears, under the penalty of law, the truth of the following certifications, and 

agrees as follows:

A. Neb.Rev.Stat. § 81-1715(1).  I certify compliance with the provisions of Section 

81-1715 and, to the extent that this contract is a lump sum or actual cost-plus-a-

fixed fee professional service contract, I hereby certify that wage rates and other 

factual unit costs supporting the fees in this agreement are accurate, complete, 

and current as of the date of this agreement. I agree that the original contract 

price and any additions thereto shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums 

by which the LPA determines the contract price had been increased due to 

inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit costs.  

Neb.Rev.Stat. §§ 81-1701 through 81-1721.

B. Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-1717 and 1718.  I hereby certify compliance with the 

provisions of Sections 81-1717 and 1718 and, except as noted below neither I 

nor any person associated with the firm in the capacity of owner, partner, 

director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any 

position involving the administration of federal funds:

1. Has employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, 

contingent fee, or other consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 18 -

fide employee working solely for me or the above Consultant) to solicit or 

secure this agreement, or

2. Has agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this agreement, 

to employ or retain the services of any firm or person in connection with 

carrying out this agreement, or

3. Has paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a 

bona fide employee working solely for me or the above Consultant) any fee, 

contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or in connection with 

procuring or carrying out this agreement, except as here expressly stated (if 

any).

C. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility

Matters-Primary Covered Transactions. Section C1 below contains 10 

instructions that consultant agrees to follow in making the certifications contained 

in C2.

1. Instructions for Certification

a. By signing this agreement, the Consultant is providing the certification 

set out below.  

b. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will 

not necessarily result in denial of participation in this project.  The 

Consultant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the 

certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be 

considered in connection with the LPA's determination whether to 

enter into this agreement.  However, failure of the Consultant to 

furnish a certification or an explanation will disqualify the Consultant 

from participation in this agreement.  

c. The certification in this clause is a material re presentation of fact upon 

which reliance was placed when the State determined to enter into 

this agreement.  If it is later determined that the Consultant knowingly 

rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 

available to the Federal government, the LPA may terminate this 

agreement for cause or default.  

d. The Consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the LPA if at 

any time the Consultant learns that its certification was erroneous 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 19 -

when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 

circumstances.

e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 

"lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary 

covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily 

excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the 

Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 

Executive Order 12549.   

f. The Consultant agrees that should the proposed covered transaction 

be entered into, it will not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the LPA before entering into this 

agreement.  

g. The Consultant further agrees to include the clause titled "Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 

Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the State 

without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 

solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.  

h. The Consultant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification 

of a prospective Subconsultant in a lower tier covered transaction that 

it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 

the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 

erroneous.  A Consultant may decide the method and frequency by 

which it determines the eligibility of its principals.  

i. Nothing contained in the foregoing will be construed to require

establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith 

the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge and 

information of the Consultant is not required to exceed that which is 

normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of 

business dealings.  

j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these 

instructions, if the Consultant in a covered transaction knowingly 



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 20 -

enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 

participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the federal government, the LPA may terminate this agreement for 

cause or default.

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other

Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

a. By signing this agreement, the Consultant certifies to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered 

transactions by any federal department or agency;

ii. Have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement 

been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them 

for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, 

state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 

violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of 

embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 

records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

iii. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 

charged by a governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with 

commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph A.(ii)

of this certification; and

iv. Have not within a three-year period preceding this agreement had 

one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) 

terminated for cause or default.

b. Where the Consultant is unable to certify to any of the statements in 

this certification, such Consultant shall attach an explanation to this 

agreement.  I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to 

the State and the FHWA in connection with this agreement involving 

participation of federal-aid highway funds and is subject to applicable, 

state and federal laws, both criminal and civil.  



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 21 -

SECTION 27. LPA CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, I, Jay Vavricek, do hereby certify that, to the best of my 

knowledge, the Consultant or its representative has not been required, directly or indirectly as 

an express or implied condition in connection with obtaining or carrying out this agreement to:

(a) employ or retain, or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person, or

(b) pay or agree to pay to any firm, person, or organization, any fee, contribution, 

donation, or consideration of any kind.

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to the FHWA, upon their request, in 

connection with this agreement involving participation of Federal-Aid highway funds and is 

subject to applicable state and federal laws, both criminal and civil.

SECTION 28. ALL ENCOMPASSED

This instrument embodies the whole agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, 

terms, conditions, or obligations other than contained herein, and this agreement supersedes all 

previous communications, representations, or other agreements or contracts, either oral or 

written hereto.  



Project No. ENH-40(60)
Control No. 42651
Grand Island 3rd & Wheeler 
   Historical Lighting - 22 -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused these presents to be executed 

by their proper officials thereunto duly authorized as of the dates below indicated.  

After being duly sworn on oath, I do hereby acknowledge the foregoing certification and 

state that I am authorized to sign this agreement.

EXECUTED by the Consultant this ___ day of _________________, 2011.

OLSSON ASSOCIATES, INC.
Randall J. Kaster, PE

________________________________
Principal

STATE OF NEBRASKA)
)ss.

LANCASTER COUNTY )

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ________ day of __________, 2011.

________________________________
Notary Public 

EXECUTED by the LPA this _____ day of ____________________, 2011.

CITY OF GRAND ISLAND
Jay Vavricek

________________________________
Mayor

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of ________________, 2011.

___________________________________
Clerk

STATE OF NEBRASKA
DEPARTMENT OF ROADS
Form of Agreement Approved for 
Federal Funding Eligibility:  

___________________________________

___________________________________
Date



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-279 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 2011-126 Grand Island City Council approved entering into an 
agreement with the Nebraska Department of Roads for the 3rd Street and Wheeler Avenue Downtown 
Historical Lighting Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island solicited proposals for engineering consulting services 
for such project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska wish to 
enter into an Engineering Services Agreement to provide engineering consulting services for such project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Engineering Services Agreement between the 
City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska for engineering consulting services related 
to the 3rd Street and Wheeler Avenue Downtown Historical Lighting Project is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G27
#2011-280 - Approving Bid Award for Sugar Beet Ditch Piping at 
Suck’s Lake; Drainage Project No. 2011-D-3
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Terry Brown, Manager of Engineering Services 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Bid Award for Sugar Beet Ditch Piping at 

Such’s Lake; Drainage Project No. 2011-D-3 
 
Item #’s:  G-27 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 

Background 
 

On September 12, 2011, the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department 
advertised for bids in the Grand Island Daily Independent for the Sugar Beet Ditch Piping 
at Suck’s Lake Drainage Project No. 2011-D-3. 
 
This project will allow for the lining of what is referred to as the Sugar Beet Ditch and 
additional piping for better drainage, as well as ease in maintenance. A potentially 
hazardous situation will also be reduced, as there is the chance of an individual falling 
into the current ditch.  
 
There were seven (7) potential bidders for this project. 

 
Discussion 

 
Three (3) bids were received and opened on September 20, 2011. The bids were 
submitted in compliance with the contract, plans, and specifications. A summary of the 
bids is shown below.  
 

Bidder Exceptions Total Bid 
The Diamond Engineering Co. of Grand Island, NE None $69,664.40 
Philip Carkoski Construction & Trenching of Loup 
City,NE 

Noted $89,529.00 
(*mathematical 

error on bid) 
Van Kirk Bros. Contracting of Sutton, NE None $105,859.60 

 
The bids were higher than the estimate of $55,000.00, but are considered fair, reasonable 
and competitive. 
 



There are sufficient funds in the 2010/2011 budget for this project. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the bid award in the amount 
of $69,664.40.00 to The Diamond Engineering Company.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  



 

Purchasing Division of Legal Department 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  September 20, 2011 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
FOR:     Sugar Beet Ditch Piping at Such’s Lake; Project 2011-D-3 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works 
 
ESTIMATE:    $55,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   40033520-90111 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  September 10, 2011 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 7 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  Van Kirk Bros. Contracting  Philip Carkoski Construction & Trenching 
   Sutton, NE    Loup City, NE 
Bid Security:  Universal Surety Co.   The Cincinnati Insurance Co. 
Exceptions:  None     Noted 
 
Bid Price: 
Section A:  $26,900.00    $21,392.00 
Section B:  $20,690.00    $16,608.00 
Section C:  $58,269.60    $51,129.00 
Total Bid:  $105,859.60    $89,129.00 
 
 
Bidder:  Diamond Engineering Co. 
   Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  Universal Surety Co. 
Exceptions:  None 
 
Bid Price: 
Section A:  $17,727.60 
Section B:  $13,845.50 
Section C:  $38,091.30 
Total Bid:  $69,664.40 



 
 
 
cc: John Collins, Public Works Director    Catrina DeLosh, PW Admin. Assist. 
 Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent     Terry Brown, PW Eng. Mgr. 
 Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
              P1511 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-280 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for the Sugar Beet Ditch Piping at 
Suck’s Lake; Project No. 2011-D-3, according to plans and specifications on file with the City 
Engineer/Public Works Director; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 20, 2011 bids were received, opened, and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, NE submitted a bid in 
accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids and plans and specifications and all other statutory 
requirements contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $69,664.40, and 
 
 WHEREAS, funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2010/2011 budget for this project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of The Diamond Engineering Company of 
Grand Island, Nebraska in the amount of $69,664.40 for the Sugar Beet Ditch Piping at Suck’s Lake; 
Project No. 2011-D-3 is hereby approved as the lowest responsible bid. 
 
 BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
a contract with such contractor for such project on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 20, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G28
#2011-281 - Approving Bid Award in Concrete for Sludge Storage 
Building Project No. 2011-WWTP-4 for Wastewater Division of 
the City of Grand Island
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  John Henderson, Superintendent, Wastewater Division 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Bid Award in Concrete for Sludge Storage 

Building Project No. 2011-WWTP-4 for Wastewater 
Division of the City of Grand Island 

 
Item #’s:  G-28 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 
 

Background 
 

This project will provide the Wastewater Division the replacement of a deteriorated 
concrete pad; new concrete access pavement; curb; and sidewalk in the main door area 
around the sludge storage building. Additionally the slope will be changed on the existing 
pavement on the building’s south side to provide proper drainage.  
 
On September 8, 2011 an ad to bidders was published in the Grand Island Daily 
Independent, with bidding documents being sent to ten (10) potential contractors. The 
estimate was $335,000.00. 

Discussion 

On September 15, 2011 three (3) bids were received, opened and reviewed. A summary 
of the bids is show below: 
 

Bidder Exceptions Total Bid 
L & L Concrete & Construction Inc. of Grand 
Island, NE 

Noted $156,405.99 

Lacy Construction Co. of Grand Island, NE Noted $165,335.00  
Diamond Engineering Co. of Grand Island, NE None $194,450.26 
 
L & L Concrete & Construction, Inc. is the apparent low bidder. 
 
City staff has reviewed L & L Concrete & Construction, Inc. exceptions noted in the 
bidding documents. L & L Concrete & Construction, Inc. shall add work at base bid 
exceptions listed as; testing, best management practice (truck cleanout containment), and 



supplied heating for cold weather pours. All other exceptions noted have been reviewed 
by city staff as acceptable. 
 
City staff recommends additional fund allocation to this project for the addition of sealant 
work, in the amount of $4,438.00. 
 
City staff recommends the bid be awarded to L & L Concrete & Construction, Inc. of 
Grand Island, Nebraska. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the bid award to L & L 
Concrete & Construction, Inc. of Grand Island, Nebraska in the amount of $160,843.99.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the bid award. 



 

Purchasing Division of Legal Department 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  September 15, 2011 at 2:15 p.m. 
 
FOR:     Concrete for Sludge Storage Building 2011-WWTP-4 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works 
 
ESTIMATE:    $335,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   53030054-85608 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  September 8, 2011 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 10 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  Lacy Construction Co.   Diamond Engineering Co. 
   Grand Island, NE    Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  Merchants Bond Co.    Universal Surety Co. 
Exceptions:  Noted      None 
 
Bid Price:  $165,335.00     $194,450.26 
 
 
Bidder:  L & L Concrete & Construction, Inc. 
   Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  AMCO Insurance Co. 
Exceptions:  Noted 
 
Bid Price:  $156,405.99 
 
 
cc: John Collins, Public Works Director    Catrina DeLosh, PW Admin. Assist. 
 Jason Eley, Purchasing Agent     Don Rowley, Waste Water Division 
 Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
              P1510 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-281 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Advertisement to Bidders for Concrete for Sludge Storage Building 2011-
WWTP-4 at the Wastewater Treatment Plant was published in the Grand Island Daily Independent on 
September 8, 2011, and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 15, 2011 bids were received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  L & L Concrete & Construction, Inc. of Grand Island submitted a bid in 
accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids, plans and specifications and all other statutory 
requirements contained therein, with a base bid of $156,405.99; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City staff recommends additional fund allocation to the project for L & L 
Concrete & Construction, Inc. to add joint sealant to the work, in the amount of $4,438.00. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid award with the contracting firm, L & L 
Concrete & Construction, Inc. of Grand Island, in the base bid amount of $156,405.99 for Concrete for 
Sludge Storage Building 2011-WWTP-4, joint sealant in the amount of $4,438.00, for a total contractual 
amount of $160,843.99 at the Wastewater Treatment Plant is hereby approved. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such contract on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G29
#2011-282 - Approving Agreement with Olsson Associates for an 
Update to the Groundwater Study
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Terry Brown, Manager of Engineering Services 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Agreement with Olsson Associates for an 

Update to the Groundwater Study  
 
Item #’s:  G-29 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 

Background 
 

 
On December 21, 1998 the City entered into an agreement with the Central Platte Natural 
Resources District (CPNRD), which provided for the installation of test and monitoring 
wells to study lowering groundwater levels. 
   
The study concluded September 2000 with a recommendation to implement a dewatering 
program.  
 
On July 26, 2011 City Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with the Central Platte 
Natural Resources District (CPNRD) to update the September 2000 Groundwater Study. 
The cost will be shared equally between the City and the CPNRD, with the study also 
being shared with both entities. 
 

Discussion 
 
Three (3) proposers responded to the Request for Qualifications (RFQ), which was 
advertised in the Grand Island Independent on August 9, 2011. The RFQ was sent 
directly to eleven (11) consultant firms. 
 
Olsson Associates of Grand Island, Nebraska was selected as the top engineering firm 
based on the pre-approved selection criteria. 
 
The anticipated start date of the study update is October 3, 2011, with an anticipated 
completion date of February 23, 2012. Results of the study will be presented to both the 
City and the CPNRD once the report is available. 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the agreement with Olsson 
Associates of Grand Island, Nebraska and pass a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to 
sign the agreement. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  























 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 23, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-282 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 2011-182 Grand Island City Council approved entering into an 
agreement with the Central Platte Natural Resources District (CPNRD) for the update to the September 
2000 Groundwater Study; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island solicited proposals for engineering consulting services 
for such project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Grand Island, Nebraska 
wish to enter into an Engineering Services Agreement to provide engineering consulting services for such 
project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Engineering Services Agreement between the 
City of Grand Island, Central Platte Natural Resources District and Olsson Associates of Grand Island, 
Nebraska for engineering consulting services related to the September 2000 Groundwater Study Update is 
hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G30
#2011-283 - Approving Agreement for Engineering Consulting 
Services Related to Capital Avenue Widening – Webb Road to 
Broadwell Avenue
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Scott Griepenstroh, PW Project Manager 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Agreement for Engineering Consulting 

Services Related to Capital Avenue Widening – Webb 
Road to Broadwell Avenue  

 
Item #’s:  G-30 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 

Background 
 

 
The City of Grand Island Public Works Department sought STP funds for the Capital 
Avenue, Webb Road to Broadwell Avenue widening project. This proposed project 
consists of removal of the existing 24’ wide asphalt roadway and construction of new 
concrete pavement on Capital Avenue from Webb Road to Broadwell Avenue. The new 
roadway will consist of 41’ wide back-to-back curbed concrete pavement to 
accommodate a three lane roadway (two through lanes and a common turning lane). 
 
The purpose of this project is to accommodate traffic volumes and enhance motorist and 
pedestrian safety. Reconstruction will address the deterioration of the existing pavement, 
and widening of the roadway will improve safety.  
 
A Project Programming Request for the “Capital Avenue, Webb Road to Broadwell 
Avenue” project was prepared by Public Works and approved by the Nebraska 
Department of Roads (NDOR) April 5, 2011. The estimated total cost of the entire 
project, including preliminary engineering, environmental clearance and construction 
oversight is $3,250,639. The estimated portion the City of Grand Island will be 
responsible for is $650,129. Construction is anticipated to be completed in 2014. 
 
On May 24, 2011 City Council approved the Project Program Agreement between the 
City of Grand Island and Nebraska Department of Roads, which specifies the various 
duties and funding responsibilities of this Federal-aid project. The Program Agreement 
requires that NDOR Standards and Specifications are to be used for design, construction 
inspection and quality control. 
   
All agreements must be approved by the City Council. 



Discussion 
 
Five (5) proposals for preliminary engineering and environmental clearance services were 
received. Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska was selected as the top engineering firm 
based on the pre-approved selection criteria. 
 
The Nebraska Department of Roads has approved the selection and prepared the attached 
agreement. The work is to be performed at actual costs with a maximum amount of 
$354,124.45, plus a fixed-fee-for-profit amount of $44,912.99, for a total agreement 
amount of $399,037.44. The fixed-fee is computed upon the direct labor or wage costs, 
indirect labor costs, indirect-non- labor costs, and direct payroll additives. 
 
Supplemental agreements will be required later for engineering services for Right-of-
Way acquisition, additional storm sewer design (if necessary), water main reconstruction 
(if necessary) and sanitary sewer gravity main design. It is not practical to estimate the 
scope and fees for these additional services until substantial design work has been 
completed. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the agreement with Olsson 
Associates of Omaha, Nebraska. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  





























































































 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-283 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 2011-124 Grand Island City Council approved entering into an 
agreement with the Nebraska Department of Roads for the Capital Avenue Widening – Webb Road to 
Broadwell Avenue Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island solicited proposals for engineering consulting services 
for such project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska wish to 
enter into an Engineering Services Agreement to provide engineering consulting services for such project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Engineering Services Agreement between the 
City of Grand Island and Olsson Associates of Omaha, Nebraska for engineering consulting services related 
to the Capital Avenue Widening – Webb Road to Broadwell Avenue Project is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G31
#2011-284 - Approving Annual Report by the Citizens’ Review 
Committee on the Economic Development Program Plan
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing item E-12.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mark Stelk, Chairman CRC

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-284 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Neb. Rev. Stat. §18-2715(3) and Grand Island City Code §2-110 require a 
report by the Citizens Advisory Review Committee to the City Council at least once every six months on its 
findings and suggestions on the administration of the Economic Development Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing on the report submitted by the Citizens’ Advisory Review 
Committee was held at a regular session of the Grand Island City Council on September 27, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said report gave information about the activities of the past six months that 
have taken place pursuant to the Economic Development Plan. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the annual report of the Citizens Advisory Review 
Committee is hereby accepted and approved. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G32
#2011-285 - Approving Continuation of Water Main District #457 - 
Pioneer Blvd. - Ordinance #9300
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Continuation of Water Main District #457 – Pioneer 

Boulevard  & Commerce Avenue - Ordinance #9300 
 
Item #’s:  G-32 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 457 was created at the request of area residence to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district will serve the properties along Pioneer Boulevard 
and Commerce Avenue  
 

Discussion 
 

The proposed project would install an 8” diameter water main and service lines within the 
district. The work would be done as an assessment district, which is the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines when a petition is received. The 
eligible construction costs will be charged to the property owners within the district’s 
boundary. Assessments will be collected over a five year period, at 7% simple interest on 
the unpaid balance. 
 
All owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of this information 
and had 30 days to submit objection to the project. The protest period for District #457 
ended at 5:00 p.m., September 16, 2011. Protests received represented 32.06% of the 
front footage of the district. 
 
Since less than 50% of the land owners protested the creation of the district, the district 
may be continued by Council, per Nebraska Statute, 16.667.01, R.R.S. 1943. 
 
Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s boundaries and the protests 
received. 
 

 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council continue Water Main District #457 
along Pioneer Boulevard and Commerce Avenue. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the continuation of Water Main District #457 along Pioneer Boulevard 
and Commerce Avenue. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

rN
am

e
O

w
ne

rA
dd

re
ss

Re
nt

er
Ad

dr
es

s
Lo

t
Bl

oc
k

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
/S

ec
tio

n
Le

ga
l

Fr
on

ta
ge

Sq
ua

re
Fo

ot
ag

e
Fo

r
Ag

ai
ns

t

45
7

M
ar

vi
n

D.
&

Ju
di

th
M

.
La

m
be

rt
us

24
09

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

Pa
rt

SW
1/

4,
N

W
1/

4,
Se

c2
8

11
9

15
7.

40
59

,3
39

.8
0

45
7

Ga
ry

R.
&

El
le

n
M

.M
ad

er
24

13
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
1

Bo
nn

ey
Su

b
98

.0
7

21
,3

52
.7

0
y

??
??

?

45
7

Ga
ry

R.
&

El
le

n
M

.M
ad

er
3

Bo
nn

ey
Su

b
93

.3
3

34
,3

49
.2

0
y

??
??

?

45
7

H
er

be
rt

W
.&

La
ni

ta
K.

Ro
es

er
23

16
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
2

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

3r
d

Su
b

56
6.

45
74

,4
42

.8
4

45
7

M
yr

lL
.W

ie
la

nd
20

19
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
3

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4
y

??
??

??

45
7

Ja
m

es
F.

Cr
ise

l
21

03
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
4

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4
y

??
??

??

45
7

Jo
hn

T.
&

Ka
th

ry
n

A.
Kl

us
ka

21
07

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

5
A

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
40

,3
39

.4
4

y
??

??
??

45
7

Ci
ty

of
Gr

an
d

Is
la

nd
Pa

rk
vi

ew
W

el
l#

1
21

11
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d
6

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4

45
7

Je
ffr

ey
H.

&
De

ne
ld

a
C.

Sp
ea

se
21

15
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
7

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4

45
7

Ba
nk

of
N

ew
Yo

rk
M

el
lo

n
40

0
N

at
io

na
lW

ay
22

03
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
8

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4



45
7

Jo
hn

&
Je

nn
ife

rG
an

no
n

22
07

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

9
A

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
40

,3
39

.4
4

y
??

??
??

45
7

Da
ni

el
R.

&
Sa

ra
A.

Co
x

22
11

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

10
A

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
40

,3
39

.4
4

y
??

??
??

45
7

Ra
nd

y
L.

&
Ja

n
E.

Dy
e

23
05

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

11
A

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
40

,3
39

.4
4

45
7

Ro
be

rt
G.

&
Ju

dy
A.

Ev
er

so
ll

23
15

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

12
A

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
40

,3
39

.4
4

45
7

M
yr

on
R.

&
M

ar
ga

re
tE

.
Be

rg
gr

en
23

17
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
13

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4
y

??
??

??

45
7

N
ei

lD
.&

Ja
cq

ue
lin

e
J.

St
oe

ck
er

24
01

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

14
A

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
40

,3
39

.4
4

y
??

??
??

45
7

Ro
na

ld
R.

Ru
he

&
M

ar
ily

n
Ha

ith
24

03
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
15

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4

45
7

Ar
le

ne
Fi

sc
he

r
c/

o
Ro

be
rt

Fi
sc

he
r

10
00

9
E.

83
rd

St
re

et
24

05
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
16

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4

45
7

Jo
el

B.
&

M
el

an
ie

L.
G

ar
re

tt
24

07
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
17

A
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

40
,3

39
.4

4

45
7

Ja
yn

eA
.D

ec
ke

r
20

18
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
5

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,7

09
.0

8
y

??
??

??



45
7

Da
rr

el
R.

O
lso

n
21

02
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
7

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,6

45
.5

4

45
7

D
av

id
J.

&
Ja

m
ie

J.
Pa

rr
21

06
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
9

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,6

13
.7

6

45
7

Br
an

do
n

K.
W

ar
ne

r
21

10
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
11

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,5

81
.9

9

45
7

La
ur

a
J.

Jo
hn

so
n

11
46

S.
Vi

ne
St

re
et

21
14

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

13
B

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
18

,5
50

.2
2

45
7

Da
ni

el
J.

&
Sa

nd
ra

J.
Ho

st
le

r
22

02
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
15

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,5

18
.4

5

45
7

Jo
hn

W
.&

W
an

da
M

.
Sa

rg
en

t
22

06
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
17

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,4

86
.6

8

45
7

Br
an

de
n

D.
&

Gr
et

ch
en

L.
W

ag
ne

r
22

10
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
19

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,4

54
.9

0

45
7

H
er

be
rt

W
.&

La
ni

ta
K.

Ro
es

er
21

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,4

23
.1

3

45
7

Sh
ar

on
A.

Sm
ah

a
24

16
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
1

D
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
26

7.
30

22
,8

15
.7

1
y

??
??

??

45
7

St
ev

en
D.

&
Ly

nd
a

G.
G

ra
to

pp
24

12
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
2

D
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
18

8.
90

32
,9

06
.3

8



45
7

De
an

L.
&

Sh
irl

ey
D.

Ca
rs

te
n

24
14

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

3
D

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

18
8.

90
33

,0
38

.6
1

y
??

??
??

45
7

Ti
ff

an
y

B.
Pe

nd
er

gr
af

tc
/o

Sh
or

e
M

or
tg

ag
e

PO
Bo

x9
70

24
18

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

5
D

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
40

,3
49

.0
4

45
7

Ro
ge

r
Kr

ol
ik

ow
sk

i
24

17
Co

m
m

er
ce

Av
e

6
D

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
40

,3
49

.0
4

45
7

St
ev

en
D.

&
Ly

nd
a

G.
G

ra
to

pp
PT

4
D

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

S.
8.

5'
Lo

t4
,B

lk
D,

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

8.
50

1,
48

4.
10

45
7

La
w

re
nc

e
D.

&
Kr

ist
in

e
A.

Co
at

es
PO

Bo
x2

35
24

10
Pi

on
ee

rB
lv

d.
PT

4
D

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

N
.1

80
.4

'L
ot

4,
Bl

k
D,

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

18
0.

40
31

,4
97

.8
4

45
7

Fr
ed

er
ick

W
.R

au
ch

,J
r.

24
19

Pi
on

ee
rB

lv
d.

1
E

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

15
8.

80
60

,3
67

.8
2

4,
69

9.
25

1,
22

4,
36

8.
43

??
??

??
??

?
ŽI

W?
Žl

G?
l

??
??

??



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 22, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-285 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 457 was created by Ordinance No. 9300 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on September 16, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 457 which represented 32.06% of the total district front footage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 457, and such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G33
#2011-286 - Approving Continuation of Water Main District #459 - 
Park Drive - Ordinance #9301
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:  Continuation of Water Main District #459 – Park Drive - 

Ordinance #9301 
 
Item #’s:  G-33 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 459 was created at the request of area residence to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district will serve the properties along Park Drive. 
 

Discussion 
 

The proposed project would install an 8” diameter water main and service lines within the 
district. The work would be done as an assessment district, which is the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines when a petition is received. The 
eligible construction costs will be charged to the property owners within the district’s 
boundary. Assessments will be collected over a five year period, at 7% simple interest on 
the unpaid balance. 
 
All owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of this information 
and had 30 days to submit objection to the project. The protest period for District #459 
ended at 5:00 p.m., September 16, 2011. Protests received represented 41.12% of the 
front footage of the district. 
 
Since less than 50% of the land owners protested the creation of the district, the district 
may be continued by Council, per Nebraska Statute, 16.667.01, R.R.S. 1943. 
 
Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s boundaries and the protests 
received. 
 
 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council continue Water Main District #459 
along Park Drive. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the continuation of Water Main District #459 along Park Drive. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

r
N

am
e

O
w

ne
rA

dd
re

ss
Re

nt
er

Ad
dr

es
s

Lo
t

Bl
oc

k
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n
/

Se
ct

io
n

Le
ga

l
Fr

on
ta

ge
Sq

ua
re

Fo
ot

ag
e

Fo
r
Ag
ai
ns
t

45
9

Lu
th

er
S.

&
St

ep
ha

ni
e

M
.A

lle
n

23
05

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
1

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

3r
d

Su
b

14
0.

20
23

,1
31

.2
0

45
9

H
en

ry
N

.&
Ca

ro
lA

.
Ye

nc
er

20
19

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
6

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,6

76
.8

6

45
9

Kr
is

ha
C.

Bo
ss

el
m

an
21

03
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

8
B

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
18

,7
35

.9
3

45
9

Ro
ge

r
Ch

ar
le

sB
ro

w
n

21
07

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
10

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,7

95
.0

0

45
9

St
ev

en
R.

&
Tr

ac
y

M
.

Ei
se

m
an

n
21

11
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

12
B

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
18

,8
83

.9
4

45
9

Ch
ar

le
sH

.&
Ch

ris
tin

e
M

.H
of

fm
an

21
15

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
14

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

18
,9

72
.8

8
X

10
7.
40

45
9

W
al

la
ce

F.
&

Be
tt

y
A.

Ja
ko

b
60

2
O

St
re

et
,#

30
2

St
.P

au
l,

NE
68

87
3

22
03

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
16

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

19
,0

32
.0

9

45
9

Ev
al

yn
M

.S
or

ah
an

22
07

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
18

B
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

7.
40

19
,0

91
.2

9
X

10
7.
40

45
9

Vi
rg

il
D

.&
Lo

is
M

.
M

el
se

n
22

11
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

20
B

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
7.

40
19

,1
50

.4
9

X
10
7.
40

45
9

Ti
m

ot
hy

R.
&

Be
ve

rly
Jo

Pl
um

m
er

23
04

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
1

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2
x

10
6.
80



45
9

Ea
rl

K.
&

La
ze

tt
a

J.
Ba

rn
es

24
23

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
3

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2
X

10
6.
80

45
9

G
eo

rg
e

H
.&

Ka
th

ry
n

L.
Fe

rr
is

24
25

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
5

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2
X

10
6.
80

45
9

Ch
ad

L.
&

Le
sl

ie
M

.
Sm

ith
24

27
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

7
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

45
9

G
re

g
S.

&
An

ge
la

M
.

Le
he

ch
ka

24
29

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
9

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2

45
9

Le
sl

ie
De

an
&

Te
re

st
a

V.
W

es
to

ve
r

25
03

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
11

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2

45
9

Do
na

ld
A.

&
Ch

er
iA

.
Sc

hw
ie

ge
r

25
05

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
13

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2

45
9

K
&

B
Ai

rc
ra

ft
Le

as
in

g
Se

rv
ic

es
,I

nc
.

52
66

Ch
er

ok
ee

Av
en

ue
25

07
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

15
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

45
9

Se
cr

et
ar

y
of

Ho
us

in
g

&
U

rb
an

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

45
1

7t
h

St
re

et
SW

25
09

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
17

C
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2

45
9

Br
ia

n
J.

&
Li

sa
C.

D
eg

en
25

11
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

19
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

X
10
6.
80

45
9

Br
ia

n
J.

&
Li

sa
C.

D
eg

en
25

11
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

21
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

X
10
6.
80



45
9

St
ev

en
R.

&
M

ar
y

M
.

M
et

te
nb

rin
k

25
15

Pa
rk

D
riv

e
23

c
Pa

rk
Vi

ew
Su

b
10

6.
80

18
,5

72
.5

2

45
9

Do
ug

la
s

A.
&

Ch
er

yl
A.

W
ar

d
25

17
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

25
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

X
10
6.
80

45
9

Do
na

ld
P.

&
Pa

tr
ic

ia
D

.
W

he
la

n
25

19
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

27
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

45
9

Ro
be

rt
L.

&
Ro

xa
nn

e
L.

La
th

en
25

21
Pa

rk
D

riv
e

29
C

Pa
rk

Vi
ew

Su
b

10
6.

80
18

,5
72

.5
2

X
10
6.
80

2,
60

1.
40

45
3,

05
7.

48
1,
06
9.
80

%
of
Pr
ot
es
t

41
.1
2%



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-286 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 459 was created by Ordinance No. 9301 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on September 16, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 459 which represented 41.12% of the total district front footage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 459, and such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G34
#2011-287 - Approving Continuation of Water Main District #460 - 
Grand Avenue, Riverview Drive, and August Street - Ordinance 
#9302
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:   Continuation of Water Main District #460 – Riverview 

Drive, Grand Avenue, and August Street - Ordinance 
#9302 

 
Item #’s:  G-34 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 460 was created at the request of area residence to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district will serve the properties along Riverview Drive, 
Grand Avenue, and August Street. 
 

Discussion 
 

The proposed project would install an 8” diameter water main and service lines within the 
district. The work would be done as an assessment district, which is the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines when a petition is received. The 
eligible construction costs will be charged to the property owners within the district’s 
boundary. Assessments will be collected over a five year period, at 7% simple interest on 
the unpaid balance. 
 
All owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of this information 
and had 30 days to submit objection to the project. The protest period for District #460 
ended at 5:00 p.m., September 16, 2011. Protests received represented 38.63% of the 
front footage of the district. 
 
Since less than 50% of the land owners protested the creation of the district, the district 
may be continued by Council, per Nebraska Statute, 16.667.01, R.R.S. 1943. 
 
Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s boundaries and the protests 
received. 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council continue Water Main District #460 
along Riverview Drive, Grand Avenue, and August Street. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the continuation of Water Main District #460 along Riverview Drive, 
Grand Avenue, and August Street. 













 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 22, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-287 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 460 was created by Ordinance No. 9302 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on September 16, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 460 which represented 38.63% of the total district front footage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 460, and such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G35
#2011-288 - Approving Continuation of Water Main District #461 - 
Hagge Avenue - Ordinance #9303
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Continuation of Water Main District #461 – Hagge 

Avenue and  William Street - Ordinance #9303 
 
Item #’s:  G-35 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 461 was created at the request of area residence to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district will serve the properties along Hagge Avenue and 
William Street. 
 

Discussion 
 

The proposed project would install an 8” diameter water main and service lines within the 
district. The work would be done as an assessment district, which is the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines when a petition is received. The 
eligible construction costs will be charged to the property owners within the district’s 
boundary. Assessments will be collected over a five year period, at 7% simple interest on 
the unpaid balance. 
 
All owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of this information 
and had 30 days to submit objection to the project. The protest period for District #461 
ended at 5:00 p.m., September 16, 2011. Protests received represented 21.15% of the 
front footage of the district. 
 
Since less than 50% of the land owners protested the creation of the district, the district 
may be continued by Council, per Nebraska Statute, 16.667.01, R.R.S. 1943. 
 
Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s boundaries and the protests 
received. 
 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council continue Water Main District #461 
along Hagge Avenue and William Street. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the continuation of Water Main District #461 along Hagge Avenue and 
William Street. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

rN
am

e
O

w
ne

rA
dd

re
ss

Re
nt

er
Ad

dr
es

s
Lo

t
Bl

oc
k

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
/S

ec
tio

n
Le

ga
l

Fr
on

ta
ge

Sq
ua

re
Fo

ot
ag

e
Fo

r
Ag

ai
ns

t

46
1

Do
ug

la
sJ

.&
N

an
et

te
P.

Re
dm

an
50

43
Ra

in
tr

ee
Ci

rc
le

20
19

W
ill

ia
m

St
re

et
33

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

W
70

'o
fL

ot
33

,
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

70
.0

0
10

,5
00

.0
0

46
1

Pa
m

el
a

B.
Ha

eu
ss

le
r

16
04

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

33
PT

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
E

6'
of

Lo
t3

3,
Ha

gg
es

'
Su

b
6.

00
90

0.
00

46
1

Pa
m

el
a

B.
Ha

eu
ss

le
r

16
04

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

34
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

De
br

a
S.

La
rs

on
St

ar
ke

y
16

04
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
35

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

De
br

a
S.

La
rs

on
St

ar
ke

y
16

04
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
36

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

M
au

ro
&

U
ba

ld
in

o
Ga

rc
ia

15
22

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

37
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

G
re

go
ry

S.
O

'R
ou

rk
e

15
18

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

38
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

Jo
hn

ny
P.

&
Pe

gg
yJ

.P
ap

e
24

05
Ri

ve
rv

ie
w

Dr
iv

e
15

10
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
39

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

To
dd

M
.&

La
na

K.
M

cC
ai

n
20

20
S.

Au
gu

st
St

re
et

40
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

Ke
nn

et
h

P.
&

Ro
bi

n
G.

Te
sm

er
14

18
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
41

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0



46
1

Sh
aw

n
A.

&
An

ge
la

D.
W

he
el

er
14

14
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
42

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

N
ic

ho
la

sJ
.B

en
es

14
12

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

43
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Lo
re

tt
a

J.
Br

ob
er

g
14

08
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
44

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0
X

76
.0

0

46
1

Da
ni

el
D.

&
Ko

rin
na

J.
N

ar
an

jo
13

28
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
45

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0
X

76
.0

0

46
1

La
rr

y
L.

&
Lo

ui
se

A.
Zi

m
m

er
m

an
13

22
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
46

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

La
rr

y
L.

&
Lo

ui
se

A.
Zi

m
m

er
m

an
13

22
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
47

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

Pa
tr

ic
k

C.
&

Al
is

on
M

.L
ar

so
n

13
14

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

48
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Pa
tr

ic
k

C.
&

Al
is

on
M

.L
ar

so
n

13
14

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

49
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

M
ic

ha
el

L.
M

cC
ar

ty
62

0
N

.D
ie

rs
Av

en
ue

,
St

e
20

0
20

20
S.

Ad
am

sS
tr

ee
t

50
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

M
ic

ha
el

L.
M

cC
ar

ty
62

0
N

.D
ie

rs
Av

en
ue

,
St

e
20

0
20

20
S.

Ad
am

sS
tr

ee
t

51
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0



46
1

Ro
m

a
J.

W
hi

te
20

17
SA

da
m

s
St

re
et

52
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Ro
m

a
J.

W
hi

te
20

17
SA

da
m

s
St

re
et

53
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

N
or

m
an

P.
&

El
iza

be
th

A.
Ha

rr
is

on
71

2
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
54

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

N
or

m
an

P.
&

El
iza

be
th

A.
Ha

rr
is

on
71

2
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
55

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

W
19

'L
ot

55
,H

ag
ge

s'
Su

b
19

.0
0

2,
85

0.
00

46
1

Ch
ar

le
sW

.L
an

dg
ra

f,
Jr

.
70

4
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
55

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

E
57

'L
ot

55
,H

ag
ge

s'
Su

b
57

.0
0

8,
55

0.
00

46
1

Ch
ar

le
sW

.L
an

dg
ra

f,
Jr

.
70

4
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
56

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

W
38

'L
ot

56
,H

ag
ge

s'
Su

b
38

.0
0

5,
70

0.
00

46
1

To
dd

A.
&

Ke
ls

ey
M

.C
ly

ne
61

6
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
56

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

E
38

'L
ot

56
,H

ag
ge

s'
Su

b
38

.0
0

5,
70

0.
00

46
1

To
dd

A.
&

Ke
ls

ey
M

.C
ly

ne
61

6
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
57

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

Fo
x

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

In
c.

80
Po

nd
er

os
a

Dr
iv

e
61

0
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
58

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

St
ep

ha
ni

e
R.

W
ill

ia
m

s
60

9
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
61

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0



46
1

Ro
be

rt
P.

&
Ba

rb
ar

a
J.

Fl
et

ch
er

61
5

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

62
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Da
ni

el
J.

&
Lis

a
D.

Ru
zi

ck
a

62
1

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

63
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Do
na

ld
D.

M
eh

rin
g

34
21

St
at

e
St

re
et

,P
la

za
4

70
3

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

64
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

Ja
ne

lle
Br

ow
n

71
5

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

65
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

Ja
ne

lle
Br

ow
n

71
5

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

66
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

Pr
ek

se
da

Sh
im

ek
40

4
W

oo
dl

an
d

Dr
iv

e
72

1
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
67

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0
X

76
.0

0

46
1

De
nn

is
&

Je
an

et
te

Sa
nt

in
21

04
S.

Ad
am

sS
tr

ee
t

69
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

M
ar

vi
n

L.
&

Pa
m

el
a

D.
An

de
rs

en
13

07
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
70

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

Ge
ra

ld
D.

&
Jo

yc
e

L.
Br

ya
nt

13
13

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

71
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Ge
ra

ld
D.

&
Jo

yc
e

L.
Br

ya
nt

13
13

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

72
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0



46
1

W
ill

ia
m

M
.&

Ch
er

yl
G.

G
or

do
n

13
19

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

73
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

W
ill

ia
m

M
.&

Ch
er

yl
G.

G
or

do
n

13
19

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

74
PT

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
E

1/
2

Lo
t7

4,
Ha

gg
es

Su
b

38
.0

0
5,

70
0.

00
X

38
.0

0

46
1

Ro
dn

ey
L.

&
M

ar
ci

aA
.S

ha
da

13
23

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

74
PT

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
W

1/
2

Lo
t7

4,
Ha

gg
es

'
Su

b
38

.0
0

5,
70

0.
00

X
38

.0
0

46
1

Ro
dn

ey
L.

&
M

ar
ci

aA
.S

ha
da

13
23

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

75
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

X
76

.0
0

46
1

Lu
ve

rn
e

R.
&

M
ar

y
P.

Vo
ss

14
09

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

76
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Lu
ve

rn
e

R.
&

M
ar

y
P.

Vo
ss

14
09

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

77
PT

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
E1

/2
Lo

t7
7,

Ha
gg

es
'

Su
b

38
.0

0
5,

70
0.

00

46
1

Sc
ot

tM
.&

An
ge

la
Sm

ith
14

13
H

ag
ge

St
re

et
77

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

W
1/

2
Lo

t7
7,

Ha
gg

es
'

Su
b

38
.0

0
5,

70
0.

00

46
1

Sc
ot

tM
.&

An
ge

la
Sm

ith
14

13
H

ag
ge

St
re

et
78

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

Ja
re

d
M

.&
Je

an
M

.L
ou

dy
14

19
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
79

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

Jim
m

y
L.

Jo
hn

so
n

an
d

Ka
th

le
en

L.
Ra

ll
21

04
S.

Au
gu

st
St

re
et

81
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0



46
1

Br
oo

ke
Tr

im
bl

e
15

09
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
82

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

Ca
rl

os
A.

&
M

ir
na

M
.D

ur
an

15
15

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

83
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

Ja
m

es
D.

&
Lis

a
L.

An
de

rs
on

15
23

H
ag

ge
Av

en
ue

84
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

76
.0

0
11

,4
00

.0
0

46
1

M
ic

ha
el

P.
&

Su
sie

L.
Ku

lly
16

05
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
85

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

M
ic

ha
el

P.
&

Su
sie

L.
Ku

lly
16

05
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
86

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

E
1/

2
Lo

t8
6,

Ha
gg

es
'

Su
b

38
.0

0
5,

70
0.

00

46
1

Sh
ar

on
R.

Gr
av

es
an

d
St

ep
ha

ni
e

A.
Cu

rr
y

60
4

E.
Su

nn
yb

ro
ok

Dr
iv

e
16

15
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
86

PT
Ha

gg
es

'S
ub

W
1/

2
Lo

t8
6,

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
38

.0
0

5,
70

0.
00

46
1

Sh
ar

on
R.

Gr
av

es
an

d
St

ep
ha

ni
e

A.
Cu

rr
y

60
4

E.
Su

nn
yb

ro
ok

Dr
iv

e
16

15
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
87

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

46
1

G
er

ro
d

Ha
ve

la
nd

Br
et

tH
av

el
16

21
H

ag
ge

Av
en

ue
88

Ha
gg

es
'S

ub
76

.0
0

11
,4

00
.0

0

3,
95

2.
00

58
2,

30
0.

00
83

6.
00

%
of

Pr
ot

es
t

21
.1

5%



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-288 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 461 was created by Ordinance No. 9303 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on September 16, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 461 which represented 21.15% of the total district front footage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 461, and such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G36
#2011-289 - Approving Continuation of Water Main District #464 - 
Antelope Drive - Ordinance #9306
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Continuation of Water Main District #464 – Antelope 

Drive - Ordinance #9306 
 
Item #’s:  G-36 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 464 was created at the request of area residence to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district will serve the properties along Antelope Drive. 
 

Discussion 
 

The proposed project would install a 16” diameter water main and service lines within the 
district. The work would be done as an assessment district, which is the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines when a petition is received. The 
eligible construction costs will be charged to the property owners within the district’s 
boundary. Assessments will be collected over a five year period, at 7% simple interest on 
the unpaid balance. 
 
All owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of this information 
and had 30 days to submit objection to the project. The protest period for District #464 
ended at 5:00 p.m., September 16, 2011. Protests received represented 0% of the front 
footage of the district. 
 
Since less than 50% of the land owners protested the creation of the district, the district 
may be continued by Council, per Nebraska Statute, 16.667.01, R.R.S. 1943. 
 
Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s boundaries and the protests 
received. 
 
 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council continue Water Main District #464 
along Antelope Drive. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the continuation of Water Main District #464 along Antelope Drive. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

rN
am

e
O

w
ne

rA
dd

re
ss

Re
nt

er
Ad

dr
es

s
Lo

t
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n
/S

ec
tio

n
Le

ga
l

Fr
on

ta
ge

Sq
ua

re
Fo

ot
ag

e
Fo

r
Ag

ai
ns

t

46
4

Ro
bc

o
LL

C
c/

o
Co

dy
W

ra
y

24
22

Hi
gh

Po
in

tC
irc

le
W

ic
hi

ta
,

KS
67

20
5

50
18

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
1

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
20

0.
00

46
4

Ro
bc

o
LL

C
c/

o
Co

dy
W

ra
y

24
22

Hi
gh

Po
in

tC
irc

le
W

ic
hi

ta
,

KS
67

20
5

50
18

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
3

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
4

Ri
ch

&
So

ns
Ca

m
pe

r
Sa

le
s

51
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
51

12
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

4
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
4

Ri
ch

&
So

ns
Ca

m
pe

r
Sa

le
s

51
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
51

12
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

7
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
4

Ri
ch

&
So

ns
Ca

m
pe

r
Sa

le
s

51
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
51

12
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

1
H

is
er

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
20

0.
00

P.
O

.B
ox

24
8

Du
ra

nd
,

W
I

46
4

BB
RE

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

P.
O

.B
ox

24
8

Du
ra

nd
,W

I
54

73
6

33
34

Co
ug

ar
Dr

iv
e

8
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

12
0.

05

82
0.

05
0.

00

%
of

Pr
ot

es
t

0.
00

%



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-289 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 464 was created by Ordinance No. 9306 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on September 16, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 464 which represented 0% of the total district front footage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 464, and such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G37
#2011-290 - Approving Continuation of Water Main District #465 - 
Elk & Cougar Drives - Ordinance #9307
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Continuation of Water Main District #465 – Wildwood 

Drive, Elk Drive and Cougar Drive - Ordinance #9307 
 
Item #’s:  G-37 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 465 was created at the request of area residence to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district will serve the properties along Wildwood Drive, 
Elk Drive and Cougar Drive. 
 

Discussion 
 

The proposed project would install an 8” and 12” diameter water mains and service lines 
within the district.  The work would be done as an assessment district, which is the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines when a petition is received. The 
eligible construction costs will be charged to the property owners within the district’s 
boundary. Assessments will be collected over a five year period, at 7% simple interest on 
the unpaid balance. 
 
All owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of this information 
and had 30 days to submit objection to the project. The protest period for District #465 
ended at 5:00 p.m., September 16, 2011. Protests received represented 13.99% of the 
front footage of the district. 
 
Since less than 50% of the land owners protested the creation of the district, the district 
may be continued by Council, per Nebraska Statute, 16.667.01, R.R.S. 1943. 
 
Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s boundaries and the protests 
received. 
 
 



Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council continue Water Main District #465 
along Wildwood Drive, Elk Drive, and Cougar Drive. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the continuation of Water Main District #465 along Wildwood Drive, 
Elk Drive, and Cougar Drive. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

rN
am

e
O

w
ne

rA
dd

re
ss

Re
nt

er
Ad

dr
es

s
Lo

t
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n
/S

ec
tio

n
Le

ga
l

Fr
on

ta
ge

Sq
ua

re
Fo

ot
ag

e
Fo

r
Ag

ai
ns

t

46
5

Ro
bc

o
LL

C
24

22
Hi

gh
Po

in
tC

irc
le

W
ic

hi
ta

,
KS

67
20

5
50

18
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

2
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

14
3.

00

46
5

Co
dy

Kr
ist

&
Ro

bi
n

Tr
ac

y
W

ra
y

24
22

Hi
gh

Po
in

tC
irc

le
W

ic
hi

ta
,

KS
67

20
5

N
o

Ad
dr

es
s

14
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
5

Co
dy

Kr
ist

&
Ro

bi
n

Tr
ac

y
W

ra
y

24
22

Hi
gh

Po
in

tC
irc

le
W

ic
hi

ta
,

KS
67

20
5

N
o

Ad
dr

es
s

15
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

20
0.

00

46
5

BB
RE

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

P.
O

.B
ox

24
8

Du
ra

nd
,

W
I

54
73

6
N

o
Ad

dr
es

s
9

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
11

7.
74

46
5

BB
RE

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

P.
O

.B
ox

24
8

Du
ra

nd
,

W
I

54
73

6
N

o
Ad

dr
es

s
10

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

BB
RE

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

P.
O

.B
ox

24
8

Du
ra

nd
,

W
I

54
73

6
N

o
Ad

dr
es

s
11

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

Ri
ch

&
So

ns
Ca

m
pe

r
Sa

le
s

51
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
50

49
El

k
Dr

iv
e

12
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
5

Ri
ch

&
So

ns
Ca

m
pe

r
Sa

le
s

51
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
50

49
El

k
Dr

iv
e

13
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
5

Ch
ar

le
sD

.B
os

se
lm

an
26

05
Ap

ac
he

Ro
ad

51
00

&
51

02
El

k
Dr

iv
e

18
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
5

Ja
ne

tK
.B

os
se

lm
an

26
05

Ap
ac

he
Ro

ad
51

30
El

k
Dr

iv
e

19
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00



46
5

Ja
ne

tK
.B

os
se

lm
an

26
05

Ap
ac

he
Ro

ad
51

30
El

k
Dr

iv
e

20
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0.

00

46
5

N
eb

ra
sk

a
Tr

an
sp

or
t

Co
.,

In
c.

P.
O

.B
ox

16
46

Sc
ot

ts
bl

uf
f,

N
E

69
36

3
51

62
El

k
Dr

iv
e

21
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

10
0

57
6.

61
X

57
6.

61

46
5

N
eb

ra
sk

a
Tr

an
sp

or
t

Co
.,

In
c.

P.
O

.B
ox

16
46

Sc
ot

ts
bl

uf
f,

N
E

69
36

3
51

62
El

k
Dr

iv
e

22
W

ild
w

oo
d

Su
b.

11
1.

57

*A
ve

ra
ge

of
fr

on
ta

nd
ba

ck
fo

ot
ag

e
X

46
5

Am
er

ic
an

Fr
ei

gh
tw

ay
s,

In
c.

22
00

Fo
rw

ar
d

Dr
iv

e
Ha

rr
iso

n,
AZ

72
60

2
33

91
Co

ug
ar

Dr
iv

e
23

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

Am
er

ic
an

Fr
ei

gh
tw

ay
s,

In
c.

22
00

Fo
rw

ar
d

Dr
iv

e
Ha

rr
iso

n,
AZ

72
60

2
33

91
Co

ug
ar

Dr
iv

e
24

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

Am
er

ic
an

Fr
ei

gh
tw

ay
s,

In
c.

22
00

Fo
rw

ar
d

Dr
iv

e
Ha

rr
iso

n,
AZ

72
60

2
33

91
Co

ug
ar

Dr
iv

e
25

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

M
an

Pr
op

er
tie

s,
LL

C
52

12
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

52
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
25

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

M
an

Pr
op

er
tie

s,
LL

C
52

12
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

52
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e
26

W
ild

w
oo

d
Su

b.
10

0.
00

46
5

M
an

Pr
op

er
tie

s,
LL

C
52

12
An

te
lo

pe
Dr

iv
e

52
12

An
te

lo
pe

Dr
iv

e

Pa
rt

of
th

e
N

E
1/

4,
N

E1
/4

,S
ec

tio
n

12
T1

0N
R1

0W
(4

00
'x

21
8'

)
21

8.
00

46
5

JP
K

&
CM

A
En

te
rp

ris
es

,
In

c.
50

18
El

k
Dr

iv
e

50
18

El
k

Dr
iv

e
1

W
ild

w
oo

d
Se

co
nd

Su
b.

21
0.

00



46
5

G
M

S
En

te
rp

ris
es

,I
nc

.
41

52
N

or
w

oo
d

Dr
iv

e
50

50
El

k
Dr

iv
e

2
W

ild
w

oo
d

Se
co

nd
Su

b.
18

9.
74

46
5

M
itc

he
ll

H.
St

au
ffe

r,
Tr

us
te

e
80

8
W

.2
4t

h
Ke

ar
ne

y,
N

E
68

84
5

33
44

W
.W

ild
w

oo
d

D
r.

Pa
rt

of
th

e
E1

/2
,S

E1
/4

,
Se

ct
io

n
1

T1
0N

R1
0W

1,
16

7.
80

4,
12

2.
89

57
6.

61

%
of

Pr
ot

es
t

13
.9

9%



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-290 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 465 was created by Ordinance No. 9307 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the protest period ended on September 16, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 465 which represented 13.99% of the total district front footage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that insufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 465, and such district shall be continued and 
constructed according to law. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G38
#2011-291 - Approving Repeal of Water Main District #462 - 
Chochin Street - Ordinance No. 9304
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Consideration of Repeal of Water Main District #462 – 

Cochin Street - Ordinance #9304 
 
Item #’s:  G-38 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 462 was created at the request of area residents to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district would have served the properties along Cochin 
Street. 
 

Discussion 
 

Ordinance #9304 provided for creation of Water Main District #462. The proposed 
project would have installed 8” diameter water mains to serve the 11 lots within the 
district’s boundary. The project was designed as an assessment district, the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines at the request of area property 
owners in developed areas. The district was subject to a 30 day protest period. All owners 
of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of the creation of the district 
and advised of the protest provisions. The protest period for Water Main District #462 
ended at 5:00 p.m., Friday, September 16, 2011. Protests received represent 62.34% of 
the front footage of the district. Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s 
boundaries and the protests received. Per Nebraska statute 16.667.01 R.R.S. 1943, if 
protest is received from property owners representing more than 50% of the front footage 
in the district, that district may not be continued. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.   
 
 
The Council may: 



 
1. Repeal Ordinance #9304 creating Water Main District #462 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council repeal Ordinance #9304 - Water Main 
District #462 along Brahma and Bantam Streets. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to repeal Ordinance #9304 creating Water Main District #462. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

rN
am

e
O

w
ne

rA
dd

re
ss

Re
nt

er
Ad

dr
es

s
Lo

t
Bl

oc
k

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
/

Se
ct

io
n

Le
ga

l
Fr

on
ta

ge
Sq

ua
re

Fo
ot

ag
e

Fo
r

Ag
ai

ns
t

46
2

Jo
se

Fi
er

ro
Ag

ui
rr

e
22

11
Co

ch
in

St
re

et
7

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
14

10
2.

9
X

80
.0

0

46
2

Ro
yD

.&
Ge

ne
vi

ev
e

B.
Fr

ed
ric

ks
on

22
19

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

8
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sh

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
14

46
7.

8

46
2

Br
et

Sm
ith

22
23

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

9
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
11

10
2

X
80

.0
0

46
2

Ri
ck

y
L.

&
Jo

dy
J.

Se
ym

ou
r

22
27

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

10
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
12

44
9.

7
X

80
.0

0

46
2

Ri
ck

y
L.

&
Jo

dy
J.

Se
ym

ou
r

22
27

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

PT
11

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

N
40

'o
fL

ot
11

,2
nd

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
40

.0
0

61
53

.3
X

40
.0

0

46
2

Vo
nn

e
F.

W
ag

em
an

22
39

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

PT
11

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

S
40

'o
fL

ot
11

,2
nd

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
40

.0
0

57
01

.3
X

40
.0

0

46
2

Vo
nn

e
F.

W
ag

em
an

22
39

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

12
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
10

94
2.

1
X

80
.0

0

46
2

St
ev

en
M

.&
Br

en
da

K.
St

ei
nh

au
se

r
22

32
Co

ch
in

St
re

et
9

Re
Su

b
of

Bl
oc

k
4,

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
(s

ee
at

ta
ch

ed
)

0.
00

7,
62

5.
1'

(in
cl

ud
es

fr
ac

tio
n)

X
0.

00

46
2

St
ev

en
M

.&
Br

en
da

K.
St

ei
nh

au
se

r
22

32
Co

ch
in

St
re

et
PT

11

Re
Su

b
of

Bl
oc

k
4,

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
(s

ee
at

ta
ch

ed
)

10
1.

50
X

10
1.

50

46
2

St
ev

en
M

.&
Br

en
da

K.
St

ei
nh

au
se

r
22

32
Co

ch
in

St
re

et
PT

12

Re
Su

b
of

Bl
oc

k
4,

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
(s

ee
at

ta
ch

ed
)

0.
00

X
0.

00



46
2

Ca
th

er
in

a
W

.S
al

in
as

an
d

Cl
au

di
a

M
ad

ag
am

e
11

88
4

R
Tl

ur
od

aS
tr

ee
t

22
28

Co
ch

in
St

re
et

12

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

Ex
ce

pt
po

rt
io

n
(s

ee
at

ta
ch

ed
)

10
1.

50
15

,2
36

.1
'(

in
cl

ud
es

fr
ac

tio
n)

46
2

Ho
us

in
g

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

Co
rp

.30
1

So
ut

h
Bu

rli
ng

to
n

Av
en

ue
22

26
Co

ch
in

St
re

et
13

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

10
1.

50
16

,0
08

.5
'(

in
cl

ud
es

fr
ac

tio
n)

46
2

Fr
ac

14

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

(s
ee

at
ta

ch
ed

)
20

.0
0

80
4.

50
50

1.
50

%
of

Pr
ot

es
t

62
.3

4%



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*This Space Reserved for Register of Deeds* 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N    2011-291 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 462 was created by Ordinance No. 9304 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 462 by abutting property owners representing 62.34% of the total district frontage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that sufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 462, and such district shall not be continued and the 
ordinance which created said district shall be repealed. 
 

 
 

 - - - 
 
 



- 2 - 
  

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G39
#2011-292 - Approving Repeal of Water Main District #463 - 
Bantam & Brahma Streets - Ordinance #9305
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Tim Luchsinger

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:   Consideration of Repeal of Water Main District #463 – 

Brahma & Bantam Streets - Ordinance #9305 
 
Item #’s:  G-39 
 
Presenter(s): Timothy Luchsinger, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 

Water Main District 463 was created at the request of area residents to provide municipal 
water service to the area. The district would have served the properties along Brahma and 
Bantam Streets. 
 

Discussion 
 

Ordinance #9305 provided for creation of Water Main District #463. The proposed 
project would have installed 8” diameter water mains to serve the 21 lots within the 
district’s boundary. The project was designed as an assessment district, the Utility 
Department’s standard method for installing water lines at the request of area property 
owners in developed areas. The district was subject to a 30 day protest period.  All 
owners of record title within the district’s boundary were notified of the creation of the 
district and advised of the protest provisions. The protest period for Water Main District 
#463 ended at 5:00 p.m., Friday, September 16, 2011. Protests received represent 58.70% 
of the front footage of the district. Attached for reference is a plat indicating the district’s 
boundaries and the protests received. Per Nebraska statute 16.667.01 R.R.S. 1943, if 
protest is received from property owners representing more than 50% of the front footage 
in the district, that district may not be continued. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.   
 
The Council may: 
 



1. Repeal Ordinance #9305 creating Water Main District #463 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council repeal Ordinance #9305 - Water Main 
District #463 along Brahma and Bantam Streets. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to repeal Ordinance #9305 creating Water Main District #463. 





W
M

D
O

w
ne

rN
am

e
O

w
ne

rA
dd

re
ss

Re
nt

er
Ad

dr
es

s
Lo

t
Bl

oc
k

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
/S

ec
tio

n
Le

ga
l

Fr
on

ta
ge

Sq
ua

re
Fo

ot
ag

e
Fo

r
Ag

ai
ns

t

46
3

Da
ni

el
C.

&
Ka

ss
ie

L.
M

or
se

21
11

Ba
nt

am
St

re
et

4
1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
8,

81
6.

00
X

46
3

Jo
hn

E.
Ja

ns
se

n
21

23
Ba

nt
am

St
re

et
5

1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
9,

17
2.

90

46
3

Br
en

da
J.

Ha
w

le
y

22
03

Ba
nt

am
St

re
et

6
1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

80
.0

0
10

,1
13

.6
0

X
80

.0
0

46
3

Br
en

da
J.

Ha
w

le
y

22
03

Ba
nt

am
St

re
et

PT
7

1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

N
1/

2
Lo

t7
,B

lo
ck

1,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

40
.0

0
5,

44
2.

80
X

40
.0

0

46
3

Te
d

J.
Ro

bb
28

11
So

ut
h

Lo
cu

st
St

re
et

22
11

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
PT

7
1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

S
1/

2
Lo

t7
,B

lo
ck

1,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

40
.0

0
5,

76
4.

30

46
3

Te
d

J.
Ro

bb
28

11
So

ut
h

Lo
cu

st
St

re
et

8
1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

91
.8

0
13

,5
63

.0
0

46
3

Ca
rlo

sA
la

rc
on

an
d

De
lfi

na
Al

ar
co

n
Ve

le
z

22
23

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
9

1

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

75
.0

0
9,

33
1.

00
X

75
.0

0

46
3

Co
nn

ie
M

.R
oo

ks
to

ol
21

21
Br

ah
m

a
St

re
et

6
2

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

11
3.

70
4,

52
5.

80
X

11
3.

70

46
3

Co
nn

ie
M

.R
oo

ks
to

ol
21

21
Br

ah
m

a
St

re
et

PT
7

2

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

W
65

'L
ot

7,
Bl

oc
k

2,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

65
.0

0
5,

79
9.

60
X

65
.0

0

46
3

Jo
hn

C.
&

St
ep

ha
ni

e
L.

Ha
ns

en
21

35
Br

ah
m

a
St

re
et

PT
7

2

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

E
10

'L
ot

7,
Bl

oc
k

2,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

10
.0

0
1,

00
3.

20
X

10
.0

0



46
3

Jo
hn

C.
&

St
ep

ha
ni

e
L.

Ha
ns

en
21

35
Br

ah
m

a
St

re
et

8
2

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

75
.0

0
9,

47
0.

50
X

75
.0

0

46
3

St
ev

en
M

.&
Cy

nt
hi

a
J.

M
as

on
22

16
Br

ah
m

a
St

re
et

17
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

85
.0

0
12

,8
21

.3
0

X
85

.0
0

46
3

St
ev

en
M

.&
Cy

nt
hi

a
J.

M
as

on
22

16
Br

ah
m

a
St

re
et

PT
18

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

S
20

'L
ot

18
,B

lo
ck

3,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

20
.0

0
2,

48
4.

00
X

20
.0

0

46
3

Al
an

J.
&

Ju
lie

H
ay

m
an

22
08

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
PT

18
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

N
65

'L
ot

18
,B

lo
ck

3,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

65
.0

0
7,

66
4.

70
X

65
.0

0

46
3

Al
an

J.
&

Ju
lie

H
ay

m
an

22
08

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
PT

19
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

S
65

'L
ot

19
,B

lo
ck

3,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
t5

o
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
65

.0
0

7,
35

7.
80

X
65

.0
0

46
3

N
ic

ho
la

sO
.&

D
ia

ne
K.

Bo
yd

21
34

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
PT

19
3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

N
20

'L
ot

19
,B

lo
ck

3,
2n

d
Ad

di
tio

n
to

Ho
lc

om
b'

s
H

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

20
.0

0
2,

84
9.

90
X

20
.0

0

46
3

N
ic

ho
la

sO
.&

D
ia

ne
K.

Bo
yd

21
34

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
20

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

85
.0

0
13

,9
04

.1
2

X
85

.0
0

46
3

Ke
nt

C.
&

Di
an

na
L.

O
rr

21
14

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
23

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

50
.5

0
10

,4
44

.8
0

X
50

.5
0

46
3

Ke
nt

C.
&

Di
an

na
L.

O
rr

21
14

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
24

3

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

45
.2

0
8,

63
4.

40
X

45
.2

0

46
3

N
in

a
R.

Sm
ith

22
03

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
A

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

Re
pl

at
of

Lo
ts

9
13

,B
lo

ck
2,

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
75

.0
0

10
,6

21
.5

0
X

75
.0

0



46
3

Ro
be

rt
C.

M
er

ric
k,

Jr
.

21
24

Ba
nt

am
St

re
et

B

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

Re
pl

at
of

Lo
ts

9
13

,B
lo

ck
2,

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
39

5.
70

12
,5

74
.9

0

46
3

Ba
rb

ar
a

A.
Fo

w
le

21
10

Ba
nt

am
St

re
et

C

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

Re
pl

at
of

Lo
ts

9
13

,B
lo

ck
2,

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
s

H
ig

hw
ay

H
om

es
Su

b
80

.6
0

7,
60

2.
70

X
80

.6
0

46
3

Ja
m

es
E.

&
W

ilm
a

M
.

Za
hm

21
18

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
22

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

47
.8

0
7,

60
2.

70
X

47
.8

0

46
3

Ha
ll

Co
un

ty
Ho

us
in

g
Au

th
.

21
22

Br
ah

m
a

St
re

et
21

2n
d

Ad
di

tio
n

to
Ho

lc
om

b'
sH

ig
hw

ay
H

om
es

Su
b

85
.0

0
7,

60
2.

70

TO
TA

L
1,

87
0.

30
17

9,
96

2.
82

1,
09

7.
80

%
of

Pr
ot

es
t

58
.7

0%



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 22, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*This Space Reserved for Register of Deeds* 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N    2011-292 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Water Main District No. 463 was created by Ordinance No. 9305 on August 
9, 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the creation of such water district was published in the Grand Island 
Independent, in accordance with the provisions of Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 16-667.01, R.R.S. 1943, provides that is the owners of record title 
representing more than 50% of the front footage of the property abutting upon the streets, avenues, or 
alleys, or parts thereof which are within such proposed district shall file with the City Clerk within 30 days 
from the first publication of said notice written objections to such district, said work shall not be done and 
the ordinance shall be repealed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, protests were filed with the City Clerk against the creation of Water Main 
District No. 463 by abutting property owners representing 58.70% of the total district frontage. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that sufficient protests have been filed with the City 
Clerk against the creation of Water Main District No. 463, and such district shall not be continued and the 
ordinance which created said district shall be repealed. 
 
 - - - 



- 2 - 
  

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
  
       _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G40
#2011-293 - Approving Maintenance Consent Letter for Public 
Road Crossing with Union Pacific Railroad Company at the Oak 
Street and Pine Street Crossings
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: John Collins, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Scott Griepenstroh, PW Project Manager 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Approving Maintenance Consent Letter for Public Road 

Crossing with Union Pacific Railroad Company at the 
Oak Street and Pine Street Crossings 

 
Item #’s:  G-40 
 
Presenter(s): John Collins, Public Works Director 
 
 

Background 
 

The purpose of the Grand Island Quiet Zone Improvement Project, Phase I is to construct 
improvements at the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) crossings at Oak Street, Pine Street, 
Walnut Street and Elm Street so that train horns will not need to be activated for these 
crossings. “Silent” crossings will be created at Oak Street and Pine Street by constructing 
concrete medians and concrete curb to narrow the streets at the crossing approaches. 
Walnut Street will have a Wayside Horn System installed and concrete curb will be 
constructed to narrow the street. The crossing at Elm Street will be closed after 
improvements are completed at the other crossings. 

 
Discussion 

 
The UPRR requires a Maintenance Consent Letter for Public Road Crossing be signed in 
connection with the Quiet Zone project at the Oak Street and Pine Street crossings. This 
letter states the City’s intention is to construct center medians in the approaches to the 
existing at-grade public road crossings, and also serves as acceptance of the proposed 
work to be performed. The Maintenance Consent Letter also states the City’s 
responsibilities with the Contractor for the Quiet Zone project. The letter is attached for 
reference. 
 
The contract for the Grand Island Quiet Zones Improvement Project was awarded to the 
Diamond Engineering Company at the September 13 Council Session. Public Works and 
Diamond Engineering are currently working to obtain clearances to begin work on UPRR 
right-of-way. A subsequent change order will be processed to incorporate the “Special 



Provisions Relating to Work on Union Pacific Railroad’s Property” for Pine Street and 
Oak Street crossings as required by the Maintenance Consent Letter. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve  the resolution authorized the 
Mayor to sign the Maintenance Consent Letter For Public Road Crossing between the 
Union Pacific Railroad Company and the City of Grand Island. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution.  

























 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-293 
 
 
 WHEREAS,  the Union Pacific Railroad Company (UPRR) requires a Maintenance 
Consent Letter For Public Road Crossing with the City of Grand Island, in connection with the Quiet Zone 
project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the letter states the City’s intention is to construct center medians in the 
approaches to the existing Oak Street and Pine Street at-grade crossings; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the letter serves as acceptance of the proposed work to be performed, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the letter also states the City’s responsibilities with the Contractor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council has reviewed the letter and has determined that it is in its best 
interest for the City to sign the letter in the attached form. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the attached 
Maintenance Consent Letter For Public Road Crossing between the City of Grand Island and the Union 
Pacific Railroad Company. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item I1
#2011-294 - Consideration of Approving Funding of Economic 
Development Request

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:   Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject:  Approving Economic Development Funding Request 
 
Item #’s:  I-1 
 
Presenter(s): Mary Lou Brown, City Administrator 
 
 

Background 
 

On July 22, 2003, the City Council approved Ordinance No.8830 adopting an Economic 
Development Program for the City of Grand Island in conformance with Neb. Rev. Stat. 18-2710. 
This provides for annual funding of $750,000 by the City. 
 

Discussion 
 
A request has been received from the Grand Island Area Economic Development Corporation, 
duly approved by the Citizen’s Review Committee for payment of $350,000. Said funds to be 
used for operating expenses, community publicity, and promotion. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. The 
Council may: 
 

1. Approve the request for funds. 
2. Disapprove or Deny the request for funds. 
3. Modify the Resolution to meet the wishes of the Council.  
4. Table the issue. 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the request for funds. 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Move to approve the request for funds to allow payment of $350,000 to the Grand Island Area 
Economic Development Corporation. 











 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 21, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N   2011-294 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 22, 2003, by Ordinance No. 8830, the Grand Island City Council 
approved and adopted an Economic Development Program for the City of Grand Island prepared in 
conformity with Neb. Rev. Statute No. 18-2710; and 
 
 WHEREAS, such program was amended on August 12, 2003, by Ordinance No. 8832; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the program provides for $750,000 in annual funding to be provided by the 
City of Grand Island; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a request has been made by the Grand Island Area Economic Development 
Corporation and the Economic Development Program’s Citizens Review Committee for the payment of 
$350,000 to be used for operating expenses, community publicity and promotion. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that approval is given to forward $350,000 in City 
funding to the Grand Island Area Economic Development Corporation in accordance with the Economic 
Development Program. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item I2
#2011-295 - Consideration of Approving Jaye Monter as Interim 
Finance Director
 

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Brenda Sutherland

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Mayor Jay Vavricek 
 
Meeting:  September 27, 2011 
 
Subject: Mayoral Recommendation for Interim Appointment of 

City Treasurer/Finance Director 
 
Item #’s:  I-2 
 
Presenter(s): Mayor Jay Vavricek 
 
 

Background  
 

State Statute and Grand Island City Code specifies the need to designate a City 
Treasurer/Finance Director within the Finance Department of the City of Grand Island. 
As you are all aware, City Administrator, Mary Lou Brown has been managing both 
positions in Administration and Finance. 
 
A search for a new Finance Director commenced last April without a successful 
conclusion. In addition, there was a recommendation made by Administrator Brown to 
restructure the management team and not fill the Finance Director position and instead 
combine those duties with that of an Assistant City Administrator. The search for a new 
Finance Director was put on hold until a decision was made by the City Council through 
the budget process for approval.  The Council did not approve the new position. 
 
As such, it is time to make a recommendation in order to maintain the on going work of 
the Finance Department. Jaye Monter has been identified as a capable replacement with 
11 years of experience in the City Finance Department. She is currently employed with 
the City as a Senior Accountant. 
 

Discussion 
 
Jaye received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Comprehensive Business Administration 
with an emphasis in Accounting and Finance from Kearney State College. She has 27 
years of experience in finance and accounting. Jaye started her career in public 
accounting with a small firm in Colorado. There she obtained her Certified Public 
Accountant’s License. After public accounting, her career moved to various private 
industries where she worked as a Controller. She was hired at the City as an Accountant 
in September of 2000. She was reclassified to the position of Senior Accountant in 2003. 



In her current position, she prepares, analyzes and interprets financial statements and 
accounting records for the City of Grand Island, Community Redevelopment Authority 
and Business Improvement Districts. She has showed strong leadership in the Finance 
Department and provided Administrator Brown with a high level of assistance through 
the budget process. 
 
Therefore, I am confident she has the education and previous experience, and as a valued 
employee within the Finance Department, I am certain this recommendation is in the best 
interests of the effectiveness of the department. Ms. Monter will be placed in step 3 of the 
Finance Director pay scale in accordance with the City Personnel Rules and Regulations 
which is $81,851.68 annually. In October a new 15 step pay scale will be implemented 
for non-union employees and Ms. Monter will be placed in the next closest step that does 
not reduce her wages. The new step would be step 5 which is $83,274.10. The interim 
appointment meets the guidelines under State law and Grand Island City Code and will 
best serve the people of Grand Island. Ms. Monter’s appointment will be effective 
September 28, 2011 with Council approval. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council appointment of Jaye Monter as Interim 
City Treasurer/Finance Director. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve Jaye Monter as Interim City Treasurer/Finance Director. 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
September 22, 2011 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2011-295 
 
 
 WHEREAS, under Neb. Rev. Stat., §16-308 and  City Code,  2 – 30, the office of City 
Treasurer/Finance Director for the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, is an appointed position; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, may appoint the position of 
City Treasurer/Finance Director; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the position will become vacant and an interim appointment may be made; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended the appointment of Jaye Monter as the Interim 
City Treasurer/Finance Director effective September 28, 2011 until such time as another appointment is 
made: and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ms. Monter will be compensated at step three of the current Finance Director 
pay scale and then effective October 10, 2011 she will be compensated at step 5 of the new Finance 
Director pay scale during the interim in compliance with the City Personnel Rules. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that Jay Monter is hereby duly appointed the Interim 
City Treasurer/Finance Director for the City of Grand Island, Nebraska,  
 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, and September 27, 2011. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Jay Vavricek, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item J1
Approving Payment of Claims for the Period of September 13, 
2011 through September 27, 2011
 The Claims for the period of September 14, 2011 through September 27, 2011 for a total 
amount of $4,858,066.72.  A MOTION is in order.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council



Item X1
Update Concerning Union Negotiations for IBEW - (Utilities, 
Finance, and Wastewater)
 The City Council may vote to go into Executive Session as required by State law to discuss  
IBEW (Utilities, Finance, and Wastewater) Union Negotiations for the protection of the 
public interest.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Brenda Sutherland

City of Grand Island City Council



Item X2
Discussion Concerning Annual Job Performance Review of City 
Administrator Mary Lou Brown
 The City Council may vote to go into Executive Session as required by State law to discuss 
the annual job performance review of City Administrator Mary Lou Brown. The reason for 
an Executive Session if for the prevention of needless injury to the reputation of the City 
Administrator.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Vavricek

City of Grand Island City Council



Item X3
Discussion Concerning Possible Litigation
 The City Council may vote to go into Executive Session as required by State law to discuss 
possible litigation for the protection of the public interest.

Tuesday, September 27, 2011
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Bob Sivick

City of Grand Island City Council


